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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TOWN BOARD OF BATTLE MOUNTAIN & AUSTIN
BOARD OF COUNTY HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS

January 25, 2018

LANDER COUNTY COURTHOUSE
COMMISSIONERS' CHAMBER

50 STATE ROUTE 305
BATTLE MOUNTAIN, NEVADA

Also Via Teleconference At

AUSTIN COURTHOUSE
COMMISSION OFFICE

122 MAIN STREET
AUSTIN, NEVADA

9:00 A.M Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
A Moment of Silence
Lander County Commissioners may break for lunch from 12:00pm to 1:15pm
Any agenda item may be taken out of order, may be combined for consideration by the public 
body, and items may be pulled or removed from the agenda at any time.
Commissioners Reports on meetings, conferences and seminars attended
Staff Reports on meetings, conferences and seminars attended

Public Comment - For non-agendized items only. Persons are invited to submit comments in 
writing and/or attend and make comments on any non- agenda item at the Board meeting if 
any, and discussion of those comments at the discretion of the Board. All public comment may 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person, again at the discretion of the Board. Reasonable 
restrictions may be placed on public comments based upon time, place and manner, but public 
comment based upon viewpoint may not be restricted.

*CONSENT AGENDA*
All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by 
the Board of County Commissioners with one action, without extensive discussion. Any 
member of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, 
discussed and acted upon separately during this meeting. Consent agenda materials are available 
at the Lander County Clerk's office for viewing and copies are available for a nominal charge.

*(1)  Approval of January 25, 2018 Agenda Notice
*(2)  Approval of January 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes
*(3)  Approval of the Payment of Bills
*(4)  Approval of Payroll Change Requests
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*COMMISSIONERS*

*(1) Discussion and possible action to approve/disapprove FY 2016-2017 Lander County 
Audit as presented by Hinton & Burdick, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(2) Discussion and possible action to approve/disapprove FY 2016-2017 Plan of 
Corrective Action to the Nevada Department of Taxation as presented by Hinton & 
Burdick, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(3) Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove the use of the Battle Mountain 
Recreation Center for the Class of 2018 Sober Senior Party on June 8, 2018 from 9:00 
pm until 6:00 am on June 9, 2018, and all other matters properly related thereto. 

  Public Comment

*(4) Discussion and possible action regarding approval/disapproval of the OSHA Annual 
Report and authorization for the Chair or Vice-chair to sign the OSHA 300A form, 
and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(5) Discussion and possible action regarding the annual Lander County Local Emergency 
Planning Committee (LEPC) Letter of Promulgation and authorization for the Chair or 
Vice-chair to sign, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(6) Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove the Public Service 
Announcement from the Lander County Emergency Planning Committee, and all 
other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(7) Discussion for possible action regarding the creation of a committee to oversee issues 
regarding RS2477 Roads within Lander County, and all other matters properly related 
thereto.

  Public Comment
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*(8) Discussion for possible action regarding the All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Map and 
direction to submit a letter to the State of Nevada requesting crossing areas of state 
highways, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(9) Discussion for possible action regarding the construction of the Battle Mountain Levee 
Project, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(10) Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove Resolution 2018-01 which adds 
an alternate to the Austin Airport Advisory Board Committee, and all other matters 
properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*ASSESSORS*

*(11) Discussion for possible action regarding a request from the Lander County Assessor to 
move the Business License Program to the Planning Coordinator, and all other matters 
properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*PUBLIC WORKS*

*(12) Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove a modified contract between 
Lander County and Land Venture Partners, LLC., for the Airport Waterline Project, 
and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(13) Discussion for possible action regarding a reduction in the Water & Sewer Rates for 
senior citizens and low income residents of Battle Mountain, Nevada, and all other 
matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment
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*COMMISSIONERS*

*(14) Discussion for possible action regarding the purchase of Law Shield, a protective 
measure for Lander County employees that were affected by the unintentional release 
of personal information, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(15) Discussion only regarding the Lander County Planning Commission and its roles and 
responsibilities, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(16) Discussion for possible action to select a date and time to hold a special commission 
meeting that will include all department heads, boards Categories I, II, III and IV, and 
an invitation to all Elected Officials to set goals for the upcoming budget year, and all 
other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(17) Discussion for possible action regarding the scheduled Lander County Commission 
meeting scheduled for February 8, 2018 and the possibility of changing the date to 
February 7, 2018, and all other matters properly related thereto. 

  Public Comment

*(18) Discussion for possible action regarding an additional county position within the 
Lander County Treasurer’s office, and all other matters properly related thereto.

  Public Comment

*(19) Discussion for possible action regarding property damage to a personal vehicle in the 
Lander County Sheriff's Office Parking lot, and all other matters properly related 
thereto.

  Public Comment

*(20) Discussion for possible action regarding a water application from the U.S. Water and 
Lands, LLC (87492) to the State Engineer for 300,000 acre feet of unappropriated 
Humboldt River Water Rights and to submit a letter of protest, and all other matters 
properly related thereto. 

 Public Comment
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*CORRESPONDENCE

*(21) Correspondence/reports/potential upcoming agenda items.

  Public Comment
Public Comment - For non-agendized items only. Persons are invited to submit comments in 
writing and/or attend and make comments on any non- agenda item at the Board meeting if any, and 
discussion of those comments at the discretion of the Board. All public comment may be limited to three 
(3) minutes per person, again at the discretion of the Board. Reasonable restrictions may be placed on 
public comments based upon time, place and manner, but public comment based upon viewpoint may 
not be restricted.

ADJOURN

*Denotes "for possible action". Each such item may be discussed and action taken thereon with information provided at the meeting. 
Action may be taken according to the "Nevada Open Meeting Law Manual" via a telephone conference call in which a quorum of the 
Board members is simultaneously linked to one another telephonically.

NOTE: TIMES ARE APPROXIMATE

This is the tentative schedule for the meeting. The Board reserves the right to take items out of order to accomplish business in the most 
efficient manner. The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration. The Board may remove an item from the agenda or 
delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or accommodations at the 
meeting are requested to notify the County Executive Director in writing at the Courthouse, 50 State Route 305, Battle Mountain, 
Nevada 89820, or call (775) 635-2885 at least one day in advance of the meeting.

NOTICE: Any member of the public that would like to request any supporting material from the meeting, please contact the clerk’s 
office, 50 State Route 305, Battle Mountain, Nevada 89820 (775) 635-5738.

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING
State of Nevada )
                              ) ss
County of Lander )

Keith Westengard, Lander County Executive Director of said Lander County, Nevada, being duly sworn. says, that on the 22nd 
day of January, 2018, he posted a notice, of which the attached is a copy, at the following places: I) Battle Mountain Civic 
Center, 2) Battle Mountain Post Office, 3) Lander County Courthouse, 4) Swackhamer's Plaza Bulletin Board, 5) Kingston 
Community Hall Bulletin Board, and 6) Austin Courthouse in said Lander County, where proceedings are pending.

Keith Westengard, Lander County Executive Director

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22nd day of January, 2018.
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Witness

Name of Agenda: Lander County Board of Commissioners

Date of Meeting: January 25, 2018
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __1__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion and possible action to approve/disapprove FY 2016-2017 Lander County Audit as 
presented by Hinton & Burdick, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: Audit attached

Recommended Action:
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January 11, 2018 

Residents of Lander County 
Town of Battle Mountain and  
Town of Austin 
The Honorable Board of County Commissioners 
Lander County, Nevada 
 
We are pleased to submit the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for Lander County, 
Town of Battle Mountain and Town of Austin Nevada for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 354.624 requires the County to issue an annual report on its financial 
position and activities and that this report be audited by an independent certified public accounting 
firm. 
 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with county management based upon a comprehensive 
framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.  Because the cost of internal 
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather that 
absolute assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements. We believe the 
data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and that it is presented in a manner designed to 
fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the County; and that all disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial activities have been 
included. 
 
     REPORT PRESENTATION 
     
We are presenting Management’s Discussion and Analysis as an introduction to the financial 
information. It immediately follows the auditor’s opinion. This section provides an overview and 
analysis of the County’s significant transactions to aid readers in understanding their financial 
impact and relationship to the financial statements and schedules provided.  This section is presented 
to provide more meaningful information to our readers and to demonstrate accountability for our 
financial actions. 
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The Financial Reporting Entity and Its Services 
 

Lander County was formed on December 19, 1862 and was named after General Frederick W. 
Lander, Civil War hero and prominent builder of a wagon road across Nevada. Situated in the center 
of the state, the Lander County region attracted prospectors fanning out across the Great Basin after 
the 1859 discovery of the Comstock Lode. The County originally encompassed the eastern third of 
the State and was called "The Mother of Counties." It was later divided into the Counties of Lander, 
Eureka, White Pine, and Elko. The first County seat was located in Jacobsville, six miles west of 
Austin. In September, 1863, voters mandated its move to Austin the following May, and then in 
1979 to Battle Mountain. 

Located in north central Nevada, Lander County encompasses 5,621 square miles. Over 85 percent 
of the County is currently public land managed by federal agencies. Interstate 80 traverses the 
County in an east-west fashion on the northern end, as does Highway 50 on the southern end. State 
Highway 305 which runs north and south, bisects the center of Lander County. This highway links 
the towns of Battle Mountain and Austin. The town of Kingston is located in the southern part of 
Lander County on Nevada State Highway 376. 

The total population of Lander County in 2016 was estimated to be 6,257. The population density is 
relatively .9 persons per square mile. Approximately 85 percent of Lander County residents live in 
the northern portion of the County. 

In recent years Lander County's economy has been dominated by mining. Agriculture also plays a 
significant role in the local economy. High quality alfalfa and alfalfa seed is produced. Although the 
mining industry has declined in Lander County in recent years, it is still the dominant sector of the 
local economy. 

The County provides for the health, safety and welfare of its citizens through many programs. 
Programs for health and welfare include immunization and flu vaccinations at the Community 
Health Nurse Office, one-time assistance with utility bills and transportation through the Social 
Services department. Planning, zoning and building permits, tax assessment and collections, and 
general governmental services are also provided by the County. The County also provides for new 
construction and maintenance on various streets and highways; builds and maintains parks; 
maintains our public cemetery; operates the library, Civic Center and Rec Center; adjudicates 
various civil and criminal matters in its State and local courts; maintains the civil peace through the 
Sheriff’s Department and its law enforcement officers.  

The County has established various funds to account for these activities in compliance with legal 
requirements to facilitate management control, or to satisfy the requirements of generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Governmental, proprietary and fiduciary fund types are employed to record 
all financial transactions of the County. This annual report summarizes the activities of the general 
fund, two major revenue funds, twenty-one non-major special revenue funds, two major proprietary 
funds, six non-major proprietary funds, six non-major capital project funds and 25 agency funds. 
Lander County adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated within the 
statues of the State of Nevada. The budget is adopted annually for all governmental and proprietary 
funds of the County. 
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OTHER INFORMATION 
Independent Audit 
 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.624) require an annual audit of the affairs, transactions and 
financial records of the County by independent auditors. The firm of HintonBurdick CPA and 
Advisors, was selected by the County to perform an audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards. The auditor’s report on the financial statements is 
included in the financial section of this report. Their reports on internal controls and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations are included in the compliance section. 
 
Those who wish to obtain a true understanding of the financial condition and results of the 
operations of Lander County are encouraged to review this report, including the detailed notes to the 
financial statements, which are an integral part of the statements. 
 
Acknowledgements 
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services of the Lander County Finance Office staff during the entire fiscal year as well as during the 
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Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Cynthia Benson 
Fiscal Officer 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
The Honorable County Commissioners 
Lander County 
Battle Mountain, Nevada 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lander County, Nevada, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of United State of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Lander County, Nevada as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedules related to pensions, and schedule of 
funding progress as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, combining statements and 
individual major and nonmajor fund and proprietary fund budgetary comparison schedules, Nevada Revised 
Statute 354.6113, and the schedule of fees imposed subject to the provisions of NRS 354.5989, as listed in the 
table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining statements and individual major and nonmajor fund and proprietary fund budgetary 
comparison schedules, Nevada Revised Statute 354.6113, the schedule of fees imposed subject to the 
provisions of NRS 354.5989, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining statements and individual major and nonmajor fund and proprietary fund budgetary comparison 
schedules, Nevada Revised Statute 354.6113, the schedule of fees imposed subject to the provisions of NRS 
354.5989, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 
2017, on our consideration of Lander County, Nevada’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance.  
 

 
 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
St. George, Utah 
December 30, 2017
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LANDER COUNTY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2017 
 

Lander County Management’s discussion and analysis of Lander County, Town of Battle Mountain and 
Town of Austin financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 provides an overview of the 
financial activities, financial performance and financial position of these entities as of June 30, 2017. 
 
We invite and encourage the readers to read this information in conjunction with the financial statement 
presentation and notes to the financial statements to gain a more complete picture of the information 
presented. 
 

 The net position of Lander County increased $17.4 million or 6.8% as a result of this year’s 
operations. Net position of our business – type activities increased by $2.7 million, or 6.4%, and net 
position of our governmental activities increased by $14.7 million, or 6.9%.  
 

 During the year, the County had expenses for governmental activities that were $16.7 million more 
than the $4.1 million generated in program revenues. This phenomenon is normal due to 
governmental activities being financed principally through tax and intergovernmental revenue, rather 
than program revenues. 

 
 The County Option Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax generated $1.38 million in FY 16-17. This money is 

apportioned between the Road & Bridge Dept. and Regional Street and Highway Funds. The 
proceeds of this tax must be used for construction and improvement or the repair and maintenance of 
Lander County roads. 
 

 Lander County’s additional sales tax rate of .25% generated $695,415 up 3.34% from FY 15-16. 
This money is used to accommodate for sewer and water infrastructure; primarily the Battle 
Mountain Wastewater Treatment Facility. 
 

USING THE ANNUAL REPORT 
 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities (on Pages 14-15) provide information about the financial activities of the County as a 
whole and present a longer-term view of the County’s finances. Fund financial statements begin on page 16. 
Regarding governmental activities, these statements express how these services were financed in the short 
term as well as showing what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the 
County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the 
County’s most significant funds. Finally, the fiduciary funds’ statements provide financial information about 
activities for which the County acts solely as an agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 
 
Reporting the County as a Whole 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
Our analysis of the County as a whole begins on page 7. Analysis of the County’s financial statements is 
guided by the important question: “Is the County, as a whole, better off or worse off as a result of the year’s 
activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the 
County as a whole and about its activities in a manner that assists in answering this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the accounting 
basis used by most entities in the private-sector. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken 
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.  
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These two statements report the County’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the County’s 
net position – the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred 
inflows of resources – as one way to measure the financial health or financial position as of June 30, 2017. 
Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net position are one indicator of whether its overall 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, 
however, such as changes in the County’s ad valorem (property) tax base and the condition of the County’s 
roads, buildings, and equipment to accurately assess the overall health of the County. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into two kinds of 
activities: 
 

 Governmental Activities – Most of the County’s basic services are reported here, including the 
Sheriff’s Department, fire and emergency medical services, judicial system, public works, health, 
welfare, culture and recreation, community support, and general administration. Ad valorem 
(property) taxes, net proceeds of mines tax, consolidated taxes, PILT payments, franchise fees, fines, 
and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 
 

 Business-type Activities – The County charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the 
cost of certain services it provides. The County’s communication site, and the Town of Battle 
Mountain’s sewer and water systems are reported here.  
 

Reporting the County’s Most Significant Funds  
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
Our analysis of the County’s Major funds begins on page 16. The fund financial statements provide detailed 
information about the most significant funds – not the County as a whole. Some funds are required to be 
established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Board of Commissioners establishes many 
other funds to assist in controlling and managing money for specific purposes, (i.e., the Airport Capital 
Improvement Fund) or to show that the County is meeting legal responsibilities in administering certain 
taxes, grant funds or other monies. The County’s two kinds of funds – governmental and proprietary – use 
different accounting approaches. 
 

 Governmental funds – Most of the County’s basic services are reported in governmental-type 
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances remaining at 
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called 
“Modified Accrual Accounting,” which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily 
be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the 
County’s general government operations and the basic services provided through those operations. 
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs. We describe the 
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation. 

 
 Proprietary funds – Any time the County charges customers for the services it provides, these 

services are generally reported in proprietary fund types. Proprietary funds are reported in the same 
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. 
In fact, the County’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities we report in the 
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.
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The County as Trustee 
 
Reporting the County’s Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for numerous funds. Fiduciary funds include Agency funds. Agency 
funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other governments and organizations. 
The County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 23-24. These activities are excluded from the 
County’s other financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The 
County has fiduciary responsibility over the cash maintained in these funds. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information essential to the full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other 
 
Supplementary information, including individual fund statements and schedules providing budget-to-actual 
comparisons, are presented following the basic financial statements. These schedules test compliance with 
budgetary constraints and management directives to enhance accountability at the fund and function level. 
 
The County as a Whole 
 
Net position is a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
 

LANDER COUNTY NET POSITION 
 

 
 
For more detailed information see the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position and the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 
 
Net Position: Lander County’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities plus deferred 
inflows of resources by $255.1 million at June 30, 2017. A large portion of net position, 44.9%, reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, improvements, infrastructure and construction 
in progress) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Lander County uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, they are not available for future spending. 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Current and other assets 144,755,792$ 153,115,714$ 13,789,201$  12,274,083$  158,544,993$ 165,389,797$ 
Capital assets 85,828,605     72,829,597     28,595,937    27,292,965    114,424,542   100,122,562   

Total assets 230,584,397   225,945,311   42,385,138    39,567,048    272,969,535   265,512,359   

Deferred outflows of resources 2,814,823       1,826,463       96,314          53,188          2,911,137      1,879,651       
Long-term liabilities outstanding 14,428,251     12,980,289     495,404        372,642        14,923,655     13,352,931     
Other liabilities 4,010,534       2,584,562       135,283        74,981          4,145,817      2,659,543       

Total liabilities 18,438,785     15,564,851     630,687        447,623        19,069,472     16,012,474     

Deferred inflows of resources 1,657,633       13,674,865     56,720          50,090          1,714,353      13,724,955     

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 85,828,605     72,829,597     28,595,937    27,292,965    114,424,542   100,122,562   
Restricted 53,518,044     56,049,125     3,870,827     4,157,636     57,388,871     60,206,761     
Unrestricted 73,956,153     69,653,336     9,327,281     7,671,922     83,283,434     77,325,258     

Total net position 213,302,802$ 198,532,058$ 41,794,045$  39,122,523$  255,096,847$ 237,654,581$ 

Combined total
Business-type

activities
Governmental

activities
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Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of Lander County’s net position, 22.5% represents resources subject to external 
restrictions (statutory, bond covenants, or granting agency) on how they may be used. The remaining balance 
of unrestricted net position of $83.3 million may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2017, Lander County had positive balances in all three categories of net 
position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for separate governmental and business-type 
activities. 
 
Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $14.7 million, thereby accounting for 84.7% 
of the total growth of the net position of Lander County. Business-type activities increased the County’s net 
position by $2.7 million accounting for 15.3% of the total growth. These changes were the result of the 
excess of revenues over expenses. Key elements of the increase are noted on the following table. 
 

LANDER COUNTY CHANGE OF NET POSITION 
 

 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services 2,474,736$     2,123,369$     1,480,699$    1,499,241$    3,955,435$     3,622,610$     
Operating grants and

contributions 434,311         483,049         -                  -                  434,311         483,049         
Capital grants and

contributions 1,274,999       607,144         -                  -                  1,274,999      607,144         
General revenues:

Taxes 16,933,182     16,996,457     695,415        672,936        17,628,597     17,669,393     
State gaming licenses 137,003         138,096         -                  -                  137,003         138,096         
Net proceeds from mines 16,728,988     2,449,300       -                  -                  16,728,988     2,449,300       
Unrestricted investment earnings (391,864)        2,767,597       139,850        109,294        (252,014)        2,876,891       
Other revenue/(expense) 190,747         70,352           -                  -                  190,747         70,352           

Total revenues 37,782,102     25,635,364     2,315,964     2,281,471     40,098,066     27,916,835     

Expenses:
General government 6,863,522       7,223,188       -                  -                  6,863,522      7,223,188       
Judicial 1,911,717       1,860,027       -                  -                  1,911,717      1,860,027       
Public safety 5,493,780       5,253,443       -                  -                  5,493,780      5,253,443       
Public works 3,563,890       3,176,918       -                  -                  3,563,890      3,176,918       
Health and sanitation 489,273         511,574         -                  -                  489,273         511,574         
Welfare 930,974         1,093,339       -                  -                  930,974         1,093,339       
Culture and recreation 1,463,333       1,372,470       -                  -                  1,463,333      1,372,470       
Community support 146,900         159,038         -                  -                  146,900         159,038         
Intergovernmental 42,877           96,881           -                  -                  42,877           96,881           
Water -                   -                   929,566        754,030        929,566         754,030         
Sewer -                   -                   778,867        705,809        778,867         705,809         
Communication Site -                   -                   41,101          42,426          41,101           42,426           

Total expenses 20,906,266     20,746,878     1,749,534     1,502,265     22,655,800     22,249,143     

Increase(Decrease) in net position
before transfers and contributions 16,875,836     4,888,486       566,430        779,206        17,442,266     5,667,692       

Transfers (2,105,092)     (1,207,654)   2,105,092   1,207,654   -                   -                 

Increase(decrease) in net position 14,770,744     3,680,832       2,671,522     1,986,860     17,442,266     5,667,692       
Net position, beginning 198,532,058   194,851,226   39,122,523    37,135,663    237,654,581   231,986,889   
Restatement adjustments -                   -                   -                  -                  -                   -                   
Net position, ending 213,302,802$ 198,532,058$ 41,794,045$  39,122,523$  255,096,847$ 237,654,581$ 

Business-type
activitiesActivities

Governmental
Combined total
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Total revenues: General revenue mainly comprised of various taxes and investment earnings represented 
85.9% of total revenue. Program revenues are revenues directly related to service activities of a function and 
include charges for services, grants and contributions, and related investment earnings, when restricted for 
use in programs. 
 
Program Expenses and Revenues for Governmental Activities 
 
The following table presents program expenses and revenues for governmental activities. To aid in the 
understanding of the Statement of Activities, some additional explanation is given. Of particular interest is 
that the format is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Fund Balance. You will notice expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular 
program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to 
highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the County’s taxpayers. It also identifies 
how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and grants. 
Overall, program revenues were insufficient in covering program expenses for governmental activities. The 
net program expenses of these governmental activities were, therefore, supported by general revenues, - 
mainly taxes received and fund reserves applied. Expenses were up from prior year in public works, judicial 
and public safety due to increases associated with salaries, employee benefits as well as service & supplies. 
 
The three largest revenue sources for the County are ad valorem taxes, consolidated taxes and net proceeds 
of mines taxes. 
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Program Expenses and Revenues for Business-type Activities 
 
This table presents program expenses and revenues for business-type activities. Program revenues generated 
from the water and sewer fund were insufficient to cover program expenses. Expenses not covered by 
program revenues are supported by fund reserves and sales tax. 
 

Charges for services
6.6%

Operating Grants 
and Contributions

1.1%

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

3.4%

Current property 
taxes

27.7%

Sales taxes
10.3%
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The County’s Funds 
 
Lander County uses fund accounting and budgetary integration to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds: The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on current 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s 
current funding requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance serves as a useful measure of net 
resources available for appropriation at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$140.8 million, an increase of $2.1 million over the prior fiscal year. 
 
The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned 
fund balance of the General Fund was $39.7 million. As a measure of liquidity, it is useful to compare the 
unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 371% of total fund 
expenditures, including transfers out. 
 
The CCP Fund was created under the authority granted under Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.6113. 
This statute provides for the construction of capital projects included within the plan for capital 
improvements prepared in accordance with NRS 350.013. Revenues of the fund include net proceeds of 
mines taxes and investment earnings. The ending fund balance is $35.6 million, a decrease of $7.6 million 
from the prior fiscal year. This decrease was derived from the construction of the Battle Mountain recreation 
center and various paving projects. Portions of these funds will be designated for construction of the Battle 
Mountain Levee Project. 
 
The Airport Capital Improvement Fund was created to account for the construction of capital projects for 
the airports. The ending fund balance is $3.1 million, a decrease of $334,003 from the prior fiscal year. This 
decrease was derived from the construction of the Battle Mountain and Austin airports fuel systems projects.  
 
Proprietary Fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. They are accounted for by using full accrual; therefore, no reconciliation is 
required to the government-wide level. 
 
The Battle Mountain Town Water and Sewer Funds were established to account for county-owned and 
operated water and sewer systems serving the Town of Battle Mountain. The fiscal year 2016-2017 operating 
loss for the water system was ($161,004) and net position of the fund increased by $134,370. The operating 
loss for the sewer system was ($75,230) and net position of the fund increased by $2.57 million. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Functions represent the legal level of budgetary control. The final budget appropriation was $14,706,263 
being the same as the original approved budget. Actual expenditures were 72.3% of appropriations and $4.1 
million less than the final budget. 
 
.  
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 
2017 is $114.4 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
improvements other than buildings, building and improvements, equipment, vehicles, construction work in 
progress and infrastructure. The total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the current 
fiscal year was 14.3% 
 
This year’s 14.3% increase in both governmental and business-type activities is due to net current year 
additions and depreciation expense. 
 
Detailed information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6, page 41 of this report. 
 
Long -Term Debt 
 
Lander County has no debt. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
Lander County has been fortunate through the past year of continued sluggish economic performance and 
has not had to face workforce curtailments or layoffs. The County’s principle industry – mining – continues 
to prosper with growth in production as well as continually increasing prices for metals in global markets. 
The net proceeds of mines taxes received by Lander County was, once again, higher than anticipated this 
fiscal year. We are fully aware that the mines in Lander County are subject to the ups and downs predicated 
on the prices of metals produced in Lander County.  
 
Regardless of the current circumstance of economic prosperity and realized revenues (in general) being 
higher than anticipated, Lander County continues to employ a conservative approach to budgeting and fiscal 
management. The course for current and future County budgets and financial management is to apply 
financial resources to improve community infrastructure and construction of projects to benefit the County’s 
citizens and taxpayers many years into the future. 
 
Contacting the County’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general 
overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Department at 
50 State Route 305, Battle Mountain, NV. 89820 
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LANDER COUNTY 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total
Assets

Cash and investments 143,018,447$    9,641,245$      152,659,692$    
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 1,699,717          257,839           1,957,556          
Inventory 398                    19,290             19,688               
Restricted cash -                        3,870,827        3,870,827          
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 2,582,603          162,596           2,745,199          
Construction in progress 15,475,836        2,420,908        17,896,744        

Capital assets being depreciated, net of
    accumulated depreciation

Equipment and vehicles 8,092,828          355,793           8,448,621          
Improvements other than buildings 8,081,669          24,910,174      32,991,843        
Buildings 27,081,133        746,466           27,827,599        
Infrastructure 24,514,536        -                       24,514,536        
   Total assets 230,584,397      42,385,138      272,969,535      

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions 2,814,823          96,314             2,911,137          
Total deferred ouflows of resources 2,814,823          96,314             2,911,137          

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 3,799,453          135,283           3,934,736          
Unearned revenue 21,534               -                       21,534               
Due to other governments 32                      -                       32                      
Noncurrent liabilities:
   Due within one year 189,515             10,013             199,528             
   Due in more than one year 14,428,251        485,391           14,913,642        

Total liabilities 18,438,785        630,687           19,069,472        

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows related to pensions 1,657,633          56,720             1,714,353          
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,657,633          56,720             1,714,353          

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 85,828,605        28,595,937      114,424,542      
Restricted for:
   Capital projects 38,763,520        -                       38,763,520        
   Other purposes 14,754,524        3,870,827        18,625,351        
Unrestricted 73,956,153        9,327,281        83,283,434        

Total net position 213,302,802$   41,794,045$   255,096,847$    
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LANDER COUNTY 
Statement of Activities 

   For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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 Net (Expense) / Revenue

and Change in Net Position
Operating Capital

Functions/Programs Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Primary government: Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:
General government 6,863,522$      1,746,431$      -$                     1,046,539$      (4,070,552)$     -$                     (4,070,552)$     
Judicial 1,911,717        335,665           -                       -                       (1,576,052)       -                       (1,576,052)       
Public safety 5,493,780        12,806             200,547           -                       (5,280,427)       -                       (5,280,427)       
Public works 3,563,890        117,836           148,112           -                       (3,297,942)       -                       (3,297,942)       
Health and sanitation 489,273           97,594             -                       -                       (391,679)          -                       (391,679)          
Welfare 930,974           65,559             85,652             -                       (779,763)          -                       (779,763)          
Culture and recreation 1,463,333        98,845             -                       175,000           (1,189,488)       -                       (1,189,488)       
Community support 146,900           -                       -                       53,460             (93,440)            -                       (93,440)            
Intergovernmental 42,877             -                       -                       -                       (42,877)            -                       (42,877)            
   Total governmental activities 20,906,266      2,474,736        434,311           1,274,999        (16,722,220)     -                       (16,722,220)     

Business-type activities:
Water 929,566           768,562           -                       -                       -                       (161,004)          (161,004)          
Sewer 778,867           703,637           -                       -                       -                       (75,230)            (75,230)            
Communication Site 41,101             8,500               -                       -                       -                       (32,601)            (32,601)            
   Total business-type activities 1,749,534        1,480,699        -                       -                       -                       (268,835)          (268,835)          

Total primary government 22,655,800$   3,955,435$     434,311$        1,274,999$      (16,722,220)$  (268,835)$       (16,991,055)$  

General revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 10,503,728      -                       10,503,728      
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues (consolidated taxes) 3,910,959        -                       3,910,959        
Motor vehicle fuel tax 1,382,146        -                       1,382,146        
Sales taxes -                       695,415           695,415           
Franchise taxes 132,548           -                       132,548           
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,003,801        -                       1,003,801        
State gaming licenses 137,003           -                       137,003           
Net proceeds from mines 16,728,988      -                       16,728,988      
Unrestricted investment earnings  (loss) (391,864)          139,850           (252,014)          
Other revenues 190,747           -                       190,747           

Transfers (2,105,092)       2,105,092        -                       
      Total general revenues 31,492,964      2,940,357        34,433,321      
         Change in net position 14,770,744      2,671,522        17,442,266      
Net position - beginning 198,532,058    39,122,523      237,654,581    
Net position - ending 213,302,802$ 41,794,045$   255,096,847$ 

Program Revenues
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LANDER COUNTY 
Balance Sheet  

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2017 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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Airport Other Total

General CCP Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Improvement Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and investments 42,870,088$     37,602,585$   3,433,328$     59,112,446$   143,018,447     
Accounts receivable 234,110            -                      -                      29,905            264,015            
Property taxes receivable 173,962            -                      -                      34,390            208,352            
Due from other governments 670,125            -                      234,788          322,437          1,227,350         
Inventory -                        -                      -                      398                 398                   
Prepaid items -                        -                      -                      37,230            37,230              

Total assets 43,948,285$     37,602,585$   3,668,116$     59,536,806$   144,755,792$   

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 402,504$          1,307,537$     507,293$        622,478$        2,839,812         
Accrued liabilities 183,744            -                      -                      83,546            267,290            
Retainage payable -                        692,351          -                      -                      692,351            
Unearned revenue -                        -                      -                      21,534            21,534              
Due to other governments 32                     -                      -                      -                      32                     

Total liabilities 586,280            1,999,888       507,293          727,558          3,821,019         

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 147,691            -                      -                      29,505            177,196            

Total deferred inflows of resources 147,691            -                      -                      29,505            177,196            

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Inventory -                        -                      -                      398                 398                   
Restricted for:

General government -                      -                    -                    2,450,033       2,450,033       
Judicial -                        -                      -                      283,789          283,789            
Public safety 22,720              -                      -                      196,241          218,961            
Public works -                        -                      -                      2,824,984       2,824,984         
Welfare -                        -                      -                      8,726,260       8,726,260         
Community support -                        -                      -                      273,217          273,217            
Capital projects -                        35,602,697     3,160,823       -                      38,763,520       

Committed for:
Retiree insurance 1,440,292         -                      -                      -                      1,440,292         
General government -                        -                      -                      2,889,604       2,889,604         
Culture and recreation -                        -                      -                      6,771,740       6,771,740         
Health and sanitation -                        -                      -                      7,289,140       7,289,140         
Capital projects -                        -                      -                      13,884,457     13,884,457       

Assigned for:
Other purposes -                        -                      -                      13,189,880     13,189,880       
FY2018 budget appropriation 2,068,348         -                      -                      -                      2,068,348         

Unassigned 39,682,954       -                      -                      -                      39,682,954       

Total fund balances 43,214,314       35,602,697     3,160,823       58,779,743     140,757,577     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 43,948,285$     37,602,585$   3,668,116$     59,536,806$   144,755,792$   
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds 

To the Statement of Net Position 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - total governmental funds 140,757,577$ 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 128,024,884$    
Accumulated depreciation (42,196,279)      85,828,605     

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and deferred charges or
credits on refundings are applicable to future reporting periods and, therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows related to pensions 2,814,823          
Deferred inflows related to pensions (1,657,633)        1,157,190       

Revenues considered unavailable not reported in the funds. 177,196          

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,  are not
reported in the funds.

Compensated absences (421,144)           
Net pension liability (13,878,980)      
Net OPEB obligation (317,642)           (14,617,766)    

Net position of governmental activities 213,302,802$ 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Airport Other Total

General CCP Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Improvement Funds Funds

Revenues

Taxes 7,813,930$      9,149,065$      206,045$         9,919,954$     27,088,994$   
Licenses and permits 139,763           -                      -                      40,984            180,747          
Intergovernmental 3,816,126        -                      1,046,539        2,432,943       7,295,608       
Charges for services 873,891           -                      -                      1,114,157       1,988,048       
Fines and forfeitures 209,564           -                      -                      -                      209,564          
Investment earnings (142,266)         (374,326)         -                      132,977          (383,615)         
Miscellaneous revenue 177,572           175,000           -                      966,825          1,319,397       

   Total revenues 12,888,580      8,949,739        1,252,584        14,607,840     37,698,743     

Expenditures
Current:

General government 3,969,141        -                      -                      1,308,307       5,277,448       
Judicial 1,843,764        -                      -                      26,298            1,870,062       
Public safety 4,779,541        -                      -                      26,894            4,806,435       
Public works -                      -                      -                      1,773,944       1,773,944       
Health and sanitation -                      -                      -                      322,818          322,818          
Welfare -                      -                      -                      922,260          922,260          
Culture and recreation -                      -                      -                      1,018,123       1,018,123       
Community support -                      -                      -                      81,096            81,096            
Intergovernmental expense 42,877             -                      -                      -                      42,877            

Capital outlay:
General government -                      16,553,353      1,586,587        152,590          18,292,530     
Public safety 6,936               -                      -                      -                      6,936              
Public works -                      -                      -                      909,086          909,086          
Health and sanitation -                      -                      -                      115,171          115,171          
Culture and recreation -                      -                      -                      87,402            87,402            
Community support -                      -                      -                      54,730            54,730            

   Total expenditures 10,642,259      16,553,353      1,586,587        6,798,719       35,580,918     

Excess revenues over (under)
expenditures 2,246,321        (7,603,614)      (334,003)         7,809,121       2,117,825       

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 156,465           -                      -                      77,140            233,605          
Transfers out (56,465)           -                      -                      (177,140)        (233,605)         

Total other financing sources and uses 100,000           -                      -                      (100,000)        -                      

Net change in fund balances 2,346,321        (7,603,614)      (334,003)         7,709,121       2,117,825       

Fund balances - beginning of year 40,867,993      43,206,311      3,494,826        51,070,622     138,639,752   

Fund balances - end of year 43,214,314$    35,602,697$    3,160,823$      58,779,743$   140,757,577$ 
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 2,117,825$       

Revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in governmental funds.  This represents the change in unavailable
revenues for property taxes that are deferred in the funds. 83,359

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the difference 
between depreciation expense and capital outlay in the current period.

Capital outlay 17,402,660$   
Depreciation expense (4,393,690)      13,008,970       

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
when made.  However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in 
the statement of net position because the reported net pension liability is
measured a year before the report date.  Pension expense, which is the change
in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pension, is reported in the statement of 
activities.

Pension contributions 1,255,712$     
Pension expense (1,600,899)      (345,187)           

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e. sales, trade-ins, and disposals) is to decrease net position. (9,962)               

Some changes in long term liabilities in the statement of activities do not reduce the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expense reductions in
the governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences (71,727)           
Net change in OPEB obligation (12,534)           (84,261)             

Change in net position of governmental activities 14,770,744$    
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Nonmajor

Battle Battle Mt. Lewis
Mountain Mountain Communication Combined

Water Sewer Site Total
Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and investments 1,608,063$           7,849,119$           184,063$              9,641,245$           
Accounts receivable 76,780                  62,371                  225                       139,376                
Due from other governments -                           118,463                -                           118,463                
Inventory 19,290                  -                           -                           19,290                  

Total current assets 1,704,133             8,029,953             184,288                9,918,374             

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash 1,957,335             1,913,492             -                           3,870,827             
Capital assets:

Land 10,950                  151,646                -                           162,596                
Buildings 578,846                770,298                -                           1,349,144             
Improvements 19,260,391           13,842,479           -                           33,102,870           
Furniture, equipment & vehicles 496,972                839,287                290,973                1,627,232             
Construction in Progress 192,316                2,228,592             -                           2,420,908             

Less accumulated depreciation (3,713,887)           (6,116,509)           (236,417)              (10,066,813)         
Total noncurrent assets 18,782,923           13,629,285           54,556                  32,466,764           

Total assets 20,487,056           21,659,238           238,844                42,385,138           

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 48,157                  48,157                  -                           96,314                  

Total deferred outflows of resources 48,157                  48,157                  -                           96,314                  

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 88,450                  10,979                  151                       99,580                  
Accrued wages and benefits 9,892                    9,892                    -                           19,784                  
Customer deposits 12,966                  12,966                  -                           25,932                  

Total current liabilities 111,308                33,837                  151                       145,296                

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB obligation 6,103                    4,388                    -                           10,491                  
Net pension liability 237,450                237,450                -                           474,900                

Total long-term debt 243,553                241,838                -                           485,391                

Total liabilities 354,861                275,675                151                       630,687                

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 28,360                  28,360                  -                           56,720                  

Total deferred outflows of resources 28,360                  28,360                  -                           56,720                  

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 16,825,588           11,715,793           54,556                  28,595,937           
Restricted 1,957,335             1,913,492             -                           3,870,827             
Unrestricted 1,369,069             7,774,075             184,137                9,327,281             

Total net position 20,151,992$         21,403,360$         238,693$              41,794,045$         
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Nonmajor

Battle Battle Mt. Lewis
Mountain Mountain Communication Combined

Water Sewer Site Total
Operating Revenues

Charges for sales and services
Communication use fees -$                      -$                      8,500$               8,500$               
Water use fees 764,988 -                        -                        764,988
Sewer use fees -                        703,032             -                        703,032

Rents 605                    605                    -                        1,210
Miscelleneous 2,969                 -                        -                        2,969

    Total operating revenues 768,562             703,637             8,500                 1,480,699          

Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 116,426             116,047             -                        232,473
Employee benefits 87,498               85,694               -                        173,192
Service, supplies and other 317,658             212,258             4,729                 534,645
Depreciation 407,984             364,868             36,372               809,224

    Total operating expenses 929,566             778,867             41,101               1,749,534          

Operating income (loss) (161,004)           (75,230)             (32,601)             (268,835)           

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
County option sales tax -                        695,415             -                        695,415
Investment earnings 38,193 101,657             -                        139,850             

  Total non-operating revenue (expense) 38,193               797,072             -                        835,265             

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (122,811)           721,842             (32,601)             566,430             

Capital contribution from governmental activities 257,181             1,847,911          -                        2,105,092          

Change in net position 134,370             2,569,753          (32,601)             2,671,522          

Total net position, beginning of year 20,017,622        18,833,607        271,294             39,122,523        

Total net position, end of year 20,151,992$     21,403,360$     238,693$           41,794,045$     
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Nonmajor

Battle Battle Mt. Lewis
Mountain Mountain Communication Combined

Water Sewer Site Total
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 778,921$           711,455$        9,475$               1,499,851$     
Cash paid to suppliers (252,238)           (215,542)        (5,657)               (473,437)         
Cash paid to employees (163,962)           (161,892)        -                        (325,854)         

Net cash flows from operating activities 362,721             334,021          3,818                 700,560          

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
County option sales tax -                        695,415          -                        695,415          

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities -                        695,415          -                        695,415          

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets -                        (7,105)            -                        (7,105)             

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities -                        (7,105)            -                        (7,105)             

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment earnings 38,193               101,657          -                        139,850          

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 400,914             1,123,988       3,818                 1,528,720       

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,164,484          8,638,623       180,245             11,983,352     

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,565,398$       9,762,611$    184,063$           13,512,072$  

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash flows from
operating activities:

Net operating income/(loss) (161,004)$         (75,230)$        (32,601)$           (268,835)$       
  Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net 
  cash provided by operating activities:
    Depreciation/amortization 407,984             364,868          36,372               809,224          

Pension expense (55,781)             (55,781)          -                        (111,562)         
Employer pension contributions 93,223               93,223            -                        186,446          

    Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
      (Increase)/Decrease in receivables 7,583                 5,042              975                    13,600            
      Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payables 65,420               (3,284)            (928)                  61,208            
      Increase/(Decrease) in accrued liabilities & deposits 4,555                 4,555              -                        9,110              
      Increase/(Decrease) in OPEB obligation 741                    628                 -                        1,369              

Net cash flows from operating activities 362,721$          334,021$       3,818$               700,560$       

Supplemental schedule of non-cash 
   financing and investing activities:

Capital contribution from governmental activities 257,181$           1,847,911$     -$                      2,105,092$     
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Agency Investment
Funds Trust Fund

Assets
Cash and investments 2,161,994$      1,398,079$      

Total Assets 2,161,994$      1,398,079$      

Liabilities
Funds held in trust 2,161,994$      -$                     

Total Liabilities 2,161,994        -                       

Net Position
Funds held in trust for pool participants -                       1,398,079        

Total Net Position -$                     1,398,079$      
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Investment
Trust Fund

Additions
Investment income 11,421$           
Capital share transactions (67,589)            

Total Additions (56,168)            

Change in Net Position (56,168)            

Net Position, beginning of year 1,454,247        

Net Position, end of year 1,398,079$      
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 
Description of Government-wide Financial Statements  
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. All 
fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to 
external customers for support. Likewise, when applicable, the primary government is reported separately 
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The County (government) is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada with a County Commission 
comprised of five commissioners elected at large. The accompanying financial statements present the 
government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially 
accountable.  Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations, even 
though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds 
of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government. As to the 
County there are no discretely presented component units which are included to form the reporting entity. 
 
Blended Component Units. The County Commissioners, by state statute, act as the governing board for the 
unincorporated towns of Austin and Battle Mountain. These towns are considered blended component units of 
the County and are reported as special revenue funds.       
 
Jurisdictions that are not considered to be part of the County include the incorporated Town of Kingston, 
Kingston Water District, Kingston Volunteer Fire Department, Austin Fair and Recreation, Battle Mountain 
Fair and Recreation, Austin Sewer and Water District #2, Lander County School District, Lander County 
Hospital District, and Lander County General Improvement District #1. 
 
Basis of Presentation – Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The 
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds, while 
business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds. Separate financial 
statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter 
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. 
 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Interfund activities relating to services provided and used between functions are not eliminated. 
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various 
functions concerned. 
 

81



 LANDER COUNTY 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 June 30, 2017 
 

 
26 

 
NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 

 
Basis of Presentation – Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its fiduciary funds 
and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise 
funds, each displayed in a separate column. 
 
All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major 
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 
 
The County reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for 
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The retiree insurance 
fund is reported with the general fund. 
 
CCP (Construction of Capital Projects) Fund – established pursuant to NRS 354.6113 and is used to 
account for the construction of capital projects included in the plan for capital improvement prepared 
pursuant to NRS 350.0035. 
 
Airport Capital Improvement Fund – established to account for the construction of capital projects 
for the airport. 

 
The County reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

Battle Mountain Water Fund – accounts for operations of the County’s water system. 
 
Battle Mountain Sewer Fund – accounts for operations of the County’s sewer system. 

 
Additionally the County reports the following fund types: 
         

Fiduciary Funds 
 

Agency Funds - are custodial in nature and cannot be used to support the County’s own programs. 
 
Investment Trust Fund – accounts for the external portion of the county investment pool. 

 
During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual 
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds. 
While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the 
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in 
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as 
internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in 
business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as 
internal balances in the business-type activities column. 
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund 
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund 
financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial 
statements.  
 
Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is 
included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in 
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the 
business-type activities column. 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and 
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current 
financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or 
events for recognition in the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time 
requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue 
source (within 60 days of year end). Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is 
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year 
end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
government.
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for 
reporting its assets and liabilities. 

 
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 
 
Deposits and Investments 

 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and 
other financial institutions, deposits in other types of accounts or cash management pools that have the 
general characteristics of demand deposit accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition.  Statutes authorize the County to invest in the State 
Investment Pool, bonds and debentures of the United States, obligations of the Federal Land Banks, bills and 
notes of the U.S. Treasury, obligations of the U.S. Postal Service, obligations of the Federal National 
Mortgage Association, certificates of deposits, short-term bonds of local governments and Banker’s 
acceptance. All investments are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as adjustments 
to investment earnings.  Fair market values are based on quoted market prices. 

 
Receivables / Due from Other Governments 
 
Receivables in the governmental funds consist principally of franchise taxes and charges for services due 
from various businesses. Amounts due from other governments consist primarily of taxes due from the State 
of Nevada and grant revenues due from various granting agencies. All receivables and amounts due from 
other governments are considered by management to be fully collectible and therefore, no allowance for 
doubtful accounts is necessary.  
 
Receivables in the proprietary funds represent service billings to customers and are shown net of an allowance 
for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on professional judgment and 
historical information. An allowance for doubtful accounts was not deemed necessary or recorded. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories for proprietary funds consist of general supplies and construction materials and are valued at 
lower of cost or market on a first-in/first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventory for the aged services fund consist of 
food inventory valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) basis. The cost of such inventories is recorded 
as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. For all other funds, Lander County 
charges consumable supplies as expenditures against appropriations at the time of purchase. Any inventories 
of such supplies at June 30 are not material to the individual funds and are not recognized in these financial 
statements. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 
and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental and business-type activity columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial,  
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
individual cost of more than $50,000 for infrastructure assets, land, buildings and improvements, and $5,000 
for all other classifications of capital assets. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date 
of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
  
      Buildings & Improvements 5-65 years 
      Improvements (other than buildings) 10-60 years 
      Equipment and Vehicles 3-50 years 
      Infrastructure 30 years 
 
In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as 
capital outlay expenditures by the governmental fund upon acquisition.  
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting 
in this category on the statement of net position which is deferred outflows related to pensions (see Note 12). 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has one type of item that qualify for reporting 
in this category on the statement of net position which deferred inflows related to pensions (see Note 12). The 
governmental funds balance sheet reports unavailable revenue – property taxes. These amounts are deferred 
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deductions from the 
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Net Position Flow Assumption 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – 
net  
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a 
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the  
government’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net 
position is applied. 
 
Fund Balance Flow Assumptions 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to 
report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial 
statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 
applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using 
any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund 
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned 
fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 
 
Fund Balance Policies 
 
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations 
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the use 
of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund 
balance). 
 
The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The County 
Commission is the highest level of decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an 
ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by 
the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or 
revise the limitation. 

 
Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The County Finance Director is authorized 
to assign amounts to a specific purpose in accordance with the County’s budget policy. The County 
Commission may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between 
estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, 
assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to 
be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to 
either remove or revise a commitment. 
 
The Board also adopted a policy to maintain a minimum level of unrestricted fund balance for the General 
Fund at 8.3% of total expenditures, less any amounts budgeted within the General Fund for capital 
improvements or capital expenditures. By adopting this policy, the County wishes to provide for continuing 
operations of the County General Fund operations through the first month of the ensuing fiscal year. 
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 
 
Program Revenues 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, 
and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
 
Property Taxes 
 
All real property within Lander County is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each 
parcel being subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the 
appraised value during the years between physical appraisals. The assessed valuation of the property and its 
improvements is being assessed at 35% of “taxable value’ as defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is 
developed by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in which the property is 
located. 
 
The maximum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at $5.00 per hundred dollars of assessed 
valuation; however, as a result of the 1979 legislative sessions, the tax rate was further limited to $3.66 per 
hundred dollars of assessed valuation unless an additional rate is approved by the electorate. In 2005 the 
Nevada State Legislature passed Assembly Bill 489 which provides for a partial abatement of the ad valorem 
taxes levied on qualified property. For qualified property, the abatement will limit the increase of property 
taxes based on the previous year’s assessed value. 
 
Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1 of the year for which the taxes are 
levied. Taxes on property are due on the third Monday in August; however, they may be made in four 
installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first Mondays in October, January and March. 
Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment within ten days of the installment due date. 
After a two year waiting period, a tax deed is issued conveying the property to the County with a lien for back 
taxes and accumulated charges. Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as described by 
statute by paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before sale. 
 
Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and 
the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation and tax 
rates described above. 
 
The major classifications of personal property are commercial and mobile homes. In Lander County, taxes on 
motor vehicles are collected by the County Recorder and remitted to the State. The taxes are then returned to 
the County of origin to be apportioned based on a statutory formula. 

 
Taxes on net proceeds of mines are determined by the Nevada Tax Commission. Billing and collection 
functions are performed by the State with amounts remitted to the County. 
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Battle Mountain 
water fund, Battle Mountain sewer fund, and Mt. Lewis communication site fund are charges to customers for 
sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Compensated Absences 

 
Agreements with various employees’ associations provide for payment of total accrued vacation time up to a 
specified maximum. Accumulated sick leave benefits are payable to terminated employees who have 
accumulated a set number of hours up to a specified maximum, depending on the particular employee 
association. The various agreements also provide for an employee to convert accumulated sick leave over a 
specified maximum to annual leave. Employees who have earned 720 hours of accumulated sick leave will 
receive 24 hours of annual leave for every 40 hours over 720 hours.  
 
Agreements with various employees’ associations provide for a longevity bonus to be paid based upon an 
employee’s length of employment with the County. The minimum length of service to be considered for a 
bonus is five years. Eligible employees as of June 30 will be considered for a bonus. The amount of bonus 
varies depending on the employee association and the length of service with the County as of June 30. 
 
The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide 
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for 
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. In proprietary funds, compensated absences are 
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. 
 
Unemployment Insurance 
 
Lander County and its unincorporated towns have elected to adopt the “reimbursement method” of providing 
for unemployment benefits to its eligible employees. Under this self-insurance method, the employer must 
reimburse the State of Nevada Employment Security Department for all eligible paid claims determined by 
the State. 
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 
 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
assets and liabilities, contingent assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenditures.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Prior-Year Summarized Comparative Information 

 
Comparative data for the prior year has been extracted from the 2015-2016 financial statements and 
reclassified where necessary. It has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to 
provide an understanding of changes in the government’s financial position and operations.  However, 
comparative data has not been presented in all statements because their inclusion would make certain 
statements unduly complex and difficult to understand. Such information does not include sufficient detail to 
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the County’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2016, from which the summarized information was derived. 
 
 
NOTE 2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund balances and 
net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  This 
difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net position versus the 
current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets.  The details of these differences are 
reported in the reconciliation on page 17.     

 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net position of 
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.  These differences are the 
result of converting from the current resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis for 
governmental fund statements to the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis used for 
government-wide statements.  The details of these differences are reported in the reconciliation on page 19. 
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NOTE 3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 
 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
Lander County adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated in Chapter 354 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. The provisions of this Act include the following major procedures to establish the 
budgetary data which is reflected in these financial statements. 
 

1. On or before April 15, the Board of County Commissioners submits a tentative budget to the 
Nevada State Department of Taxation for the next fiscal year, commencing on July 1. The tentative 
budget includes the proposed expenditures and means of financing them. 
 

2. Public budget hearings on the tentative budget are held on the third Monday in May.  
 

3. Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made to the tentative 
budget and adopts a final budget by a favorable vote of a majority of the Board. The final budget 
must then be forwarded to the Nevada Tax Commission for final hearings and approval. 
 

4. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) for all funds except the fiduciary funds, which do not require 
budgets. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records is employed to enhance management 
control during the year. 
 

5. All budget amounts presented in these financial statements and schedules reflect the original budget 
and amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets 
during the year). Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 
 

6. Budget amounts within funds, and between funds, may be transferred if amounts do not exceed the 
original budget. Such transfers are to be approved by the budget officer and/or the Board of County 
Commissioners, depending on established criteria. Budget augmentations in excess of original 
budgetary amounts may not be made without prior approval of the Lander County Board of 
Commissioners, following a scheduled and noticed public hearing, as necessary, and transmittal to 
the Department of Taxation. 
 

7. The legal level of budgetary control is at the function level (excluding debt service function) for the 
General Fund, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects funds, and by the sum of operating and non-
operating expenses in the Proprietary Funds, except as specifically permitted by NRS 354.626. 

 
Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and Administrative Code 

 
Lander County conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the 
year, except for the following: 
 

Actual expenditures exceeded total appropriations of the Juvenile Administrative Assessment Fund 
by $167, an apparent violation of NRS 354.626.  

 
See additional compliance findings in the Schedule of Findings and Recommendations on page 139. 
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments 
 
 
Deposits 
 
To facilitate efficient management of County resources, the County maintains pooled operating and 
investment accounts unless cash is restricted and required to be maintained separately or is held by other 
custodians on behalf of the County, such as certain imprest bank and petty cash accounts. 
 
Cash and deposits are carried at cost. The following schedule summarizes cash and investments for the 
County at June 30, 2017: 
 

Cash and Investment balances held by:
Governmental funds 143,016,690$      
Enterprise funds 13,512,072
Fiduciary funds 2,161,994

Total cash and investments 158,690,756$      

 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Deposits Custodial credit risk is the risk in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be 
returned. The County’s bank deposits are covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
insurance and collateralized by the Office of the State Treasurer/Nevada Collateral Pool. 
 
Investments 
 
The County has a formal investment policy that, in the opinion of management, is designed to insure 
conformity with State Statutes and seeks to limit exposure to investment risks.  
 
All investments are governed by the Board of Commissioners’ policy of the “prudent person” rule. The 
prudent person rule is a standard to guide those with responsibility for investing the money of others. Such 
fiduciaries, must act as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek 
reasonable income, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculation. 
 
Permitted investments allowed by the County’s investment policy include the Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP) managed by the Office of the State Treasurer, mutual funds, agency discount notes, government 
agency securities (maturity of 10 years or less), AAA rated mortgage backed securities (through an 
investment advisor only), time certificates of deposit, and U.S. Treasuries (maturity of 10 years or less). 
 
Investment in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool is carried at fair value, which is the 
same as the value of the pool shares. The Local Government Investment Pool is an external investment pool 
administered by the Treasurer of the State of Nevada, with oversight provided by the Board of Finance. 
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued 
 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the County had the following investments, ratings, and maturities: 
 

Weighted
Fair Credit Average

Value Rating (1) Maturity (2)
Investments:

Local Government Investment Pool 11,908,030$        * 310 days
Money Market 820,232               AAA/Aaa N/A
Corporate Bonds 3,501,073            A1-Aaa/A-AA+ 696 days
US Government Securities 9,291,630            AAA/AA+ 1,035 days
Federal Agency Issues 59,293,335          AAA/AA+ 943 days
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 47,976,456          FDIC Insured 1,102 days

Total investments 132,790,756$      

* This information is not readily available.

(1)

(2) Interest rate risk is estimated using the weighted average days to maturity.

Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate the associated credit risk.  

 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
The County holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The County categorizes its 
fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level  1 
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable 
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 
The governmental securities and federal agency issues, as listed above, are valued using quoted market prices 
(Level 1 inputs). The money market, certificates of deposits and the corporate bonds, as listed above, are 
valued using significant other observable inputs (Level 2 inputs).   
 
The Nevada Local Government’s Investment Pool (LGIP) has the following recurring fair value 
measurements as of June 30, 2017: 
 

Level 1 inputs 1,217,001$     
Level 2 inputs 10,691,029     
Total LGIP investment 11,908,030$   

 
 
 Interest Rate Risk   
 
Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security, especially a bond, resulting from a 
rise in interest rates. This risk can be reduced by diversifying the durations of the fixed-income investments 
held at a given time. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, 
the County’s investment policy limits the maximum maturity of investments to 10 years. 
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued 
 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation and is a 
function of the credit quality ratings of investments. The County’s investments in U.S. Government Securities 
are rated AAA by Moody’s Investor Services. The LGIP is an unrated external investment pool, however, the 
County’s investment policy allows this type of investment. The County’s money market accounts consist of 
high-quality, short-term instruments backed by U.S. Treasury obligations. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a 
single issuer. The County’s policy reserves the right to place a limit on the amount invested with any one 
financial institution. As of June 30, 2017, 6.38% of the County’s total investments were in Fannie Mae, 
13.31% of the County’s total investments were in the Federal Home Loan Bank, and 14.26% of the County’s 
total investments were in the Federal Farm Credit Bureau. 
 .
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued 
 
 
 Interest Earnings & Fair Market Value Assigned to Other Funds 
 
Investment income of $1,384,749 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 associated with various funds was 
assigned to the General Fund and CCP Fund as required by County policy. The schedule below shows the 
related funds and the amount assigned to the General and CCP Funds.  

 

General CCP Fund Total

Non-major Governmental Funds
Road & Bridge 130,031$      52,012$        78,019$           130,031$         
Indigent Fund 40,711          16,285          24,427             40,711             
State Medical Indigent 156,190        62,476          93,714             156,190           
Agricultural extension 6,949            2,780            4,170               6,949               
Aged Services 50,584          20,233          30,350             50,584             
Lander County Landfill 85,362          34,145          51,217             85,362             
Airport 39,678          15,871          23,807             39,678             
Lander Economic Development 1,454            582               872                  1,454               
DOE Nuclear Repository 668               267               401                  668                  
Regional Streets & Highway 59,938          23,975          35,963             59,938             
Austin Capital Acquisition 362               145               217                  362                  
Town of Austin General Fund 1,481            593               889                  1,481               
Town of Battle Mountain Fund 11,976          4,791            7,186               11,976             
Equipment/Building Replacement 193,944        77,578          116,366           193,944           
Capital Acquisition 81,820          32,728          49,092             81,820             
Culture and Recreation 143,875        57,550          86,325             143,875           
Battle Mountain Capital Acquisition 2,213            885               1,328               2,213               
Emergency Maintenance 80,528          32,211          48,317             80,528             
Reserve Fund 10,584          4,234            6,350               10,584             
Title III SRS/CRA 4,436            1,774            2,661               4,436               
Administration Assessment Fees 1,068            427               641                  1,068               
Genetic Marker Testing 17                 7                   10                    17                    
Forensic Services 135               54                 81                    135                  
Drug Court 1,566            627               940                  1,566               
Court Facility Fee 3,330            1,332            1,998               3,330               
Juvenile Administration Assessment 252               101               151                  252                  
Mine Map Fees 4,071            1,628            2,442               4,071               
Technology Fees 28,511          11,404          17,106             28,511             
Airport Capital 79,423          31,769          47,654             79,423             
Court Facility Capital 8,052            3,221            4,831               8,052               

Enterprise Funds
Mt. Lewis Communications Site 4,249            1,700            2,550               4,249               
Battle Mountain Water 41,404          16,561          24,842             41,404             
Battle Mountain Sewer 109,887        43,955          65,932             109,887           

Total 1,384,749$  553,900$     830,849$        1,384,749$     

Interest 
Earnings & 
Fair Market 

Value 
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued 
 
 
External Investment Pool 
 
Lander County administers an external investment pool combining Lander County funds with voluntary 
investments from the Battle Mountain Fair and Recreation, Austin Fair and Recreation, Town of Kingston, 
Kingston Water District, and Kingston Volunteer Fire. The Board of Commissioners has overall responsibility 
for investment of funds, including the external investment pool in accordance with NRS 355.175. The Lander 
County Treasurer is delegated investment responsibilities. Monthly, Wells Fargo determines the fair value of 
the investments held in the State of Nevada Local Government Pooled Investment Fund. Each participant’s 
share is equal to their original investment plus or minus monthly allocations of interest income, and realized 
and unrealized gains and losses. The County has not provided nor obtained any legally binding guarantees to 
support the value of shares. 

Investment Type
Fair Value/ 

Carrying Amount
Principal Amount/ 
Number of Shares Interest Rate Maturity Date

Local Government 
Investment Pool 11,908,030$      11,908,030$         Variable July 1, 2017  

 

Assets:
Local Government Investment Pool 11,908,030$       

Net Position Held in Trust for Pool Participants:
Net Position consists of:

Internal participant shares 10,509,951         
External participant shares 1,398,079           

Total Participant Shares Outstanding ($1.00 par) 11,908,030$       

Price per share ($11,908,030/11,908,030) 1.00$                  

Net Increase in Net Position Resulting from Operations:
Investment Income 80,538$              
Capital share transactions 831                     

Total increase/(decrease) in net position 81,369                

Net Position, beginning of year 11,826,661

Net Position, end of year 11,908,030$       

Statement of Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

External Investment Pool Condensed Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position

6/30/2017

External Investment Pool Condensed Financial Statements
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NOTE 5. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers  
 
 
Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursed expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) 
payments between funds are made. 

 
There were no interfund balances as of June 30, 2017.  

 
Transfers between funds occur primarily to finance programs accounted for in one fund with resources 
collected in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.  Interfund transfers for the year ended 
June 30, 2017 are shown in the following table: 

 

Lander
County

Transfer in: General Airports Total

General Fund -$                  -$                  -$                    520$                125,000$         30,945$           156,465$   
Non-major Governmental Funds

Road & Bridge -                    7,257            -                      -                      -                      -                      7,257         
Austin Capital Acquisition -                    -                    1,948               -                      -                      -                      1,948         
Battle Mountain Capital Acquisition -                    -                    11,470             -                      -                      -                      11,470       
District Drug Court 25,000          -                    -                      -                      -                      -                      25,000       
Court Facilities Capital 31,465          -                    -                      -                      -                      -                      31,465       

Total 56,465$        7,257$          13,418$           520$                125,000$         30,945$           233,605$   

Transfers out:

Capital 
Acquisition

Technology 
Fees

Administrative 
Assessment 

Fees
Court Facility 

Fees

Non-major
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NOTE 6. Capital Assets 
 

 
The following table summarizes the changes to capital assets for governmental activities during the year: 

 

Governmental Activities: Balance Balance
6/30/2016 Additions Deletions 6/30/2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 2,582,603$     -$                    -$                     2,582,603$       
Construction in progress 3,765,325 12,175,518     (465,007)          15,475,836       

Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 6,347,928       12,175,518     (465,007)          18,058,439       

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 19,653,740     495,263          -                       20,149,003       
Buildings 31,600,615 182,835          -                       31,783,450       
Equipment & vehicles 18,422,353 1,338,431       (61,554)            19,699,230       
Infrastructure 34,659,142 3,675,620       -                       38,334,762       

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 104,335,850 5,692,149 (61,554) 109,966,445

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements other than buildings (11,033,348) (1,033,986)      -                       (12,067,334)     
Buildings (4,165,033) (537,284)         -                       (4,702,317)       
Equipment & vehicles (10,590,837) (1,067,157)      51,592              (11,606,402)     
Infrastructure (12,064,963) (1,755,263)      -                       (13,820,226)     

Total accumulated depreciation (37,854,181) (4,393,690) 51,592              (42,196,279)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 66,481,669 1,298,459       (9,962)              67,770,166       

Governmental activities capital assets, net 72,829,597$   13,473,977$   (474,969)$        85,828,605$     

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the County as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government 1,823,079$     
Judicial 7,002              
Public safety 474,552          
Public works 1,573,310       
Health and sanitation 159,715          
Welfare 8,714              
Culture and recreation 347,318          

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 4,393,690$     

 
.   
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NOTE 6. Capital Assets, Continued 
 

 
The following table summarizes the changes to capital assets for business-type activities during the year: 

 

Business Type Activities: Balance Balance
6/30/2016 Additions Deletions Transfers 6/30/2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 10,950$          151,646$        -$                     -$                     162,596$        
Construction in progress 532,327          1,888,581       -                       -                       2,420,908       

Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 543,277          2,040,227       -                       -                       2,583,504       

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 33,081,614     21,256            -                       -                       33,102,870     
Buildings 1,349,144       -                      -                       -                       1,349,144       
Equipment & vehicles 1,576,519       50,713            -                       -                       1,627,232       

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 36,007,277     71,969            -                       -                       36,079,246     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements other than buildings (7,514,471)      (678,225)         -                       -                       (8,192,696)
Buildings (573,245)         (29,433)           -                       -                       (602,678)
Equipment & vehicles (1,169,873)      (101,566)         -                       -                       (1,271,439)

Total accumulated depreciation (9,257,589)      (809,224)         -                       -                       (10,066,813)    

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 26,749,688     (737,255)         -                       -                       26,012,433     

Business type activities capital assets, net 27,292,965$   1,302,972$     -$                     -$                     28,595,937$   

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type activies as follows:

Business Type Activities:
Water 407,984$        
Sewer 364,868          
Communication Site 36,372            

Total depreciation expense - business type activities 809,224$       

 
Changes in construction in progress are summarized as follows: 
 
The County is currently working on the following projects: Battle Mountain recreation center, Purple Pipe 
project, Flood Leave, Lift Station Rehab, Well 3 Upgrades, Austin Airport projects, Battle Mountain Airport 
projects, various paving projects and various others. 

98



 LANDER COUNTY 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 June 30, 2017 
 

 
43 

 
NOTE 7. Long-Term Debt 
 
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

Balance Balance Current
Governmental activities: 6/30/2016 Additions Retirements 6/30/2017 Portion

Accrued Compensated Absences 349,417$        206,508$         (134,781)$       421,144$         189,515$   
Net OPEB Obligation 305,108          80,650             (68,116)           317,642           -                 
Net Pension Liability 12,483,002     2,996,877        (1,600,899)      13,878,980      -                 

Total governmental long term liabilities $  13,137,527 $      3,284,035 $   (1,803,796)  $    14,617,766 $   189,515 

  
For governmental activities, compensated absences, other post-employment benefits (OPEB), and net position 
liabilities are generally liquidated through the General Fund. 
 

Balance Balance Current
Business-type activities 6/30/2016 Additions Retirements 6/30/2017 Portion

Accrued Compensated Absences 6,610$            6,126$             (2,723)$           10,013$           10,013$     
Net OPEB Obligation 9,122              2,959               (1,590)             10,491             -                 
Net Pension Liability 363,520          179,598           (68,218)           474,900           -                 

Total business-type long term liabilities $       379,252 $         188,683 $        (72,531)  $         495,404 $     10,013 

 
 

 
NOTE 8. Net Proceeds of Mines 
 

 
The County receives net proceeds of mines taxes through the State of Nevada that is then apportioned by the 
County. The County receives a payment in June of each year as a settlement payment for the previous 
calendar year(s). This amount is recognized as revenue when received, consistent with prior years. 
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NOTE 9. Available Borrowing Capacity 
 

 
The lawful County government general obligation debt limit is established under NRS 244A.059 not to 
exceed an amount equal to 10 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of taxable property situated 
within the County. At June 30, 2017, the general obligation debt limit of Lander County was $1,068,973,861. 
The County has general obligation long-term debt outstanding at year end of $0. Accordingly, its legal 
borrowing capacity is $1,068,973,861 at June 30, 2017. 

 
The lawful unincorporated town government general obligation debt limit is established under NRS 269.425 
not to exceed an amount equal to 25 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of taxable property 
situated within the town. At June 30, 2017, the general obligation debt limit of the unincorporated towns of 
Austin and Battle Mountain was $1,113,596 and $11,764,324 respectively. As none of these towns had 
general obligation debt at June 30, 2017, these amounts are also their available borrowing capacity amounts. 
 

 
NOTE 10. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
 
Lander County is obligated as follows: 

 
Grants Received 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, 
may constitute a liability in the applicable funds. The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if 
any, to be immaterial. 

 
Litigation 
The County is party to legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental operations.  County officials 
believe these legal proceedings are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the financial position of the 
County. 
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NOTE 11. Risk Management 
 
 
The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County has joined together with 
similar public agencies (cities, counties, and special districts) throughout the State of Nevada to create a pool 
under the Nevada Interlocal Cooperation Act. The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (Pool) is a public 
entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its members.  
 
The County pays an annual premium and specific deductibles, as necessary, to the Pool for its general 
insurance coverage. The Pool is considered a self-sustaining risk pool that will provide liability coverage for 
its members up to $10,000,000 per event and a $10,000,000 general aggregate per member. Property, crime 
and equipment breakdown coverage is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with various 
sublimits established for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown, and money and securities. 
 
The County has entered into an agreement with PACT (Public Agency Compensation Trust), a self-insured 
association for workers’ compensation coverage. The purpose of the County’s participation is to enhance its 
ability to control costs and to better serve and protect its employees. PACT is bound by statute as defined in 
NRS 616A-616D. The County pays premiums based on payroll costs to the PACT. The PACT is considered a 
self-sustaining pool that will provide coverage based on established statutory limits. 
 
The County continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including specific risks of loss not 
covered by the Pool (airport liability, bonding and boiler coverage) and employee health and accident 
insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any 
of the past three fiscal years. 
 
The County has obtained insurance to cover the costs of closure and post-closure of the Battle Mountain 
landfill (see Note 14). 
 

 
NOTE 12.        Retirement and Pension Plan 
 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) 
 
Plan description 
 
PERS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system 
which includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. The System was established by the Nevada 
Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948. The System is administered to provide a reasonable base income 
to qualified employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have 
been removed or substantially impaired by age or disability. 
 
Benefits provided 
 
Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years 
of accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 
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NOTE 12.        Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued 
 
 
consecutive months with special provisions for members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, and 
July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan 
include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits. 
 
Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited 
year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this factor is 2.67% of 
average compensation. For members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% service 
time factor and for regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there is a 2.25% factor. The 
System offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the 
retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime 
and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. 
 
Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579. 
 
Vesting 
 
Regular members entering the System prior to January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five 
years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular 
members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years 
of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with thirty years of service. Regular members who 
entered the System on or after July 1, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or at 
age 62 with 10 years of service or at age 55 with 30 years of service or any age with 33 1/3 years of service. 
 
Police/Fire members entering the System prior to January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 
five years of service, at age 55 with ten years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age 
with twenty-five years of service. Police/Fire members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are 
eligible for retirement at 65 with five years of service, or age 60 with ten years of service, or age 50 with 
twenty years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Only service performed in a position as a 
police officer or firefighter may be counted towards to eligibility for retirement as Police/Fire accredited 
service. 
 
The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a 
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of 
average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon 
completion of five years of service. 
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NOTE 12.        Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued 
 
 
Contributions 
 
The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution 
rates is set by stature. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan 
prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. Contributions are shared 
equally by employer and employee. Employees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the 
employer (EPC) or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer. 
 
The System’s basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a 
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to 
pay benefits when due. 
 
The System receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to 
fund the System on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required 
rates established by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 
286.421 and 286.450. 
 
The actuary funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. It is intended to meet the funding 
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was 13.25% for 
Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire. For fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2017, the Statutory 
Employer/employee matching rate was 14.50% for Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) rate was 25.75% for Regular 
and 40.50% for Police/Fire. For fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2017, the EPC was 28% for Regular and 
40.50% for Police/Fire.  
 
The County's contributions for the current and two preceding fiscal years, all of which were equal to the 
required contributions, were as follows: 
 

Year Ended Regular Police/Fire
June 30, Fund Fund

2015 672,563$          1,057,818$              
2016 739,324            1,069,379                
2017 626,427            906,081                   
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NOTE 12.        Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued 
 

 
Investment policy 
 
The System’s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the 
Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of 
the System. The following was the Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016:  
 

Asset Class Target 
Allocation 

Long-term Geometric Expected 
Real Rate of Return* 

Domestic equity  42% 5.50% 
International equity 18% 5.75% 
Domestic fixed income 30% 0.25% 
Private markets 10% 6.80% 

 
*As of June 30, 2016, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 3.50%. 
 
Pension liability 
 
Net pension liability  
 
At June 30, 2017, the County reported a liability of $14,353,880 for its proportionate share of the PERS' net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
employer allocation percentage of the net pension liability was based on the total contributions due on wages 
paid during the measurement period. Each employer’s proportion of the net pension liability is based on their  
combined employer and member contributions relative to the total combined employer and member 
contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2016.The County's proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2016, was 0.117178 percent, which was an increase of 0.005074 percent from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2015. 
 
Pension liability discount rate sensitivity 
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the PERS as of June 30, 2017, calculated using the discount 
rate of 8.00%, as well as what the PERS net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.00%) than the current discount 
rate: 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)

Proportionate share of 
Net pension (asset) / liability 21,039,984$     14,353,880$            8,791,124$       
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NOTE 12.        Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued 
 

 
Pension plan fiduciary net position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report, available on the PERS website www.nvpers.org. 
 
Actuarial assumptions 
 
The County’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension 
liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
 

Inflation rate  3.50% 
Payroll growth  5.00%, including inflation 
Investment rate of return  8.00% 
Productivity pay increase  0.75% 
Projected salary increases  Regular: 4.60% to 9.75%, depending on service  

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.50%, depending on service  
Rates include inflation and productivity increases 

Consumer Price Index 3.50% 
Other assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2016 funding 

actuarial valuation 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of the experience review 
completed in 2013. 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2016 and June 30, 
2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer 
contributions will be made at the rate specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position at June 30, 2016, was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability as of June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015. 
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NOTE 12.        Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued 
 
 
Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the County recognized pension expense for PERS of $1,721,566.  At June 
30, 2017, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                             961,173$          

1,334,372                -                       
Subtotal 1,334,372                961,173            

60,553                     753,180            
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,516,213              -                      

Total 2,911,137$              1,714,353$       

Governmental activities 2,784,891$              1,640,007$       
Business-type activities 126,246                   74,346              

2,911,137$              1,714,353$       

Average expected remaining service lives 6.48 years

Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and proportional share of contributions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments

 
 
The $1,516,213 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to PERS pensions resulting from County  
contributions  subsequent  to  the  measurement  date  will be  recognized  as  a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the subsequent fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to PERS pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending 
June 30,

Deferred Outflows 
(Inflows) of 
Resources

2018 (110,614)$               
2019 (110,614)                 
2020 473,115                   
2021 228,838                   
2022 (88,103)                   
2023 (19,422)                   

Thereafter -                               
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NOTE 13. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 
 
Plan Description 
 
The County administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan, Lander County Employee Health 
Benefit Plan (LCEHBP). Additionally, the County subsidizes eligible retirees’ contributions to an agent 
multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan, Public Employees' Benefits Plan (PEBP). 
Each plan provides medical, vision, dental, and life insurance benefits to eligible County retirees and their 
beneficiaries. 
 
Benefit provisions for the LCEHBP are established pursuant to NRS 287.023 and amended through 
negotiations between the County and the respective associations. NRS 288.150 assigns the authority to 
establish benefit provisions to the Board of Commissioners. The plan provides healthcare insurance for 
eligible retirees and their beneficiaries through the County’s group health insurance plan, which covers both 
active and retired members. Under NRS 287.023 eligible retirees are able to participate in the plan with 
blended rates, thereby benefitting from an implicit subsidy. Retirees are required to pay 100% of their 
premiums under the plan. As of June 30, 2017 no retirees were using this plan. The LCEHBP does not issue a 
publicly available financial report. 
 
Benefit provisions for the PEBP are administered by the State of Nevada. NRS 287.043 assigns the authority 
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the PEBP nine-member board of trustees. County employees who 
met the eligibility requirements effective August 1, 2008 for retirement within the Public Employee 
Retirement System had the option upon retirement to enroll in coverage under the PEBP. NRS 287.023 
sunsetted the option to join PEBP for County employees who retired after November 29, 2008. Local 
governments are required to pay the same portion of cost of coverage for those persons joining PEBP that the 
State of Nevada pays for state retirees participating in the plan. The subsidy provided by the County is 
determined by their number of years of service. The PEBP issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing 
to Public Employee’s Benefits Program, 901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, NV, 89701, by 
calling (800) 326-5496, or by accessing the website at www.pebp.stat.nv.us/informed/financial.htm. 
 
Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost 
 
For LCEHBP, contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established and may be 
amended through negotiations between the County and the associations. Retirees pay 100% of the pay-as- 
you-go premiums based on a blended rate that blends active participants and retirees. The County’s 
contribution requirements for retirees relate to the implicit subsidy that results from using the blended rates 
and is determined in actuarial studies contracted for by the County. 
 
For the PEBP, NRS 287.046 establishes the subsidies to be contributed toward the premium costs of the 
eligible County retirees. Plan members receiving benefits have their monthly contribution deducted from their 
pension checks based on the health plan chosen by the retiree as reduced by the amount of the subsidy, 
therefore, their contributions are not available. For the plan year ended June 30, 2017, retirees qualified for a 
subsidy of $116 at five years of service and $636 at 20 years of service with incremental increases for each 
year of service between. Subsidy rates for retirees covered under the Medicare Exchange were $55 at five 
years of service and $220 at 20 years of service with $11 increases for each year of service in between. The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and amended by the PEBP board 
of trustees.  
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NOTE 13. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Continued 
 
 
As a participating employer, the County is billed for the subsidy on a monthly basis and is legally required 
under NRS 287.023 to provide for it. For fiscal year 2017, the County contributed $69,706 to the plan for the 
current premiums equal to the required contributions. The County did not prefund any future benefits. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The County’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) for the plans is calculated based 
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance 
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
 
The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plans, and the net 
OPEB obligations (assets), by plan, for fiscal years 2015 through 2017 were as follows: 
 

% of Annual 
Fiscal Year Annual Employer OPEB Cost Net OPEB 

Ended OPEB Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation

LCEHBP 6/30/2017 29,363$              3,507$                12% 207,587$            
LCEHBP 6/30/2016 25,912$              2,809$                11% 181,731$            
LCEHBP 6/30/2015 25,836$              -$                       0% 158,628$            

PEBP 6/30/2017 54,246$              66,199$              122% 120,546$            
PEBP 6/30/2016 50,368$              62,807$              125% 132,499$            
PEBP 6/30/2015 54,750$              54,917$              100% 144,938$            

Combined Totals 6/30/2017 83,609$              69,706$              
Combined Totals 6/30/2016 76,280$              65,616$              
Combined Totals 6/30/2015 80,586$              54,917$               

 
The net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2017, was calculated as follows: 
 

LCEHBP PEBP Totals
Annual required contribution 32,604$           58,115$           90,719$           
Interest on net OPEB obligation 7,269               5,300               12,569             
Adjustments to annual required contributions (10,510)            (9,169)              (19,679)            

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 29,363             54,246             83,609             
Contributions made (3,507)              (66,199)            (69,706)            

Change in net OPEB obligation 25,856             (11,953)            13,903             
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 181,731           132,499           314,230           
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 207,587$         120,546$         328,133$         
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NOTE 13. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Continued 
 
 
Funding Status and Funding Progress 
 
The funding status of the plans as of June 30, 2017, was as follows: 
 

LCEHBP PEBP Totals
Accrued actuarial liability (a) 196,719$         839,823$         1,036,542$      
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) -                       -                       -                       
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (a)-(b) 196,719$         839,823$         1,036,542$      

Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Covered payroll (c) 6,800,000$      N/A
Uunfunded actuarial accrued liabilty as a
percentage of coverad payroll ([(a)-(b)] / (c) 2.89%  
 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability 
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented 
as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the County and the plan members to that 
point. Actuarial calculations reflect long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 
Significant methods and assumptions are as follows: 
 

LCEHBP PEBP

Actuarial valuation date 7/1/2014 7/1/2014

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Cost Normal Cost

Amortization method Level dollar/ Level dollar/
open closed

Amortization period (closed) 30 years 23 years

Asset valuation method Market value Market value
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NOTE 13. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Continued 
 
 
 

Actuarial assumptions LCEHBP PEBP
Investment rate of return 4.00% 4.00%
Projected salary increases 4.00% 4.00%
Inflation rate (per year) 3.00% 3.00%
Helthcare inflaction rate* 7.50% 7.50%

*Decreasing .50% each year until
ultimate trent rate of 5% is reached  

 

 
NOTE 14. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost 
 
 
State and federal laws and regulations require Lander County to place final covers on its Battle Mountain and 
Austin landfill sites when they stop accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the sites for 30 years after closure. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the County 
Commissioners approved the County’s purchase of insurance to cover the costs of closure and post-closure of 
the landfills. As such, the County has not recorded its liability in the Lander County Landfills Fund. The 
County is obligated under the insurance policy to pay an annual premium over 15 years. The County paid its 
final annual premium during fiscal year 2014. The County continually evaluates an expected closure date for 
the Battle Mountain landfill. Per an engineering study performed in 2003, the predicted life of the landfill was 
77 years, through 2080. The engineer reevaluates the landfill capacity and adjusts it annually based on the 
landfill usage. At June 30, 2017 the estimated closure and post-closure liability is $513,243 and the insured 
amount is $513,243. 
 
The Austin landfill was closed in 2006. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the County received State 
approval on the Austin landfill closure. A trust fund for post-closure financial assurance was established with 
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection named beneficiary of the trust. The trust was fully funded in 
2007 in the amount of $64,200 pursuant to an engineering report. The earnings in the trust have met the 
inflationary requirements set by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection. At June 30, 2017 the 
estimated remaining post-closure liability is $48,211. 
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NOTE 15. Construction and Purchase Commitments 
 
 
Lander County has entered into contracts for construction and asset purchases as follows: 
 

Project Expended/ Commitment
Authorization Retainage 6/30/2017

Airport Projects 2,965,609$        2,250,303$        715,306$           
Battle Mountain Recreation Center 10,929,595        10,714,707        214,888             
Water and Sewer Projects 3,743,255          1,947,609          1,795,646          
Various Projects 5,521,659          5,032,751          488,908             

Total Projects 23,160,118$     19,945,370$     3,214,748$        

 
 

 
NOTE 16. Restricted Assets and Net Position 
 
 
The County maintains restricted cash to comply with various legal and contractual requirements. 
Amounts restricted are as follows at June 30, 2017: 
 

AB198 Capital Replacement Projects Fund 1,957,335$ 
Battle Mountain Sewer Fund 1/4% Sales Tax Restricted by NRS 377B.030 1,913,492   

3,870,827$ 
 

 

 
NOTE 17. Tax Abatements 
 

 
State of Nevada Tax Abatements 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, Lander County’s revenues were reduced by a total amount of 
$1,872,043 under agreements entered into by the State of Nevada as follows: 
 
Renewable Energy, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 701A.370 
 
Partial abatement of one or more of property and local taxes imposed on renewable energy facilities: 
  Unsecured Property Taxes   $1,872,043 
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Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date) (Measurement Date) (Measurement Date)

2017 2016 2015
(2016) (2015) (2014)

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.117178% 11.210400% 0.110920%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 14,353,880$                        12,846,521$                     11,559,888$                     

Covered employee payroll 5,765,742$                          5,819,671$                       5,825,961$                       

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 248.95% 220.74% 198.42%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 72.2% 75.10% 76.30%

Note: In accordance with GASB 68, employers will need to disclose a 10-year history for the pension schedule above. Additional information will be displayed 
as it becomes available.
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Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date) (Measurement Date) (Measurement Date)

2017 2016 2015
(2016) (2015) (2014)

Contractually required contribution 1,808,703$                         1,730,381$                      1,711,073$                      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (1,808,703)$                         (1,730,381)$                      (1,711,073)$                      

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                                        -$                                      -$                                     

Covered employee payroll 5,765,742$                          5,819,671$                       5,825,961$                       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 31.37% 29.73% 29.37%

Note: In accordance with GASB 68, employers will need to disclose a 10-year history for the pension schedule above. Additional information will be displayed 
as it becomes available.
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Variance
Favorable Actual

REVENUES: Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 7,346,696$    7,346,696$    6,850,686$     (496,010)$          7,266,466$        
Penalties and interest 40,000           40,000           20,534            (19,466)              33,400               
Net proceeds of mines -                     -                     863,300          863,300             126,217             
Franchise taxes 40,050           40,050           79,410            39,360               60,744               
    Total tax revenue 7,426,746      7,426,746      7,813,930       387,184             7,486,827          

Licenses and permits
Liquor licenses 6,000             6,000             6,200              200                    5,430                 
County gaming licenses 14,005           14,005           14,930            925                    16,614               
Building permits 80,000           80,000           78,203            (1,797)                169,464             
Motor vehicle licenses 40,000           40,000           39,633            (367)                   44,513               
Marriage licenses 1,800             1,800             777                 (1,023)                714                    
Mobile home permits 30                  30                  20                   (10)                     18                      
    Total licenses and permits 141,835         141,835         139,763          (2,072)                236,753             

Intergovernmental
Federal grants -                     -                     2,560              2,560                 28,221               
State grants -                     -                     8,601              8,601                 12,983               
State gaming licenses 140,000         140,000         137,003          (2,997)                138,096             
Consolidated tax 3,468,729      3,468,729      3,667,962       199,233             3,689,592          

Total intergovernmental 3,608,729      3,608,729      3,816,126       207,397             3,868,892          

Charges for services
Clerk fees 2,560             2,560             2,464              (96)                     2,257                 
Recorder fees 80,000           80,000           83,129            3,129                 77,285               
Assessor's commissions 250,000         250,000         721,090          471,090             766,582             
Sheriff's fees 5,000             5,000             4,490              (510)                   4,732                 
Inmate housing fees 25,000           25,000           911                 (24,089)              16,739               
Law library fees 1,000             1,000             2,070              1,070                 1,425                 
Divorce action fees 4,000             4,000             5,353              1,353                 6,433                 
Civil cases 15,000           15,000           10,188            (4,812)                13,473               
Copy fees 2,500             2,500             12,667            10,167               10,520               
Justice court fees 8,000             8,000             14,171            6,171                 10,988               
Other 11,325           11,325           17,358            6,033                 5,155                 

Total charges for services 404,385         404,385         873,891          469,506             915,589             
(continued)
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Variance
Favorable Actual

REVENUES (Continued): Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016

Fines and forfeitures
Fines and forfeitures 191,500         191,500         209,464          17,964               240,626             
Other 500                500                100                 (400)                   798                    

Total fines and forfeitures 192,000         192,000         209,564          17,564               241,424             

Investment earnings
Interest 522,536         522,536         649,071          126,535             552,897             
Net increase (decrease) in the fair 

value of investments -                     -                     (791,337)         (791,337)            534,783             
Total investment earnings 522,536         522,536         (142,266)         (664,802)            1,087,680          

Other revenue
Rents 4,500             4,500             10,933            6,433                 10,079               
Miscellaneous 20,000           20,000           166,639          146,639             17,149               
    Total other revenue 24,500           24,500           177,572          153,072             27,228               

Total revenues 12,320,731    12,320,731    12,888,580     567,849             13,864,393        
(continued)
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Variance
Favorable Actual

EXPENDITURES: Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016

General government
Commissioners

Salaries and wages 150,480         150,480         150,410          70                      147,063             
Employee benefits 111,755         111,755         85,601            26,154               87,541               
Services and supplies 85,600           85,600           92,490            (6,890)                39,914               

347,835         347,835         328,501          19,334               274,518             

Clerk
Salaries and wages 171,765         171,765         157,350          14,415               208,296             
Employee benefits 99,265           99,265           69,735            29,530               97,802               
Services and supplies 92,850           92,850           96,606            (3,756)                65,747               

363,880         363,880         323,691          40,189               371,845             

Treasurer
Salaries and wages 234,185         234,185         225,519          8,666                 219,320             
Employee benefits 166,035         166,035         106,309          59,726               100,632             
Services and supplies 39,634           39,634           30,064            9,570                 30,015               

439,854         439,854         361,892          77,962               349,967             

Executive director
Salaries and wages 223,120         223,120         198,060          25,060               220,912             
Employee benefits 106,415         106,415         70,333            36,082               86,596               
Services and supplies 549,950         549,950         361,936          188,014             266,407             

879,485         879,485         630,329          249,156             573,915             

Assessor
Salaries and wages 334,180         334,180         227,113          107,067             236,996             
Employee benefits 178,020         178,020         97,725            80,295               101,256             
Services and supplies 134,435         134,435         63,325            71,110               48,354               

646,635         646,635         388,163          258,472             386,606             

Finance department
Salaries and wages 207,160         207,160         169,895          37,265               202,528             
Employee benefits 96,815           96,815           61,672            35,143               54,205               
Services and supplies 144,255         144,255         106,667          37,588               121,364             

448,230         448,230         338,234          109,996             378,097             

Building & planning
Salaries and wages 108,290         108,290         98,194            10,096               137,492             
Employee benefits 93,580           93,580           44,655            48,925               62,809               
Services and supplies 57,500           57,500           19,879            37,621               39,938               

259,370         259,370         162,728          96,642               240,239             

Building maintenance
Salaries and wages 65,535           65,535           59,637            5,898                 30,796               
Employee benefits 34,745           34,745           27,130            7,615                 11,190               
Services and supplies 397,828         397,828         350,225          47,603               332,231             

498,108         498,108         436,992          61,116               374,217             

Recorder
Salaries and wages 220,410         220,410         230,239          (9,829)                220,517             
Employee benefits 146,470         146,470         92,966            53,504               91,839               
Services and supplies 45,750           45,750           16,872            28,878               29,036               

412,630         412,630         340,077          72,553               341,392             

Other general
Retiree insurance 500,000         500,000         64,555            435,445             63,401               
Services and supplies 1,064,005      1,064,005      593,979          470,026             537,516             

1,564,005      1,564,005      658,534          905,471             600,917             
Total general government 5,860,032      5,860,032      3,969,141       1,890,891          3,891,713          

(continued)
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Variance
Favorable Actual

EXPENDITURES (Continued): Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016

Public safety
Sheriff

Salaries and wages 1,998,910      1,998,910      1,809,126       189,784             1,672,798          
Employee benefits 1,508,285      1,508,285      1,032,033       476,252             968,357             
Services and supplies 500,700         500,700         415,334          85,366               365,223             
Capital outlay 4,500             4,500             4,475              25                      5,000                 

4,012,395      4,012,395      3,260,968       751,427             3,011,378          

Jail operations
Salaries and wages 658,570         658,570         481,438          177,132             613,175             
Employee benefits 587,300         587,300         327,127          260,173             364,074             
Services and supplies 297,200         297,200         206,271          90,929               191,663             
Capital outlay 21,500           21,500           1,500              20,000               -                         

1,564,570      1,564,570      1,016,336       548,234             1,168,912          

Animal control
Salaries and wages 61,245           61,245           43,447            17,798               48,896               
Employee benefits 33,930           33,930           22,749            11,181               23,563               
Services and supplies 26,460           26,460           14,210            12,250               15,285               
Capital outlay 1,000             1,000             -                      1,000                 1,630                 

122,635         122,635         80,406            42,229               89,374               

Austin fire department
Salaries and wages 600                600                -                      600                    -                         
Employee benefits 15,665           15,665           7,550              8,115                 5,418                 
Services and supplies 28,100           28,100           10,008            18,092               4,897                 
Capital outlay 2,800             2,800             -                      2,800                 521                    

47,165           47,165           17,558            29,607               10,836               

Austin ambulance
Salaries and wages 28,280           28,280           20,490            7,790                 -                         
Employee benefits 5,290             5,290             3,698              1,592                 -                         
Services and supplies 52,500           52,500           44,092            8,408                 72,533               

86,070           86,070           68,280            17,790               72,533               

Battle Mountain fire deparement
Salaries and wages 1,800             1,800             1,800              -                         1,800                 
Employee benefits 34,640           34,640           31,320            3,320                 31,599               
Services and supplies 211,700         211,700         170,784          40,916               170,312             
Capital outlay 5,000             5,000             961                 4,039                 2,099                 

253,140         253,140         204,865          48,275               205,810             

Battle Mountain ambulance
Services and supplies 138,000         138,000         138,064          (64)                     251,377             

138,000         138,000         138,064          (64)                     251,377             
Total public safety 6,223,975      6,223,975      4,786,477       1,437,498          4,810,220          

(continued)
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Variance
Favorable Actual

EXPENDITURES (Continued): Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016

Judicial
District court

Services and supplies 307,838         307,838         312,560          (4,722)                245,791             
Capital outlay 2,000             2,000             -                      2,000                 2,155                 

309,838         309,838         312,560          (2,722)                247,946             

District attorney
Salaries and wages 406,685         406,685         366,462          40,223               349,452             
Employee benefits 199,000         199,000         136,057          62,943               131,487             
Services and supplies 92,000           92,000           55,302            36,698               73,791               

697,685         697,685         557,821          139,864             554,730             

Juvenile probation
Services and supplies 779,308         779,308         395,832          383,476             431,867             

779,308         779,308         395,832          383,476             431,867             

Justice court - Argenta
Salaries and wages 265,040         265,040         265,856          (816)                   250,959             
Employee benefits 135,070         135,070         107,415          27,655               106,853             
Services and supplies 87,600           87,600           27,439            60,161               40,765               

487,710         487,710         400,710          87,000               398,577             

Justic court - Austin
Salaries and wages 58,190           58,190           58,891            (701)                   59,630               
Employee benefits 26,545           26,545           19,967            6,578                 21,076               
Services and supplies 15,300           15,300           6,877              8,423                 6,724                 

100,035         100,035         85,735            14,300               87,430               

Public defender
Services and supplies 128,500         128,500         91,106            37,394               111,170             

128,500         128,500         91,106            37,394               111,170             
Total judicial 2,503,076      2,503,076      1,843,764       659,312             1,831,720          

Intergovernmental
Services and supplies 119,180         119,180         42,877            76,303               96,881               

Total intergovernmental 119,180         119,180         42,877            76,303               96,881               
  Total expenditures 14,706,263    14,706,263    10,642,259     4,064,004          10,630,534        

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,385,532)     (2,385,532)     2,246,321       4,631,853          3,233,859          

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 172,032         172,032         156,465          (15,567)              140,379             
Transfers out (64,773)          (47,035)          (56,465)           (9,430)                (140,379)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 107,259         124,997         100,000          (24,997)              -                         

Net change in fund balance (2,278,273)     (2,260,535)     2,346,321       4,606,856          3,233,859          

Fund balance, beginning of year 40,867,993    40,867,993    40,867,993     -                         37,634,134        

Fund balance, end of year 38,589,720$  38,607,458$  43,214,314$   4,606,856$        40,867,993$      
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Actuarial Actuarial
Accrued Accrued

Liability (AAL) Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial EANC EANC AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Value of Assets LCEHBP PEBP (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

7/1/2014 -$                       148,109$            891,425$               1,039,534$         0.0% 6,800,000$         2.2%
7/1/2011 -$                       170,341$            1,140,305$            1,310,646$         0.0% 5,212,351$         3.3%
7/1/2008 -$                       148,388$            2,851,024$            2,999,412$         0.0% 4,862,000$         3.1%
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LANDER COUNTY
CCP (CONSTRUCTION OF CAPITAL PROJECTS) FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Net proceeds of mines -$                      -$                      9,149,065$      9,149,065$       1,951,755$      
    Total tax revenue -                        -                        9,149,065        9,149,065         1,951,755        

Investment earnings
Interest 561,826            561,826            812,680           250,854            756,196           
Net increase (decrease) in the fair 

value of investments -                        -                        (1,187,006)       (1,187,006)       812,939           
    Total investment earnings 561,826            561,826            (374,326)          (936,152)          1,569,135        

Other revenue
Miscellaneous -                        -                        175,000           175,000            210,000           
     Total other revenue -                        -                        175,000           175,000            210,000           
Total revenues 561,826            561,826            8,949,739        8,387,913         3,730,890        

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies -                        -                        -                       -                        -                       
Capital outlay 28,404,710       28,404,710       16,553,353      11,851,357       11,229,484      

Total expenditures 28,404,710       28,404,710       16,553,353      11,851,357       11,229,484      

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (27,842,884)     (27,842,884)     (7,603,614)       20,239,270       (7,498,594)       

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                        -                        -                       -                        90,079             

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                       -                        90,079             

Net change in fund balance (27,842,884)     (27,842,884)     (7,603,614)       20,239,270       (7,408,515)       

Fund balance, beginning of year 43,206,311       43,206,311       43,206,311      -                        50,614,826      

Fund balance, end of year 15,363,427$     15,363,427$     35,602,697$    20,239,270$     43,206,311$    

Budget

68

124



LANDER COUNTY
AIRPORT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Net proceeds of mines -$                      -$                      206,045$        206,045$                43,955$          
    Total tax revenue -                        -                        206,045          206,045                  43,955            

Intergovernmental
Federal grants 2,192,500         2,192,500         1,046,539       (1,145,961)              307,345          

Total intergovernmental 2,192,500         2,192,500         1,046,539       (1,145,961)              307,345          
Total revenues 2,192,500         2,192,500         1,252,584       (939,916)                 351,300          

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Capital outlay 2,523,940         2,523,940         1,586,587       937,353                  1,064,791       
Total expenditures 2,523,940         2,523,940         1,586,587       937,353                  1,064,791       

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (331,440)          (331,440)          (334,003)         (2,563)                     (713,491)         

Net change in fund balance (331,440)          (331,440)          (334,003)         (2,563)                     (713,491)         

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,494,826         3,494,826         3,494,826       -                              4,208,317       

Fund balance, end of year 3,163,386$       3,163,386$       3,160,823$     (2,563)$                   3,494,826$     

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

State Lander
Road and Medical Agricultural Aged County

Bridge Indigent Indigent Extension Services Landfill
Assets

Cash and investments 5,700,948$     1,796,743$     7,123,659$     284,031$        2,437,048$     7,297,367$     
Accounts receivable 1,031               102                  12                    2,196               2,446               9,093               
Taxes receivable 9,532               3,779               4,046               750                  4,264               2,576               
Due from other governments 174,880           2,105               2,244               418                  22,512             1,394               
Inventory -                       -                       -                       -                       398                  -                       
Prepaid items -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total assets 5,886,391$      1,802,729$      7,129,961$      287,395$         2,466,668$      7,310,430$      

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 83,314             768                  194,359           11,857             7,537               13,077             
Accrued salaries 42,985             3,302               1,267               1,675               8,805               5,984               
Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total liabilities 126,299           4,070               195,626           13,532             16,342             19,061             

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 8,205               3,250               3,484               646                  3,679               2,229               

Total deferred inflows of resources 8,205               3,250               3,484               646                  3,679               2,229               

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                       -                       -                       -                       398                  -                       
Restricted for:

General government -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Judicial -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public safety -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Welfare -                       1,795,409        6,930,851        -                       -                       -                       
Community support -                       -                       -                       273,217           -                       -                       

Committed for:
General government -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Culture and recreation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Health and sanitation 7,289,140        
Capital projects -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Assigned 5,751,887        -                       -                       -                       2,446,249        -                       

Total fund balances 5,751,887        1,795,409        6,930,851        273,217           2,446,647        7,289,140        

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, & fund balances 5,886,391$      1,802,729$      7,129,961$      287,395$         2,466,668$      7,310,430$      

(Continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Due from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted for:

General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Welfare
Community support

Committed for:
General government
Culture and recreation
Health and sanitation
Capital projects

Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, & fund balances

Lander Lander Regional Town of
County Economic DOE Nuclear Street and Town of Battle Culture &
Airports Development Repository Highway Austin Mountain Recreation Reserve

1,770,240$     34,105$             13,784$          2,757,245$     122,563$          874,528$        6,851,803$     1,120,543$     
-                       -                          -                       -                       1,981                 10,609             2,425               -                       

2,006               -                          -                       -                       637                    792                  4,500               -                       
1,115               -                          -                       67,739             2,610                 39,089             7,495               -                       

-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       

1,773,361$      34,105$              13,784$           2,824,984$      127,791$           925,018$         6,866,223$      1,120,543$      

2,570               -                          -                       -                       1,109                 18,523             71,075             -                       
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       19,528             -                       
-                       7,750                  13,784             -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       

2,570               7,750                  13,784             -                       1,109                 18,523             90,603             -                       

1,730               -                          -                       -                       436                    667                  3,880               -                       

1,730               -                          -                       -                       436                    667                  3,880               -                       

-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                          -                       2,824,984        -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       

1,769,061        -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       1,120,543        
-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       6,771,740        -                       

-                       -                          -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       
-                       26,355                -                       -                       126,246             905,828           -                       -                       

1,769,061        26,355                -                       2,824,984        126,246             905,828           6,771,740        1,120,543        

1,773,361$      34,105$              13,784$           2,824,984$      127,791$           925,018$         6,866,223$      1,120,543$      

(Continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Due from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted for:

General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Welfare
Community support

Committed for:
General government
Culture and recreation
Health and sanitation
Capital projects

Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, & fund balances

Administrative Genetic Juvenile
Title III Assessment Marker Forensic District Drug Court Administrative Mine Map

SRS/CRA Fees Testing Services Court Facility Fees Assessment Fees

189,858$       53,781$          828$               6,383$               92,368$          132,156$        11,593$          177,602$        
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       10                    -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

189,858$        53,781$           828$                6,383$               92,368$           132,156$         11,603$           177,602$         

-                      115                  828                  -                         3,196               -                       2,808               1,595               
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                      115                  828                  -                         3,196               -                       2,808               1,595               

-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       176,007           
-                      53,666             -                       -                         89,172             132,156           8,795               -                       

189,858          -                       -                       6,383                 -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       
-                      -                       -                       -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       

189,858          53,666             -                       6,383                 89,172             132,156           8,795               176,007           

189,858$        53,781$           828$                6,383$               92,368$           132,156$         11,603$           177,602$         

(Continued)

72

128



LANDER COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Due from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted for:

General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Welfare
Community support

Committed for:
General government
Culture and recreation
Health and sanitation
Capital projects

Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, & fund balances

Austin Equipment/ Battle Mountain Court
Technology Capital Building Capital Capital Emergency Facilities Total Nonmajor

Fees Acquisition Replacement Acquisition Acquisition Maintenance Capital Gvtl. Funds

2,291,024$     32,286$          10,108,543$    3,703,021$     196,963$             3,244,481$     686,952$        59,112,446$       
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       29,905                 
-                       -                       -                        1,508               -                            -                       -                       34,390                 
-                       -                       -                        836                  -                            -                       -                       322,437               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       398                      

37,230             -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       37,230                 

2,328,254$      32,286$           10,108,543$     3,705,365$      196,963$              3,244,481$      686,952$         59,536,806$        

54,228             -                       48,260              -                       -                            107,259           -                       622,478$             
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       83,546                 
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       21,534                 

54,228             -                       48,260              -                       -                            107,259           -                       727,558               

-                       -                       -                        1,299               -                            -                       -                       29,505                 

-                       -                       -                        1,299               -                            -                       -                       29,505                 

-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       398                      

2,274,026        -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       2,450,033            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       283,789               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       196,241               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       2,824,984            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       8,726,260            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       273,217               

-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       2,889,604            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                            -                       -                       6,771,740            

7,289,140            
-                       -                       10,060,283       -                       -                            3,137,222        686,952           13,884,457          
-                       32,286             -                        3,704,066        196,963                -                       -                       13,189,880          

2,274,026        32,286             10,060,283       3,704,066        196,963                3,137,222        686,952           58,779,743          

2,328,254$      32,286$           10,108,543$     3,705,365$      196,963$              3,244,481$      686,952$         59,536,806$        
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

State Lander
Road and Medical Agricultural Aged County

REVENUES: Bridge Indigent Indigent Extension Services Landfill

Taxes 1,028,884$      406,936$         1,347,074$      80,859$           458,163$         836,692$         
Licenses, permits and fees -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental 1,020,139        -                       -                       -                       85,652             -                       
Charges for services -                       -                       -                       -                       39,783             97,594             
Investment earnings -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       78,640             
Other revenues 106,930           -                       -                       -                       240,023           3,082               

   Total 2,155,953        406,936           1,347,074        80,859             823,621           1,016,008        

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public safety -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Judicial -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public works 1,764,627        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Welfare -                       208,352           365,431           -                       348,477           -                       
Health and sanitation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       301,499           
Culture and recreation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Community support -                       -                       -                       81,096             -                       -                       

Capital outlay:
General government -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Health and sanitation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       115,171           
Culture and recreation -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Community support -                       -                       -                       1,270               -                       -                       

   Total 1,764,627        208,352           365,431           82,366             348,477           416,670           

Excess of revenues over
   (under) expenditures 391,326           198,584           981,643           (1,507)              475,144           599,338           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 7,257               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers out -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total other financing sources (uses) 7,257               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net change in fund balances 398,583           198,584           981,643           (1,507)              475,144           599,338           
Fund balances - beginning 5,353,304        1,596,825        5,949,208        274,724           1,971,503        6,689,802        

Fund balances - ending 5,751,887$      1,795,409$      6,930,851$      273,217$         2,446,647$      7,289,140$      

(Continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other revenues

   Total

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Judicial
Public works
Welfare
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support

Capital outlay:
General government
Public works
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support

   Total

Excess of revenues over
   (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Lander Lander Regional Town of
County Economic DOE Nuclear Street and Town of Battle Culture &
Airports Development Repository Highway Austin Mountain Recreation Reserve

216,235$         -$                     -$                     374,064$         58,391$           68,063$           482,414$         -$                    
-                       -                       -                       -                       1,320               39,664             -                       -                      
-                       53,460             26,894             -                       15,210             227,787           1,003,801        -                      

4,597               -                       -                       -                       100                  -                       65,024 -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       1,328               10,268             -                       10,659             

67,803             -                       -                       -                       10                    -                       259,312           287,256           

288,635           53,460             26,894             374,064           76,359             345,782           1,810,551        297,915           

121,439           -                       -                       -                       20,824             308,253           -                       -                      
-                       -                       26,894             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       3,050               -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       6,000               -                       15,319             -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       3,200               -                       1,014,923        -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      

26                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       87,402             -                       -                      
-                       53,460             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      

121,465           53,460             26,894             -                       33,074             395,655           1,030,242        -                      

167,170           -                       -                       374,064           43,285             (49,873)            780,309           297,915           

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
(7,257)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      
(7,257)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      

159,913           -                       -                       374,064           43,285             (49,873)            780,309           297,915           
1,609,148        26,355             -                       2,450,920        82,961             955,701           5,991,431        822,628           

1,769,061$      26,355$           -$                     2,824,984$      126,246$         905,828$         6,771,740$      1,120,543$      

(Continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other revenues

   Total

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Judicial
Public works
Welfare
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support

Capital outlay:
General government
Public works
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support

   Total

Excess of revenues over
   (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Administrative Genetic Juvenile
Title III Assessment Marker Forensic District Drug Court Administrative Mine Map

SRS/CRA Fees Testing Services Court Facility Fees Assessment Fees

-$                        -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          18,207             8,436               1,180               16,485             25,846              6,067               26,760             
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       

-                          18,207             8,436               1,180               16,485             25,846              6,067               26,760             

-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       15,425             
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          1,556               8,436               -                       10,139             -                        6,167               -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       

-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                       -                       
-                          1,556               8,436               -                       10,139             -                        6,167               15,425             

-                          16,651             -                       1,180               6,346               25,846              (100)                 11,335             

-                          -                       -                       -                       25,000             -                        -                       -                       
-                          (520)                 -                       -                       -                       (30,945)             -                       -                       
-                          (520)                 -                       -                       25,000             (30,945)             -                       -                       

-                          16,131             -                       1,180               31,346             (5,099)               (100)                 11,335             
189,858              37,535             -                       5,203               57,826             137,255            8,895               164,672           

189,858$            53,666$           -$                     6,383$             89,172$           132,156$          8,795$             176,007$         

(Continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Other revenues

   Total

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Judicial
Public works
Welfare
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support

Capital outlay:
General government
Public works
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support

   Total

Excess of revenues over
   (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Austin Equipment/ Battle Mountain Court
Technology Capital Building Capital Capital Emergency Facilities Total Nonmajor

Fees Acquisition Replacement Acquisition Acquisition Maintenance Capital Gvtl. Funds

-$                     -$                     4,060,168$       502,011$         -$                     -$                     -$                     9,919,954$          
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       40,984                 
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       2,432,943            

804,078           -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       1,114,157            
24,832             -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       7,250               132,977               

-                       339                  -                        -                       2,070               -                       -                       966,825               

828,910           339                  4,060,168         502,011           2,070               -                       7,250               14,607,840          

247,213           -                       251,236            -                       -                       343,917           -                       1,308,307            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       26,894                 
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       26,298                 
-                       -                       -                        6,267               -                       -                       -                       1,773,944            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       922,260               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       322,818               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       1,018,123            
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       81,096                 

152,564           -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       152,590               
-                       -                       909,086            -                       -                       -                       -                       909,086               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       115,171               
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       87,402                 
-                       -                       -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       54,730                 

399,777           -                       1,160,322         6,267               -                       343,917           -                       6,798,719            

429,133           339                  2,899,846         495,744           2,070               (343,917)          7,250               7,809,121            

-                       1,948               -                        -                       11,470             -                       31,465             77,140                 
(125,000)          -                       -                        (13,418)            -                       -                       -                       (177,140)              
(125,000)          1,948               -                        (13,418)            11,470             -                       31,465             (100,000)              

304,133           2,287               2,899,846         482,326           13,540             (343,917)          38,715             7,709,121            
1,969,893        29,999             7,160,437         3,221,740        183,423           3,481,139        648,237           51,070,622          

2,274,026$      32,286$           10,060,283$     3,704,066$      196,963$         3,137,222$      686,952$         58,779,743$        
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ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 1,106,147$       1,106,147$       1,028,884$       (77,263)$          1,058,221$       
    Total tax revenue 1,106,147         1,106,147         1,028,884         (77,263)            1,058,221         

Intergovernmental
State motor vehicle fuel tax 960,676            960,676            1,007,449 46,773 1,009,215
Forest reserve fees 20,000              20,000              12,690 (7,310) 58,572
    Total intergovernmental 980,676            980,676            1,020,139         39,463              1,067,787         

Other revenue
Miscellaneous 200                   200                   106,930            106,730            120                   
    Total other revenues 200                   200                   106,930            106,730            120                   
Total revenues 2,087,023         2,087,023         2,155,953         68,930              2,126,128         

EXPENDITURES:
Public works

Highway and streets - Austin
Salaries and wages 360,985            360,985            331,994            28,991              340,422            
Employee benefits 235,695            235,695            154,608            81,087              178,062            
Services and supplies 291,565            291,565            218,222            73,343              234,497            
Capital outlay 50,000              50,000              -                        50,000              -                        

Total highway and streets - Austin 938,245            938,245            704,824            233,421            752,981            

Highway and streets - Battle Mountain
Salaries and wages 550,890            550,890            528,186            22,704              532,156            
Employee benefits 328,305            328,305            264,935            63,370              226,543            
Services and supplies 411,720            411,720            266,682            145,038            236,983            
Capital outlay 50,000              50,000              -                        50,000              -                        

Total highway and streets - BM 1,340,915         1,340,915         1,059,803         281,112            995,682            

Total expenditures 2,279,160         2,279,160         1,764,627         514,533            1,748,663         

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (192,137)          (192,137)          391,326            583,463            377,465            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 15,500              15,500              7,257                (8,243)              5,121                
Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,500              15,500              7,257                (8,243)              5,121                

Net change in fund balance (176,637)          (176,637)          398,583            575,220            382,586            

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,353,304         5,353,304         5,353,304         -                        4,970,718         

Fund balance, end of year 5,176,667$       5,176,667$       5,751,887$       575,220$          5,353,304$       

Budget

LANDER COUNTY

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 437,504$          437,476$          406,936$          (30,540)$          430,682$          
    Total tax revenue 437,504            437,476            406,936            (30,540)            430,682            

Other Revenue
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
    Total Other -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Total revenues 437,504            437,476            406,936            (30,540)            430,682            

EXPENDITURES:
Welfare

Health nurse
Salaries and wages 44,400              44,400              45,010              (610)                 37,436              
Employee benefits 26,465              26,465              17,416              9,049                10,843              
Services and supplies 588,700            588,700            107,634            481,066            133,178            

Total health nurse 659,565            659,565            170,060            489,505            181,457            

Other indigent
Salaries and wages 25,145              25,145              25,524              (379)                 25,131              
Employee benefits 21,350              21,350              11,898              9,452                11,200              
Services and supplies 21,000              21,000              870                   20,130              614                   

Total other indigent 67,495              67,495              38,292              29,203              36,945              
Total expenditures 727,060            727,060            208,352            518,708            218,402            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (289,556)          (289,584)          198,584            488,168            212,280            

Net change in fund balance (289,556)          (289,584)          198,584            488,168            212,280            

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,596,825         1,596,825         1,596,825         -                        1,384,545         

Fund balance, end of year 1,307,269$       1,307,241$       1,795,409$       488,168$          1,596,825$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

LANDER COUNTY
INDIGENT FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
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LANDER COUNTY
STATE MEDICAL INDIGENT FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 379,532$          379,532$          353,069$          (26,463)$          373,761$          
Ad valorem auto 86,916              86,916              80,841              (6,075)              85,493              
Net proceeds of mines -                        -                        743,009            743,009            84,054              
Net proceeds auto -                        -                        170,155            170,155            19,249              
    Total tax revenue 466,448            466,448            1,347,074         880,626            562,557            
Total revenues 466,448            466,448            1,347,074         880,626            562,557            

EXPENDITURES:
Welfare

Salaries and wages 25,145              25,145              25,524              (379)                 25,131              
Employee benefits 21,350              21,350              12,085              9,265                10,967              
Services and supplies 503,133            503,133            132,500            370,633            161,916            
Remittance to state 822,482            822,482            195,322            627,160            330,759            

Total expenditures 1,372,110         1,372,110         365,431            1,006,679         528,773            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (905,662)          (905,662)          981,643            1,887,305         33,784              

Net change in fund balance (905,662)          (905,662)          981,643            1,887,305         33,784              

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,949,208         5,949,208         5,949,208         -                        5,915,424         

Fund balance, end of year 5,043,546$       5,043,546$       6,930,851$       1,887,305$       5,949,208$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 86,916$            86,916$            80,859$            (6,057)$            85,579$            
    Total tax revenue 86,916              86,916              80,859              (6,057)              85,579              

Other revenue
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
    Total other revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Total revenues 86,916              86,916              80,859              (6,057)              85,579              

EXPENDITURES:
Community support

Salaries and wages 36,105              36,105              36,408              (303)                 35,147              
Employee benefits 19,155              19,155              13,181              5,974                12,209              
Services and supplies 33,340              33,340              31,507              1,833                27,073              
Capital outlay -                        -                        1,270                (1,270)              4,016                

Total expenditures 88,600              88,600              82,366              6,234                78,445              

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,684)              (1,684)              (1,507)              177                   7,134                

Net change in fund balance (1,684)              (1,684)              (1,507)              177                   7,134                

Fund balance, beginning of year 274,724            274,724            274,724            -                        267,590            

Fund balance, end of year 273,040$          273,040$          273,217$          177$                 274,724$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
AGED SERVICES FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 492,522$          492,522$          458,163$          (34,359)$           484,931$          
    Total tax revenue 492,522            492,522            458,163            (34,359)             484,931            

Intergovernmental
Federal grants 61,225              61,225              85,652              24,427              47,904              
    Total intergovernmental 61,225              61,225              85,652              24,427              47,904              

Charges for services
Meal fees 30,250              30,250              39,783              9,533                33,538              
    Total charges for services 30,250              30,250              39,783              9,533                33,538              

Other revenue
Miscellaneous 25,500              25,500              240,023            214,523            22,747              
    Total other revenue 25,500              25,500              240,023            214,523            22,747              
Total revenues 609,497            609,497            823,621            214,124            589,120            

EXPENDITURES:
Welfare

Senior center
Salaries and wages 223,260            223,260            174,166            49,094              167,725            
Employee benefits 157,185            157,185            104,208            52,977              87,998              
Services and supplies 136,885            136,885            58,681              78,204              69,086              
Capital outlay 23,500              23,500              -                        23,500              -                        

Total senior center 540,830            540,830            337,055            203,775            324,809            

Austin school
Salaries and wages 11,335              11,335              5,741                5,594                5,977                
Employee benefits 5,175                5,175                2,731                2,444                2,628                
Services and supplies 8,160                8,160                2,950                5,210                4,036                

Total austin school 24,670              24,670              11,422              13,248              12,641              
Total expenditures 565,500            565,500            348,477            217,023            337,450            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 43,997              43,997              475,144            431,147            251,670            

Net change in fund balance 43,997              43,997              475,144            431,147            251,670            

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,971,503         1,971,503         1,971,503         -                        1,719,833         

Fund balance, end of year 2,015,500$       2,015,500$       2,446,647$       431,147$          1,971,503$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
LANDER COUNTY LANDFILL FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
 Ad valorem 289,719$          289,719$          269,509$          (20,210)$           285,299$          

Net proceeds of mines -                        -                        567,183            567,183            64,163              
Total tax revenue 289,719            289,719            836,692            546,973            349,462            

Charges for services
Gate fees 65,000              65,000              97,594              32,594              109,172            

Total charges for services 65,000              65,000              97,594              32,594              109,172            

Investment earnings
Interest 5,960                5,960                78,640              72,680              66,047              

Total investment earnings 5,960                5,960                78,640              72,680              66,047              

Other revenue
Miscellaneous 1,000                1,000                3,082                2,082                -                        

Total other revenue 1,000                1,000                3,082                2,082                -                        
Total revenues 361,679            361,679            1,016,008         654,329            524,681            

EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation

Salaries and wages 160,675            160,675            127,082            33,593              140,463            
Employee benefits 114,190            114,190            55,847              58,343              61,554              
Services and supplies 267,350            267,350            118,570            148,780            131,632            
Capital outlay 180,000            180,000            115,171            64,829              736,936            

Total expenditures 722,215            722,215            416,670            305,545            1,070,585         

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (360,536)           (360,536)           599,338            959,874            (545,904)           

Net change in fund balance (360,536)           (360,536)           599,338            959,874            (545,904)           

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,689,802         6,689,802         6,689,802         -                        7,235,706         

Fund balance, end of year 6,329,266$       6,329,266$       7,289,140$       959,874$          6,689,802$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
LANDER COUNTY AIRPORTS FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
 Ad valorem 231,775$          231,775$          215,602$          (16,173)$           228,196$          

Gasoline tax 500                   500                   633                   133                   599                   
    Total tax revenue 232,275            232,275            216,235            (16,040)             228,795            

Charges for services
User fees and fuel sales 4,300                4,300                4,597                297                   4,703                

Total charges for services 4,300                4,300                4,597                297                   4,703                

Other revenues
Rent 16,500              16,500              25,945              9,445                19,156              
Miscellaneous -                        -                        41,858              41,858              -                        

Total other revenues 16,500              16,500              67,803              51,303              19,156              
Total revenues 253,075            253,075            288,635            35,560              252,654            

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies 179,675            179,675            121,439            58,236              130,511            
Capital outlay 4,610                4,610                26                     4,584                11                     

  Total expenditures 184,285            184,285            121,465            62,820              130,522            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 68,790              68,790              167,170            98,380              122,132            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (15,500)             (15,500)             (7,257)               8,243                (5,121)               

Total other financing sources (uses) (15,500)             (15,500)             (7,257)               8,243                (5,121)               

Net change in fund balance 53,290              53,290              159,913            106,623            117,011            

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,609,148         1,609,148         1,609,148         -                        1,492,137         

Fund balance, end of year 1,662,438$       1,662,438$       1,769,061$       106,623$          1,609,148$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
LANDER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Federal grants 8,103$              8,103$              -$                      (8,103)$            -$                      
State grants 70,000              70,000              53,460              (16,540)            79,799              

Total intergovernmental 78,103              78,103              53,460              (24,643)            79,799              
Total revenues 78,103              78,103              53,460              (24,643)            79,799              

EXPENDITURES:
Community support

Services and supplies 20,000              20,000              -                        20,000              6,000                
Capital outlay 58,103              58,103              53,460              4,643                73,799              

Total expenditures 78,103              78,103              53,460              24,643              79,799              

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balance -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Fund balance, beginning of year 26,355              26,355              26,355              -                        26,355              

Fund balance, end of year 26,355$            26,355$            26,355$            -$                      26,355$            

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
DOE NUCLEAR REPOSITORY FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Federal grants 32,900$            32,900$            26,894$            (6,006)$            69,432$            

Total intergovernmental 32,900              32,900              26,894              (6,006)              69,432              
Total revenues 32,900              32,900              26,894              (6,006)              69,432              

EXPENDITURES:
Public safety

Services and supplies 32,900              32,900              26,894              6,006                69,432              
Total expenditures 32,900              32,900              26,894              6,006                69,432              

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balance -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Fund balance, beginning of year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Fund balance, end of year -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
REGIONAL STREETS & HIGHWAYS FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Gasoline tax 368,967$          368,967$          374,064$          5,097$              379,684$          
    Total tax revenue 368,967            368,967            374,064            5,097                379,684            
Total revenues 368,967            368,967            374,064            5,097                379,684            

EXPENDITURES:
Public works

Services and supplies 50,000              50,000              -                        50,000              -                        
Capital outlay 1,450,000         1,450,000         -                        1,450,000         -                        

Total expenditures 1,500,000         1,500,000         -                        1,500,000         -                        

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,131,033)        (1,131,033)        374,064            1,505,097         379,684            

Net change in fund balance (1,131,033)        (1,131,033)        374,064            1,505,097         379,684            

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,450,920         2,450,920         2,450,920         -                        2,071,236         

Fund balance, end of year 1,319,887$       1,319,887$       2,824,984$       1,505,097$       2,450,920$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
TOWN OF AUSTIN FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 9,750$              9,750$              9,131$              (619)$                9,087$              
Net proceeds of mines -                        -                        41,209              41,209              8,791                
Franchise taxes 7,500                7,500                8,051                551                   8,314                
    Total Taxes 17,250 17,250 58,391 41,141 26,192

Licenses and permits
Business licenses 1,300                1,300                1,320                20                     1,200                
Gaming licenses 100                   100                   -                        (100)                  -                        
Animal licenses 50                     50                     -                        (50)                    -                        

Total licenses and permits 1,450                1,450                1,320                (130)                  1,200                

Intergovernmental
Consolidated tax 14,388              14,388              15,210              822                   15,299              

Total intergovernmental 14,388              14,388              15,210              822                   15,299              

Charges for services
Cemetary fees 500                   500                   100                   (400)                  200                   

Total charges for services 500 500 100 (400) 200                   

Investment earnings
Interest 40                     40                     1,328                1,288                713                   

Total investment earnings 40 40 1,328 1,288 713

Other revenue
Miscellaneous -                        -                        10                     10                     10                     
    Total other revenue -                        -                        10                     10                     10                     
Total revenues 33,628              33,628              76,359              42,731              43,614              

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies 29,700              29,700              20,824              8,876                24,103              
Total general government 29,700              29,700              20,824              8,876                24,103              

Public works
Services and supplies 12,000              12,000              3,050                8,950                2,740                

Total public works 12,000              12,000              3,050                8,950                2,740                

Health and sanitation
Services and supplies 6,000                6,000                6,000                -                        6,000                

Total health and sanitation 6,000                6,000                6,000                -                        6,000                

Culture and recreation
Services and supplies 3,200                3,200                3,200                -                        7,500                

Total culture and recreation 3,200                3,200                3,200                -                        7,500                
Total expenditures 50,900              50,900              33,074              17,826              40,343              

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (17,272)             (17,272)             43,285              60,557              3,271                

Net change in fund balance (17,272)             (17,272)             43,285              60,557              3,271                

Fund balance, beginning of year 82,961              82,961              82,961              -                        79,690              
Fund balance, end of year 65,689$            65,689$            126,246$          60,557$            82,961$            

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
TOWN OF BATTLE MOUNTAIN FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 23,213$            23,213$            22,976$            (237)$                22,638$            
Franchise taxes 52,000              52,000              45,087              (6,913)               51,947              
    Total tax revenue 75,213              75,213              68,063              (7,150)               74,585              

Licenses and permits
Business licenses 20,500              20,500              24,710              4,210                25,700              
Gaming licenses 14,000              14,000              14,929              929                   16,613              
Animal licenses 250                   250                   25                     (225)                  125                   

Total licenses and permits 34,750              34,750              39,664              4,914                42,438              

Intergovernmental
Consolidated Tax 215,429            215,429            227,787            12,358              229,130            

Total intergovernmental 215,429            215,429            227,787            12,358              229,130            

Investment earnings
Interest 600                   600                   10,268              9,668                9,727                

Total investment earnings 600                   600                   10,268              9,668                9,727                

Other revenue
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        500                   
    Total other revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        500                   
Total revenues 325,992            325,992            345,782            19,790              356,380            

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies 326,000            326,000            308,253            17,747              318,703            
Capital outlay 50,000              50,000              -                        50,000              -                        

Total general government 376,000            376,000            308,253            67,747              318,703            

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay 91,150              91,150              87,402              3,748                33,393              

Total culture and recreation 91,150              91,150              87,402              3,748                33,393              
Total expenditures 467,150            467,150            395,655            71,495              352,096            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (141,158)           (141,158)           (49,873)             91,285              4,284                

Net change in fund balance (141,158)           (141,158)           (49,873)             91,285              4,284                

Fund balance, beginning of year 955,701            955,701            955,701            -                        951,417            
Fund balance, end of year 814,543$          814,543$          905,828$          91,285$            955,701$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

89

145



LANDER COUNTY
CULTURE AND RECREATION

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad valorem 518,597$          518,597$          482,414$          (36,183)$           510,602$          
    Total tax revenue 518,597            518,597            482,414            (36,183)             510,602            

Intergovernmental
Federal payment in lieu of taxes 450,000            450,000            1,003,801         553,801            1,058,585         

  Total intergovernmental 450,000            450,000            1,003,801         553,801            1,058,585         

Charges for services
Cemetary fees 3,200                3,200                6,315                3,115                5,715                
Green fees 35,000              35,000              34,992              (8)                      23,727              
Golf cart fees 7,000                7,000                6,650                (350)                  5,500                
Pool fees 15,000              15,000              717                   (14,283)             5,835                
Trail fees 4,000                4,000                3,600                (400)                  75                     
Event fees 1,000                1,000                12,750              11,750              1,125                

Total charges for services 65,200              65,200              65,024              (176)                  41,977              

Other revenue
Rental income 20,000              20,000              32,462              12,462              -                        
Miscellaneous -                        -                        226,850            226,850            -                        

Total other revenues 20,000              20,000              259,312            239,312            -                        

Total revenues 1,033,797         1,053,797         1,810,551         756,754            1,611,164         
(continued)

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
CULTURE AND RECREATION

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
EXPENDITURES:

Health and sanitation
Cemeteries

Services and supplies 33,350             33,350            15,319            18,031              18,447            
Total cemeteries 33,350             33,350            15,319            18,031              18,447            

Culture and Recreation
Battle Mountain golf course

Salaries and wages 127,900            127,900            90,743              37,157              88,186              
Employee benefits 76,250              76,250              38,246              38,004              49,085              
Services and supplies 146,100            146,100            169,478            (23,378)             120,123            

Total Battle Mountain golf course 350,250            350,250            298,467            51,783              257,394            

Lander County parks
Salaries and wages 61,635              61,635              15,033              46,602              15,266              
Employee benefits 41,250              41,250              6,066                35,184              8,625                
Services and supplies 337,600            337,600            271,824            65,776              242,177            

Total Lander County parks 440,485            440,485            292,923            147,562            266,068            

Lander County pools
Salaries and wages 211,680            211,680            30,831              180,849            45,636              
Employee benefits 81,120              81,120              16,452              64,668              12,124              
Services and supplies 72,380              72,380              31,742              40,638              27,271              

Total Lander County pools 365,180            365,180            79,025              286,155            85,031              

Other culture and recreation
Salaries and wages 82,900              82,900              83,402              (502)                  -                        
Employee benefits 33,060              33,060              31,307              1,753                -                        

Total other culture and recreation 115,960            115,960            114,709            1,251                -                        

Battle Mountain civic center
Services and supplies 163,000            163,000            114,069            48,931              27,250              

Total Battle Mountain civic center 163,000            163,000            114,069            48,931              27,250              

Battle Mountain & Austin libraries
Services and supplies 116,020            116,020            115,730            290                   115,495            

Total BM & Austin libraries 116,020            116,020            115,730            290                   115,495            

  Total expenditures 1,584,245         1,584,245         1,030,242         554,003            769,685            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (550,448)           (530,448)           780,309            1,310,757         841,479            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        47,193              
Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        (47,193)             

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balance (550,448)           (530,448)           780,309            1,310,757         841,479            

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,991,431         5,991,431         5,991,431         -                        5,149,952         

Fund balance, end of year 5,440,983$       5,460,983$       6,771,740$       1,310,757$       5,991,431$       

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

Budget
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LANDER COUNTY
RESERVE FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Investement earnings
Interest -$                      -$                      10,659$            10,659$            6,786$              
    Total investment earnings -                        -                        10,659              10,659              6,786                

Other revenue
 Geothermal revenue 85,000              85,000              287,256            202,256            252,661            

    Total other revenue 85,000              85,000              287,256            202,256            252,661            
Total revenues 85,000              85,000              297,915            212,915            259,447            

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Capital outlay 485,000            485,000            -                        485,000            -                        
  Total Expenditures 485,000            485,000            -                        485,000            -                        

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (400,000)           (400,000)           297,915            697,915            259,447            

Net change in fund balance (400,000)           (400,000)           297,915            697,915            259,447            

Fund balance, beginning of year 822,628            822,628            822,628            -                        563,181            

Fund balance, end of year 422,628$          422,628$          1,120,543$       697,915$          822,628$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
TITLE III SRS/CRA FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Forest reserve fees -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      6,489$              

Total intergovernmental -                        -                        -                        -                        6,489                
Total revenues -                        -                        -                        -                        6,489                

EXPENDITURES:
Public works

Services and supplies 183,365            183,365            -                        183,365            -                        
Total expenditures 183,365            183,365            -                        183,365            -                        

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (183,365)           (183,365)           -                        183,365            6,489                

Net change in fund balance (183,365)           (183,365)           -                        183,365            6,489                

Fund balance, beginning of year 189,858            189,858            189,858            -                        183,369            

Fund balance, end of year 6,493$              6,493$              189,858$          183,365$          189,858$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT FEES FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Administrative assessments 14,000$            14,000$            18,207$            4,207$              21,726$            
    Total charges for services 14,000              14,000              18,207              4,207                21,726              
Total revenues 14,000              14,000              18,207              4,207                21,726              

EXPENDITURES:
Judicial

Services and supplies 22,000              22,000              1,556                20,444              2,354                
Total expenditures 22,000              22,000              1,556                20,444              2,354                

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (8,000)               (8,000)               16,651              24,651              19,372              

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (16,090)             (16,090)             (520)                  15,570              (15,385)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (16,090)             (16,090)             (520)                  15,570              (15,385)             

Net change in fund balance (24,090)             (24,090)             16,131              40,221              3,987                

Fund balance, beginning of year 37,535              37,535              37,535              -                        33,548              

Fund balance, end of year 13,445$            13,445$            53,666$            40,221$            37,535$            

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
GENETIC MARKING TESTING FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Fees 14,100$            14,100$            8,436$              (5,664)$             9,754$              
    Total charges for services 14,100              14,100              8,436                (5,664)               9,754                
Total revenues 14,100              14,100              8,436                (5,664)               9,754                

EXPENDITURES:
Judicial

Services and supplies 14,100$            14,100$            8,436$              5,664                9,754$              
Total expenditures 14,100              14,100              8,436                5,664                9,754                

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balance -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Fund balance, beginning of year -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Fund balance, end of year -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
FORENSIC SERVICES FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Fees 1,800$            1,800$            1,180$            (620)$              1,920$            
    Total charges for services 1,800              1,800              1,180              (620)                1,920              
Total revenues 1,800              1,800              1,180              (620)                1,920              

EXPENDITURES:
Public safety

Services and supplies 3,000              3,000              -                      3,000              -                      
Total expenditures 3,000              3,000              -                      3,000              -                      

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,200)             (1,200)             1,180              2,380              1,920              

Net change in fund balance (1,200)             (1,200)             1,180              2,380              1,920              

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,203              5,203              5,203              -                      3,283              

Fund balance, end of year 4,003$            4,003$            6,383$            2,380$            5,203$            

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
DISTRICT DRUG COURT FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Fees 8,500$              8,500$              16,485$            7,985$              6,739$              
    Total charges for services 8,500                8,500                16,485              7,985                6,739                
Total revenues 8,500                8,500                16,485              7,985                6,739                

EXPENDITURES:
Judicial

Services and supplies 35,000              35,000            10,139            24,861             4,182               
Total expenditures 35,000              35,000              10,139              24,861              4,182                

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (26,500)            (26,500)            6,346                32,846              2,557                

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                        -                        25,000              25,000              -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        25,000              25,000              -                        

Net change in fund balance (26,500)            (26,500)            31,346              57,846              2,557                

Fund balance, beginning of year 57,826              57,826              57,826              -                        55,269              

Fund balance, end of year 31,326$            31,326$            89,172$            57,846$            57,826$            

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
COURT FACILITY FEES FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Court fees 22,000$            22,000$            25,846$            3,846$              30,890$            
    Total charges for services 22,000              22,000              25,846              3,846                30,890              
Total revenues 22,000              22,000              25,846              3,846                30,890              

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 22,000              22,000              25,846              3,846                30,890              

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (30,945)            (30,945)            (30,945)            -                        (34,915)            

Total other financing sources (uses) (30,945)            (30,945)            (30,945)            -                        (34,915)            

Net change in fund balance (8,945)              (8,945)              (5,099)              3,846                (4,025)              

Fund balance, beginning of year 137,255            137,255            137,255            -                        141,280            

Fund balance, end of year 128,310$          128,310$          132,156$          3,846$              137,255$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
JUVENILE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Administrative assessments 7,500$              7,500$              6,067$              (1,433)$            6,982$              
    Total charges for services 7,500                7,500                6,067                (1,433)              6,982                
Total revenues 7,500                7,500                6,067                (1,433)              6,982                

EXPENDITURES:
Judicial

Services and supplies 6,000                6,000                6,167                (167)                 2,895                
Total expenditures 6,000                6,000                6,167                (167)                 2,895                

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,500                1,500                (100)                 (1,600)              4,087                

Net change in fund balance 1,500                1,500                (100)                 (1,600)              4,087                

Fund balance, beginning of year 8,895                8,895                8,895                -                       4,808                

Fund balance, end of year 10,395$            10,395$            8,795$              (1,600)$            8,895$              

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
MINE MAP FEES FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Map fees 16,000$            16,000$            26,760$            10,760$            21,290$            
    Total charges for services 16,000              16,000              26,760              10,760              21,290              
Total revenues 16,000              16,000              26,760              10,760              21,290              

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies 150,500            150,500            15,425              135,075            13,392              
Total expenditures 150,500            150,500            15,425              135,075            13,392              

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (134,500)          (134,500)          11,335              145,835            7,898                

Net change in fund balance (134,500)          (134,500)          11,335              145,835            7,898                

Fund balance, beginning of year 164,672            164,672            164,672            -                       156,774            

Fund balance, end of year 30,172$            30,172$            176,007$          145,835$          164,672$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
TECHNOLOGY FEES FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Charges for services
Recorder fees 8,500$              8,500$              9,711$              1,211$              7,820$              
Assessor commissions 300,000            300,000            794,367            494,367            337,277            
    Total charges for services 308,500            308,500            804,078            495,578            345,097            

Investment earnings
Interest 2,146                2,146                24,832              22,686              22,911              

Total investment earnings 2,146                2,146                24,832              22,686              22,911              
Total revenues 310,646            310,646            828,910            518,264            368,008            

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Recorder
Services and supplies 25,000              25,000              4,289                20,711              2,360                

Total recorder 25,000              25,000              4,289                20,711              2,360                

Assessor
Services and supplies 865,000            865,000            242,924            622,076            358,699            
Capital outlay 770,000            770,000            152,564            617,436            483,992            

Total assessor 1,635,000         1,635,000         395,488            1,239,512         842,691            
Total expenditures 1,660,000         1,660,000         399,777            1,260,223         845,051            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,349,354)        (1,349,354)        429,133            1,778,487         (477,043)           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (125,000)           (125,000)           (125,000)           -                        (90,079)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (125,000)           (125,000)           (125,000)           -                        (90,079)             

Net change in fund balance (1,474,354)        (1,474,354)        304,133            1,778,487         (567,122)           

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,969,893         1,969,893         1,969,893         -                        2,537,015         

Fund balance, end of year 495,539$          495,539$          2,274,026$       1,778,487$       1,969,893$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
AUSTIN CAPITAL ACQUISITION FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Investment earnings
Interest 18$                  18$                  339$                321$                276$                
     Total investment earnings 18                    18                    339                  321                  276                  

Total revenues 18                    18                    339                  321                  276                  

EXPENDITURES:
Public works

Services and supplies 12,000             12,000             -                       12,000             182                  
Total expenditures 12,000             12,000             -                       12,000             182                  

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (11,982)            (11,982)            339                  12,321             94                    

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,443               1,443               1,948               505                  3,237               

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,443               1,443               1,948               505                  3,237               

Net change in fund balance (10,539)            (10,539)            2,287               12,826             3,331               

Fund balance, beginning of year 29,999             29,999             29,999             -                       26,668             

Fund balance, end of year 19,460$           19,460$           32,286$           12,826$           29,999$           

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
EQUIPMENT/BUILDING REPLACEMENT FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Net proceeds of mines -$                      -$                      4,060,168$       4,060,168$       131,866$          
    Total tax revenue -                        -                        4,060,168         4,060,168         131,866            
  Total revenues -                        -                        4,060,168         4,060,168         131,866            

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies 334,985            334,985            251,236            83,749              385,130            
Total general government 334,985            334,985            251,236            83,749              385,130            

Public works
Capital outlay 1,740,200         1,740,200         909,086            831,114            661,643            

Total public works 1,740,200         1,740,200         909,086            831,114            661,643            
Total expenditures 2,075,185         2,075,185         1,160,322         914,863            1,046,773         

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,075,185)        (2,075,185)        2,899,846         4,975,031         (914,907)           

Net change in fund balance (2,075,185)        (2,075,185)        2,899,846         4,975,031         (914,907)           

Fund balance, beginning of year 7,160,437         7,160,437         7,160,437         -                        8,075,344         

Fund balance, end of year 5,085,252$       5,085,252$       10,060,283$     4,975,031$       7,160,437$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
CAPITAL ACQUISITION FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Tax revenue
Ad Valorem 173,831$          173,831$          161,701$          (12,130)$           171,151$          
Net proceeds of mines -                        -                        340,310            340,310            38,498              
    Total tax revenue 173,831            173,831            502,011            328,180            209,649            
Total revenues 173,831            173,831            502,011            328,180            209,649            

EXPENDITURES:
Public works

Services and supplies 40,000              40,000              6,267                33,733              145                   
Capital outlay 60,000              60,000              -                        60,000              -                        

Total expenditures 100,000            100,000            6,267                93,733              145                   

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 73,831              73,831              495,744            421,913            209,504            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (42,500)             (42,500)             (13,418)             29,082              (22,291)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (42,500)             (42,500)             (13,418)             29,082              (22,291)             

Net change in fund balance 31,331              31,331              482,326            450,995            187,213            

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,221,740         3,221,740         3,221,740         -                        3,034,527         

Fund balance, end of year 3,253,071$       3,253,071$       3,704,066$       450,995$          3,221,740$       

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
BATTLE MOUNTAIN CAPITAL ACQUISITION FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Investment earnings
Interest 118$                 118$                 2,070$              1,952$              1,688$              
     Total investment earnings 118                   118                   2,070                1,952                1,688                
  Total revenues 118                   118                   2,070                1,952                1,688                

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Capital outlay 40,000              40,000              -                        40,000              1,072                
Total expenditures 40,000              40,000              -                        40,000              1,072                

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (39,882)             (39,882)             2,070                41,952              616                   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 8,494                8,494                11,470              2,976                19,054              

Total other financing sources (uses) 8,494                8,494                11,470              2,976                19,054              

Net change in fund balance (31,388)             (31,388)             13,540              44,928              19,670              

Fund balance, beginning of year 183,423            183,423            183,423            -                        163,753            

Fund balance, end of year 152,035$          152,035$          196,963$          44,928$            183,423$          

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
EMERGENCY MAINTENANCE FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Investment earnings
Interest -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                            -$                    
    Total investment earnings -                        -                        -                      -                              -                      
Total revenues -                        -                        -                      -                              -                      

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Services and supplies 750,000            750,000            129,315          620,685                  84,903            
Capital outlay 50,000              50,000              214,602          (164,602)                 -                      

Total expenditures 800,000            800,000            343,917          456,083                  84,903            

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (800,000)          (800,000)          (343,917)         456,083                  (84,903)           

Net change in fund balance (800,000)          (800,000)          (343,917)         456,083                  (84,903)           

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,481,139         3,481,139         3,481,139       -                              3,566,042       

Fund balance, end of year 2,681,139$       2,681,139$       3,137,222$     456,083$                3,481,139$     

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY
COURT FACILITIES CAPITAL FUND

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
State grants -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                            10,000$          
     Total intergovernmental -                        -                        -                      -                              10,000            

Investment Earnings
Interest 1,262                1,262                7,250              5,988                      9,418              
     Total investment earnings 1,262                1,262                7,250              5,988                      9,418              
Total revenues 1,262                1,262                7,250              5,988                      19,418            

EXPENDITURES:
General government

Capital outlay 575,000            575,000            -                      575,000                  1,000,000       
Total expenditures 575,000            575,000            -                      575,000                  1,000,000       

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (573,738)          (573,738)          7,250              580,988                  (980,582)         

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 47,035              47,035              31,465            (15,570)                   50,300            

Total other financing sources (uses) 47,035              47,035              31,465            (15,570)                   50,300            

Net change in fund balance (526,703)          (526,703)          38,715            565,418                  (930,282)         

Fund balance, beginning of year 648,237            648,237            648,237          -                              1,578,519       

Fund balance, end of year 121,534$          121,534$          686,952$        565,418$                648,237$        

Budget

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)
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LANDER COUNTY 
BATTLE MOUNTAIN WATER FUND 

Proprietary Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016) 
 

 
108 

 
Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
OPERATING REVENUES:

Water use fees 632,000$         632,000$         764,988$         132,988$         764,612$         
Rent 1,200               1,200               605                  (595)                 1,505               
Miscelleneous -                       -                       2,969               2,969               328                  

  Total operating revenues 633,200           633,200           768,562           135,362           766,445           

OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and wages 119,315           119,315           116,426           2,889               109,335           
Employee benefits 95,880             95,880             87,498             8,382               (36,129)            
Services and supplies 600,125           600,125           317,658           282,467           275,153           
Depreciation 300,000           300,000           407,984           (107,984)          405,671           

Total operating expenditures 1,115,320        1,115,320        929,566           185,754           754,030           

Operating income (Loss) (482,120)          (482,120)          (161,004)          321,116           12,415             

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 2,244               2,244               38,193             35,949             30,920             

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,244               2,244               38,193             35,949             30,920             

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS
Contributions -                       -                       257,181           257,181           100,173           

Net change in net position (479,876)          (479,876)          134,370           614,246           143,508           

Net position, beginning of year 20,017,622      20,017,622      20,017,622      -                       19,874,114      

Net position, end of year 19,537,746$    19,537,746$    20,151,992$    614,246$         20,017,622$    

Budget
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LANDER COUNTY 
BATTLE MOUNTAIN SEWER FUND 

Proprietary Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016) 
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Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
OPERATING REVENUES:

Sewer use fees 691,000$         691,000$         703,032$         12,032$           716,176$         
Rent 2,100               2,100               605                  (1,495)              1,505               
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                       1,915               

Total operating revenues 693,100           693,100           703,637           10,537             719,596           

OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and wages 119,315           119,315           116,047           3,268               104,472           
Employee benefits 95,880             95,880             85,694             10,186             (32,815)            
Services and supplies 512,300           512,300           212,258           300,042           278,259           
Depreciation 340,000           340,000           364,868           (24,868)            355,893           

Total operating expenditures 1,067,495        1,067,495        778,867           288,628           705,809           

Operating income (loss) (374,395)          (374,395)          (75,230)            299,165           13,787             

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 4,930               4,930               101,657           96,727             78,374             
County option sales tax 650,000           650,000           695,415           45,415             672,936           

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 654,930           654,930           797,072           142,142           751,310           

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS
Contributions -                       -                       1,847,911        1,847,911        1,107,481        

Net change in net position 280,535           280,535           2,569,753        2,289,218        1,872,578        

Net position, beginning of year 18,833,607      18,833,607      18,833,607      -                       16,961,029      

Net position, end of year 19,114,142$    19,114,142$    21,403,360$    2,289,218$      18,833,607$    

Budget
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LANDER COUNTY 
MT. LEWIS COMMUNICATION SITE FUND 

Proprietary Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016) 
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Variance
Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2016
OPERATING REVENUES:

Communication use fees 13,500$           13,500$           8,500$             (5,000)$            13,200$           
  Total operating revenues 13,500             13,500             8,500               (5,000)              13,200             

OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Services and supplies 10,400             10,400             4,729               5,671               6,054               
Depreciation 36,372             36,372             36,372             -                       36,372             

Total operating expenditures 46,772             46,772             41,101             5,671               42,426             

Operating income (loss) (33,272)            (33,272)            (32,601)            671                  (29,226)            

Net change in net position (33,272)            (33,272)            (32,601)            671                  (29,226)            

Net position, beginning of year 271,294           271,294           271,294           -                       300,520           

Net position, end of year 238,022$         238,022$         238,693$         671$                271,294$         

Budget
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Fiduciary Funds 

Trust and Agency 
   
 
Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent 
for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.  Agency Funds are custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 
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LANDER COUNTY 
All Trust and Agency Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Balance Balance
6/30/2016 Additions Deductions 6/30/2017

ARGENTA TELEVISION 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT

Assets:
Cash 317$                 50,064$                50,056$                   325$                 

Total Assets 317$                 50,064$                50,056$                   325$                 

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 317$                 50,064$                50,056$                   325$                 

Total Liabilities 317$                50,064$               50,056$                   325$                

BATTLE MOUNTAIN FAIR AND 
RECREATION FUND

Assets:
Cash 835,657$          386,489$              506,677$                 715,469$          

Total Assets 835,657$          386,489$              506,677$                 715,469$          

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 835,657$          386,489$              506,677$                 715,469$          

Total Liabilities 835,657$         386,489$             506,677$                 715,469$         

AUSTIN FAIR AND 
RECREATION FUND

Assets:
Cash 179,589$          40,993$                41,874$                   178,708$          

Total Assets 179,589$          40,993$                41,874$                   178,708$          

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 179,589$          40,993$                41,874$                   178,708$          

Total Liabilities 179,589$         40,993$               41,874$                   178,708$         

SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT NO.2
Assets:

Cash 318$                 6,347$                  5,382$                     1,283$              

Total Assets 318$                 6,347$                  5,382$                     1,283$              

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 318$                 6,347$                  5,382$                     1,283$              

Total Liabilities 318$                6,347$                 5,382$                     1,283$             

LANDER COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Assets:

Cash 574,913$          3,483,735$           3,991,461$              67,187$            
Total Assets 574,913$         3,483,735$          3,991,461$              67,187$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 574,913$          3,483,735$           3,991,461$              67,187$            

Total Liabilities 574,913$         3,483,735$          3,991,461$              67,187$           
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LANDER COUNTY 
All Trust and Agency Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Balance Balance

6/30/2016 Additions Deductions 6/30/2017
LANDER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Assets:

Cash 843,974$          5,126,790$           5,859,443$              111,321$          
Total Assets 843,974$         5,126,790$          5,859,443$              111,321$         

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 843,974$          5,126,790$           5,859,443$              111,321$          

Total Liabilities 843,974$         5,126,790$          5,859,443$              111,321$         

LANDER COUNTY CLERK
Assets:

Cash 33,193$            7,820$                  17,654$                   23,359$            
Total Assets 33,193$           7,820$                 17,654$                   23,359$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 33,193$            7,820$                  17,654$                   23,359$            

Total Liabilities 33,193$           7,820$                 17,654$                   23,359$           

FISH AND GAME FUND
Assets:

Cash 9,364$              -$                          406$                        8,958$              

Total Assets 9,364$              -$                          406$                        8,958$              

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 9,364$              -$                          406$                        8,958$              

Total Liabilities 9,364              -                          406                         8,958              

STATE OF NEVADA
Assets:

Cash 62,539$            1,393,104$           1,419,788$              35,855$            

Total Assets 62,539$            1,393,104$           1,419,788$              35,855$            

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 62,539$            1,393,104$           1,419,788$              35,855$            

Total Liabilities 62,539$           1,393,104$          1,419,788$              35,855$           

RANGE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 6
Assets:

Cash 142,482$          44,410$                1,340$                     185,552$          
Total Assets 142,482$         44,410$               1,340$                     185,552$         

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 142,482$          44,410$                1,340$                     185,552$          

Total Liabilities 142,482$         44,410$               1,340$                     185,552$         
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LANDER COUNTY 
All Trust and Agency Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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Balance Balance

6/30/2016 Additions Deductions 6/30/2017
KINGSTON CAPITAL ACQUISITION
Assets:

Cash 29,135$            1,298$                  -$                             30,433$            
Total Assets 29,135$           1,298$                 -$                             30,433$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 29,135$            1,298$                  -$                             30,433$            

Total Liabilities 29,135$           1,298$                 -$                             30,433$           

KINGSTON TOWN GENERAL FUND
Assets:

Cash 74,581$            44,117$                44,870$                   73,828$            
Total Assets 74,581$           44,117$               44,870$                   73,828$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 74,581$            44,117$                44,870$                   73,828$            

Total Liabilities 74,581$           44,117$               44,870$                   73,828$           

KINGSTON VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
Assets:

Cash 19,450$            10,306$                15,753$                   14,003$            
Total Assets 19,450$           10,306$               15,753$                   14,003$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 19,450$            10,306$                15,753$                   14,003$            

Total Liabilities 19,450$           10,306$               15,753$                   14,003$           

KINGSTON TOWN WATER DISTRICT
Assets:

Cash 312,192$          94,928$                89,002$                   318,118$          
Total Assets 312,192$         94,928$               89,002$                   318,118$         

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 312,192$          94,928$                89,002$                   318,118$          

Total Liabilities 312,192$         94,928$               89,002$                   318,118$         

ASSISTANCE TO VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
Assets:

Cash 175$                 1,065$                  1,115$                     125$                 
Total Assets 175$                1,065$                 1,115$                     125$                

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 175$                 1,065$                  1,115$                     125$                 

Total Liabilities 175$                1,065$                 1,115$                     125$                
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Balance Balance

6/30/2016 Additions Deductions 6/30/2017
DISTRICT ATTORNEY TRUST ACCOUNT
Assets:

Cash 133,784$          14,762$                5,686$                     142,860$          
Total Assets 133,784$         14,762$               5,686$                     142,860$         

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 133,784$          14,762$                5,686$                     142,860$          

Total Liabilities 133,784$         14,762$               5,686$                     142,860$         

INMATE COMMISSARY
Assets:

Cash 37,004$            61,429$                56,064$                   42,369$            
Total Assets 37,004$           61,429$               56,064$                   42,369$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 37,004$            61,429$                56,064$                   42,369$            

Total Liabilities 37,004$           61,429$               56,064$                   42,369$           

INMATE WELFARE FUND ACCOUNT
Assets:

Cash 3,970$              2,636$                  2,989$                     3,617$              
Total Assets 3,970$             2,636$                 2,989$                     3,617$             

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 3,970$              2,636$                  2,989$                     3,617$              

Total Liabilities 3,970$             2,636$                 2,989$                     3,617$             

BATTLE MOUNTAIN CEMETERY DISTRICT
Assets:

Cash 1$                     11,340$                10,840$                   501$                 
Total Assets 1$                    11,340$               10,840$                   501$                

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 1$                     11,340$                10,840$                   501$                 

Total Liabilities 1$                    11,340$               10,840$                   501$                

ARGENTA JUSTICE COURT
Assets:

Cash 18,758$            321,168$              334,326$                 5,600$              
Total Assets 18,758$           321,168$             334,326$                 5,600$             

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 18,758$            321,168$              334,326$                 5,600$              

Total Liabilities 18,758$           321,168$             334,326$                 5,600$             
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Balance Balance

6/30/2017 Additions Deductions 6/30/2017
AUSTIN JUSTICE COURT
Assets:

Cash 480$                 101,184$              97,352$                   4,312$              
Total Assets 480$                101,184$             97,352$                   4,312$             

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 480$                 101,184$              97,352$                   4,312$              

Total Liabilities 480$                101,184$             97,352$                   4,312$             

LANDER COUNTY TREASURER DISTRICT
ATTORNEY PUBLIC ADMIN BROWN'S ESTATE

Assets:
Cash 30,122$            3$                         -$                             30,125$            

Total Assets 30,122$           3$                        -$                             30,125$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 30,122$            3$                         -$                             30,125$            

Total Liabilities 30,122$           3$                        -$                             30,125$           

LANDER COUNTY TREASURER GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Assets:
Cash 95,262$            126$                     1,972$                     93,416$            

Total Assets 95,262$           126$                    1,972$                     93,416$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 95,262$            126$                     1,972$                     93,416$            

Total Liabilities 95,262$           126$                    1,972$                     93,416$           

LANDER COUNTY TREASURER GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1

Assets:
Cash 37,139$            60,356$                26,735$                   70,760$            

Total Assets 37,139$           60,356$               26,735$                   70,760$           

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 37,139$            60,356$                26,735$                   70,760$            

Total Liabilities 37,139$           60,356$               26,735$                   70,760$           

LANDER COUNTY TREASURER DISTRICT
ATTORNEY PUBLIC ADMIN MAYS ESTATE

Assets:
Cash 3,711$              -$                          -$                             3,711$              

Total Assets 3,711$             -$                         -$                             3,711$             

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 3,711$              -$                          -$                             3,711$              

Total Liabilities 3,711$             -$                         -$                             3,711$             
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Balance Balance

6/30/2017 Additions Deductions 6/30/2017
ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
Assets:

Cash 205$                 93$                       99$                          199$                 
Total Assets 205$                93$                      99$                          199$                

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 205$                 93$                       99$                          199$                 

Total Liabilities 205$                93$                      99$                          199$                

BATTLE MOUNTAIN WATER AND 
SEWER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

Assets:
Cash 20,745$            9,625$                  30,370$                   -$                     

Total Assets 20,745$           9,625$                 30,370$                   -$                    

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 20,745$            9,625$                  30,370$                   -$                     

Total Liabilities 20,745$           9,625$                 30,370$                   -$                    

TOTAL - ALL TRUST AND
AGENCY FUNDS

Assets:
Cash 3,499,060$       11,274,188$         12,611,254$            2,161,994$       

Total Assets 3,499,060$      11,274,188$        12,611,254$            2,161,994$      

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 3,499,060$       11,274,188$         12,611,254$            2,161,994$       

Total Liabilities 3,499,060$      11,274,188$        12,611,254$            2,161,994$      
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
The Honorable County Commission       
Lander County 
Battle Mountain, Nevada 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lander County, 
Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 30, 2017.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Lander County, Nevada’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the following 
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a material 
weakness.  
 
2017-001  Bank Reconciliations 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs to be 
significant deficiencies. 
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2016-001  Bank Reconciliation Review 
2016-003 Segregation of Duties in Small Departments 
2016-004 Segregation of Duties in Treasurer’s Office 
2016-005 Credit Card Internal Controls 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Lander County, Nevada’s Response to Findings 
 
Lander County, Nevada’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
corrective action plan. Lander County’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
St. George, Utah 
December 30, 2017 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance 
With Statutes and Administrative Code in Accordance with 

NRS 354.624(4)(C) and 354.6241 
 
The Honorable County Commissioners 
Lander County 
Battle Mountain, Nevada 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Lander County, Nevada, for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2017.  Our audit also included test work on Lander 
County, Nevada’s compliance with selected requirements identified in the State of Nevada Revised Statutes 
(NRS) including, but not limited to, NRS section 354.624 and section 354.6241. 
 
The management of Lander County, Nevada is responsible for the County’s compliance with the NRS and 
regulations (Nevada Administrative Code).  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with 
those requirements based on our audit and make specific statements regarding funds established and the status 
of prior year findings and recommendations; accordingly, we make the following statements: 
 
The County is still working to resolve a compliance finding issued in the prior year audit report as finding 
2016-007. We noted four new instances of noncompliance during the fiscal year 2017 which are 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Recommendations. 
 
2017-002 Forest Reserves 
2017-003 County Auditor Duties 
2017-004 Public Official Bond 
2017-005 Purchasing Requirements 
2016-007 Budgetary Compliance 
 
Lander County has established several funds in accordance with NRS 354.624 as follows: 
 

Funds whose balance is required to be used only for specific purposes or carried forward to the 
succeeding fiscal year in any designated amount: 

 
Fiduciary Funds: 

Domestic Violence  Kingston Town 
Kingston Capital Acquisitions Kingston Water District 

 Kingston Vol. Fire Dept. Argenta TV Maint. District 
 Austin Fair and Recreation Battle Mountain Fair and Recreation  
 Sewer & Water District #2 Hospital District 
 Lander County School District State of Nevada 
 Fish and Game   Range Improvement #6 Trust 
 Lander County Clerk  District Attorney Trust Account 
 Inmate Commissary  Inmate Welfare Fund Account 
 Argenta Justice Court  Battle Mountain Cemetery District
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Austin Justice Court  Eleventh Judicial District Court 
Lander County Treasurer District Attorney Public Admin Brown’s Estate 

 Lander County Treasurer General Improvement District 
Lander County Treasurer General Improvement District #1  
Lander County Treasurer District Attorney Public Admin May’s Estate 
Battle Mountain Water and Sewer Customer Deposit Account 

 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Road and Bridge  Indigent  
State Medical Indigent  Aged Services 
Lander County Landfill  Lander County Airports 
Lander Economic Develop. DOE Nuclear Repository 
Regional Street & Hwy  Town of Austin 
Town of Battle Mountain Culture & Recreation 
Reserve    Title III SRS/CRA 
Admin Assessment Fees  Genetic Marker Testing 
Forensic Services  District Drug Court 
Court Facility Fees  Juvenile Admin Assessment 
Mine Map Fees   Technology Fees 
Agricultural Extension 
  

Capital Project Funds: 
Austin Capital Acquisitions Equipment/Building Replacement 
Capital Acquisition   Battle Mountain Capital Acquisition 
CCP    Emergency Maintenance 
Airport Capital Improvement Court Facilities Capital 

 
 
Lander County appears to be using the above listed funds expressly for the purposes for which they were 
created in accordance with NRS 354.624.  The funds are being administered in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles and the reserves, as applicable, appear reasonable and necessary to carry out 
the purposes of the funds.  Sources of revenues available and fund balances are reflected in the individual 
fund financial statements. 
 
NRS 354.624 requires that a schedule of all fees imposed by the County which are subject to the provisions of 
NRS 354.5989 be presented.  See page 127. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material 
noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements.  We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, Lander County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements identified above for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with NRS 354.624 and 354.6241. Our findings are described in a separate schedule of 
findings and recommendations, as item 2017-002, 2017-003, 2017-004, 2017-005, 2016-007. Our opinion on 
compliance is not modified with respect to these matters. 
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This report is intended solely for the use of Lander County, the State of Nevada, and other audit agencies and 
should not be used for any other purpose.  This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this 
report, which upon acceptance by Lander County is a matter of public record. 
 

 
 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
St. George, Utah 
December 30, 2017 
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The County created the CCP (Construction of Capital Projects) Fund under the authority of NRS 354.6113. 
This statute provides for construction of capital projects. The following are affirmative statements pertaining 
to the items required by the statute. 
 

 Interest earned on the cash balance of the fund was credited to the fund. 
 The money in the fund was used only for the construction of capital projects which were included in 

the plan for capital improvement of the local government prepared pursuant to NRS 350.013. 
 In fiscal year 2017, the money from the fund was used to construct the recreation center project, 

water and sewer projects, airport projects, and various paving projects as specified in the capital 
improvement plan for the County. 

 According to the fiscal year 2018 approved budget, the only money to be deposited in the fund next 
year will be interest earnings on investment balances. 

 In the next fiscal year, the County plans to use the remaining funds to continue construction on the 
water and sewer projects, airport projects, flood levee and various paving projects. 

 According to the fiscal year 2018 approved budget, there is no planned accumulation of money in the 
Fund. 

 
The County complied with the provisions of NRS 354.6113.
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Flat Fixed Fees:

Business license revenue adjusted
base at June 30, 2016 25,095$   

Adjustment to Base:

1. Percentage increase (decrease) in population of
the local government -4.8%

2. Percentage increase in the Consumer 
Price Index for the year ending on
December 31, next preceding the year
for which the limit is being calculated 1.6% -3.20%

Increase in base (803)        

Adjusted base at June 30, 2017 24,292     

Actual revenue 26,030     

Amount over (under) allowable amount 1,738$     
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for 
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over 

Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance  
 

 
The County Commission 
Lander County, Nevada 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  

We have audited Lander County, Nevada’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
Lander County, Nevada’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. Lander County, 
Nevada’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Lander County, Nevada’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards, (the Uniform Guidance) require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Lander County, 
Nevada’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lander County, Nevada’s 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and Passenger Facility Charge Program 

In our opinion, Lander County, Nevada, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Lander County, Nevada is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Lander County, Nevada’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Lander County, Nevada’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
St. George, Utah 
December 30, 2017 
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 Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

 
 Material weaknesses identified?    X    yes             no 
 Significant deficiencies identified?    X    yes             no 

 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?          yes        X    no 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal Control over major programs:     
 

 Material weaknesses identified?          yes        X    no 
 Significant deficiencies identified?          yes        X    no 

 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
    for major programs:  Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
    in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516?          yes       X    no 
 
Identification of major programs. 
 
CFDA Number(s)                        Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
 

20.106  Airport Improvement Program 
  

      
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type 
      A and type B programs: $ 750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?         yes        X    no 
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 Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
 
Material Weakness: 
 
2017-001 Bank Reconciliations 

 
Criteria:  Bank reconciliations on all bank accounts should be completed and reviewed 
monthly to prevent and detect material misstatements in financial reporting. 
 
Conditions:  The monthly bank reconciliations for December 2016 to June 2017 were not 
prepared until November 2017.  In addition, the June 2017 bank reconciliations contained 
material misstatements.  
 
Cause: County personnel assigned to prepare the bank reconciliations did not perform 
their duties timely.  These individuals may not currently possess all of the needed skills 
and background to accurately prepare bank reconciliations for the County. 
  
Effect: Material misstatements in financial reporting occurred and went undetected.  
Future misstatements may not be prevented and detected.  
 
Recommendation: We recommend the County personnel assigned to prepare the bank 
reconciliations obtain the training and assistance necessary to enable them to timely and 
accurately prepare the bank reconciliations for the County. 

 
Significant Deficiencies: 
 
2016-001 Bank Reconciliation Review 

 
Criteria:  Bank reconciliations should be reviewed monthly by a person independent of 
the preparation process. 
 
Condition:  The monthly bank reconciliations were not reviewed by a person independent 
of the preparation process. 
  
Cause: The monthly bank reconciliations for July 2016 to November 2016 were not 
provided to the Lander County Fiscal Officer for review.  The December 2016 to June 
2017 bank reconciliations were not prepared until November 2017 and were immediately 
provided to the external auditors for audit purposes.  Thus, the bank reconciliations were 
not provided to the Lander County Fiscal Officer for review prior to the audit. 
  
Effect: Reconciliation discrepancies and adjustments went unnoticed. Material 
misstatements in financial reporting occurred. 
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Section II - Financial Statement Findings, Continued 

 

   
Recommendation: We recommend the Lander County Fiscal Officer review the bank 
reconciliations after they are prepared each month and initial the reconciliations to 
document the review. 
 

2016-003 Segregation of Duties in Small Departments 
 

Criteria:  Authorization of transactions, custody of assets (primarily cash receipting), and 
record keeping duties should be segregated between different individuals. 
 
Conditions:  The County has inadequate segregation of duties over key financial controls 
in the following activities or departments: building department cash receipting, golf 
course cash receipting, sheriff department cash receipting, and landfill gate fee cash 
receipting.      
 
Cause: The County’s small departments have limited staff to be able to adequately 
segregate cash receipting and customer record keeping. 
 
Effect:  Inadequate segregation of duties creates the potential for fraud, theft, or errors in 
financial reporting to occur. 
 
Recommendations: We recommend the County design and implement controls to 
properly segregate custody of assets and record keeping duties in the small activities or 
departments where possible.  If a complete segregation of duties is not possible, 
mitigating controls such as oversight reviews should be implemented to reduce the 
potential for fraud, theft or errors to occur.  We also recommend the Lander County 
Fiscal Officer design and implement controls over the golf course and landfill cash 
receipting to ensure timely deposit of funds and better oversight of cash receipting 
locations with limited staff.  A cloud based software technology could be used to receipt 
and report County revenues from these locations.  HintonBurdick would be happy to 
assist the County with further review and recommendations in the departments or 
activities with a lack of segregation of duties. 
 

2016-004 Segregation of Duties in Treasurer’s Office 
 

Criteria:  Authorization of transactions, custody of assets, and record keeping duties 
should be segregated between different individuals. Otherwise, mitigating controls should 
be implemented. 
 
Condition:  The County has inadequate segregation of duties over key financial controls 
in the Treasurer’s office.  The County Treasurer can perform cash receipting, adjust 
customer payments, and perform bank reconciliations.  Mitigating controls appear to be 
in place, such as review of the payment adjustments, however the review of payment 
adjustments occurs only once a year. 
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Section II - Financial Statement Findings, Continued 

 

    
Cause: The County’s internal control design allows the Treasurer to authorize 
transactions, handle customer payments, and perform record keeping duties for the 
County with infrequent oversight from others. 
 
Effect:  Inadequate segregation of duties creates the potential for fraud, theft, or errors in 
financial reporting to occur. 
 
Recommendation: If possible, we recommend the County’s internal controls over cash 
receipting in the Treasurer’s office be modified to preclude the County Treasurer from 
cash receipting.  Also, we recommend the County Fiscal Officer review the customer 
payment adjustments monthly as opposed to annually.  The Fiscal Officer should initial 
the payment adjustments as evidence of the review and keep a record of the reviews. 
 

2016-005 Credit Card Internal Controls  
 

Criteria:  County purchase limitations should be followed for all transactions, including 
credit card transactions.  The Executive Director should authorize and oversee any 
changes to card limitations for the County. Credit card purchases should have supporting 
documentation and should be timely recorded in the proper department or fund to enable 
appropriate budget oversight. 
 
Conditions:  We noted that credit card transactions from November  2016 to June 2017 
were not recorded in the accounting system until September of 2017. In addition, we 
noted a purchase on the March credit card statement for $2,734 that did not have the 
appropriate documentation for the purchase attached. Furthermore, we noted that from 
July to November 2016 that credit card limits could be changed by the County Treasurer 
without approval from the Executive Director.  However, we observed the Executive 
Director took over the responsibility of adjusting credit card limits in December 2017. 
  
Causes: Before completion of the prior year audit, the County’s internal control policies 
had not been updated to address preauthorization of purchases when the intended method 
of payment was a credit card. Also, the internal control processes over credit cards were 
not properly designed to detect and correct the absence of the credit card transactions 
being posted to the accounting system from December 2016 to June 2017 until 
September 2017.     
 
Effects:  Purchases made on County credit cards can effectively circumvent the County’s 
purchase order limitation if the credit card limit it set high enough.  Credit card limits 
could be changed as needed without proper authorization before the Executive Director 
began overseeing the limits. Also, without timely recording of purchases to the 
accounting system, various departments were not able to properly oversee the budget to 
actual expenditures during the year. 
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Section II - Financial Statement Findings, Continued 

 

    
Recommendation: We recommend the County continue to follow re-established internal 
control policies over credit card purchases so that appropriate preauthorization for 
purchases exceeding the County’s purchase limitations are obtained and documented. We 
also recommend that the County design and implement controls to ensure that credit card 
purchases are recorded in the accounting system in a timely manner.  Also, supporting 
documentation should be maintained for all credit card purchases to enable the purchases 
to be audited or reviewed. 
 

 
 

 
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
 
No significant matters were noted. 

 
 
 
 Section V - Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
 
 
No prior audit findings. Not applicable.  
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title

Federal
CFDA

Number
Pass-Through Entity 
Identifying Number

Passed Through 
to 

Subreceipients
Total Federal 
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation

Direct Program:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-32-0001-25-2016 -$                      764,599$          
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-32-0001-26-2016 -                       231,239          

-                       995,838          
Passed through State of Nevada Department of Public

   Safety, Office of Traffic Safety
Highway Safety Cluster
Joining Forces Project 20.600 JF-2016-LCSO-00053 -                       5,370              
Joining Forces Project 20.600 JF-2017-LCSO-00004 -                       2,170              

-                       7,540              

Total Department of Transportation -                        1,003,378         

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through State of Nevada Department of Human
Resources: Division for Aging Services

Aging Cluster
Title IIIC - 1 - Nutrition Services 93.045 09000-07-13-17 -                        43,118              
Title IIIC - 2 - Nutrition Services 93.045 09000-04-24-17 -                        20,105              
Title IIIB - Transportation Program 93.044 09000-10-LX-17 -                        15,195              
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 09000-57-NX-17 -                        1,995                

Total Department of Health and Human Services -                        80,413              

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards -$                      1,083,791$       
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Note 1.  Basis of Presentation 
 
 
Reporting Entity: 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity or expenditure of all 
federal awards programs of Lander County (the County) for the year ended June 30, 2017. The County’s 
reporting entity is defined in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. All expenditure of federal awards 
received directly from federal agencies as well as federal awards passed through other government 
agencies are included in the schedule.  
 
Basis of Accounting: 
 
This accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 
Relationship to Basic Financial Statements: 
 
Expenditures of federal awards have been reported in the following funds:  
 

General fund 7,540$           
Non-major funds:

CCP Fund 995,838         
Aged Services Fund 80,413           

1,083,791$    

 
 

Indirect Cost Rate: 
 
The County did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate for fiscal year 2017. 
 
Federal Loans: 
 
The County did not have any federal loans for fiscal year 2017. 
 
Subrecipients: 
 
There were no subrecipients for fiscal year 2017. 
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Findings and Recommendations 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
 
To the Honorable County Commissioners 
Lander County  
Battle Mountain, Nevada 
 
Professional standards require that we provide written communications regarding deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that 
are identified during the audit of the financial statements.  We noted a few areas needing corrective action 
in order for the County to be in compliance with laws and regulations and we found circumstances that, if 
improved, would strengthen the County’s accounting system and control over its assets.  These items are 
discussed below for your consideration. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING: 
 
Material Weakness: 
 
See Financial Statement Findings on pages 132-135 
 
Significant Deficiencies: 

 
See Financial Statement Findings on pages 132-135 

 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS: 
 

Compliance: 
 

2017-002 Forest Reserves 
 

Criteria:  NRS 354.140 states, “Money distributed from the State for forest reserves must 
be expended for the benefit of the public schools and the public roads of the County in 
equal proportion for each object”  
 
Condition:  Forest reserve revenues received were not equally shared between the County 
and the School District. The County distributed them 75%/25% to the County and School 
District respectively. 
  
Cause: The County did not properly update revenue sharing controls according to recent 
changes made with NRS 354.140. 
 
Effect:  The County did not comply with Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 354.140 for 
fiscal year 2017. 
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Recommendation: We recommend the County establish controls to ensure compliance 
with NRS 354.140 and issue the remaining amount due to the School District as soon as 
possible.  

 
2017-003 County Auditor Duties 

 
Criteria:  NRS 354.290 states, “The county auditor of each county shall: (1) Audit all 
apportionments made by the county treasurer. (2) Keep a complete record of all such 
apportionments to and disbursements from funds established under NRS 354.604. (3) 
Keep accounts showing the amount of revenue received from each of the various sources, 
the amount of expenditures of the various departments and the object of the 
expenditures.”  
 
Condition: During the fiscal year the County Auditor (Fiscal Officer) was not auditing all 
apportionments made by the County Treasurer nor did the officer keep a complete record 
of all such apportionments to and disbursements from funds established, or the amount of 
expenditures of the various departments and the object of those expenditures.  
 
Cause: The County has not implemented controls to ensure compliance with NRS 
354.290. 
 
Effect:  The County did not comply with Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 354.290 for 
fiscal year 2017. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend the County design and implement controls to ensure 
compliance with NRS 354.290. 

 
2017-004 Public Official Bond 

 
Criteria:  NRS 249.030 states, “The board of county commissioners shall, on or before 
the first Monday in September preceding the election of the county treasurer, and at any 
other time when the funds are to be substantially increased, prescribe the amount in 
which the county treasurer must execute an official bond. The bond and sureties of the 
county treasurer must, before the bond can be recorded and filed, be approved by a judge 
of the district court.”  
 
Condition:  We noted the County Treasurer retired during the fiscal year and that the 
newly appointed Treasurer does not currently have a surety bond in force. We did note 
that all requirements of NRS 249.030 were followed except for the execution of obtaining 
the bond once it was approved for the new Treasurer. 
  
Cause: County personnel did not follow through in securing a surety bond for the 
appointed Treasurer after approval was provided to comply with NRS 249.030. 
 
Effect:  The County did not comply with NRS 249.030 for part of fiscal year 2017. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend the County establish controls to ensure compliance 
with NRS 249.030 and obtain the required bond as soon as possible. 
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2017-005 Purchasing Requirements 
 

Criteria:  NRS 332.039, 332.045, and 338.1385 state that contracts between certain dollar 
amounts must be advertised and the County may be required to solicit at least two or 
three bids for said contracts. 
 
Condition:  We were unable to obtain a listing of all contracts the County entered into 
during the fiscal year falling under the requirements of NRS 332.039, 332.045, and 
338.1385. Furthermore, we were unable to review the advertisement and bidding 
documentation related to some of the contracts entered into that appeared to fall under the 
requirements of NRS 332.039, 338.1385, and 332.045 for fiscal year 2017.  Thus, we 
were unable to determine if all contracts requiring bids and advertisements were executed 
as prescribed by the NRS. 
  
Cause: The County has not designed and implemented controls to ensure compliance 
with NRS 332.039, 332.045, and 338.1385. 
 
Effect:  The County may not have complied with Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 332.039, 
332.045, and 338.1385 for fiscal year 2017. It is possible that some contracts were not 
properly advertised or made available for bid as required by the NRS.  
 
Recommendation: We recommend the County design and implement controls to ensure 
compliance with NRS 332.039, 332.045, and 338.1385.  We recommend that a running 
log of advertised contracts for the fiscal year be maintained along with documentation 
related to advertisements and bidding requirements set forth in the NRS. 

 
2016-007 Budgetary Compliance 

 
Criteria:  NRS 354.626 states, “No governing body or member thereof, officer, office, 
department or agency may, during any fiscal year, expend or contract to expend any 
money or incur any liability, or enter into any contract which by its terms involves the 
expenditure of money, in excess of the amounts appropriated for that function,”  
 
Condition:  Expenditures in the Juvenile Administrative Assessment Fund exceeded final 
budget appropriations for fiscal year 2017 by $167. 
  
Cause: The County has not implemented controls to ensure compliance with NRS 
354.626. 
 
Effect:  The County did not comply with Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 354.626 for 
fiscal year 2017. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend the County design and implement controls to ensure 
compliance with NRS 354.626 as soon as possible.  
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Other Matters: 
 

None noted. 
 

Please respond to the above findings and recommendations in letter form. 
 

This letter is intended solely for the use of the Commission, management and various federal and state 
agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
 

It has been a pleasure to be of service to the County this year.  We would like to express special thanks to 
each of you who assisted us so efficiently in this year's audit.  We invite you to ask questions of us 
throughout the year as you feel it necessary and we look forward to a continued pleasant professional 
relationship. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
December 30, 2017 
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __2__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion and possible action to approve/disapprove FY 2016-2017 Plan of Corrective Action 
to the Nevada Department of Taxation as presented by Hinton & Burdick, and all other matters 
properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action:
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To the Honorable County Commissioners 
Lander County 
Battle Mountain, Nevada 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lander County, Nevada (the County) for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the 
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 
We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated March 10, 2017. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2017 
We noted no transactions entered into by the County during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.   

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 

Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on the assigned depreciation lives. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation lives in determining 
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the compensated absences accrual is based on current pay rates and 
accrued vacation and sick pay hours. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the compensated absences accrual in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, management’s estimates have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Nevada Public Employee Retirement 
System (PERS). The County’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The key factors and assumptions used to develop the valuation and the 
accrual appear reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
  
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management. However, we did encounter 
significant difficulties in performing and completing our audit in relation to the bank statements not being 
reconciled in a timely manner. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  A list of audit adjustments can be obtained from 
Management.   

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 30, 2017. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and other required 
supplementary (RSI) information as listed in the table of contents that supplements the basic financial 
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, which 
accompanies the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we 
made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared 
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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We were not engaged to report on the introductory section, which accompanies the financial statements 
but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
it. 
 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of County Commission and Management and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
December 30,  2017 
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Other Items Communicated to Management 

For the year ended June 30, 2017 
 
Cindy Benson 
Lander County Fiscal Officer 
Battle Mountain, Nevada  
 
During our audit of the funds of Lander County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, we noted a few 
other matters that we wish to communicate to management.  These items have not been included with our 
findings and recommendations letter to the Commission since they are only related to suggestions for 
improvements to accounting functions or they have been deemed to be less significant and/or 
management is aware of the findings and are working on resolutions. 

 
Control Deficiencies: 
 
2017-006 Investment Account Earnings and Fair Market Value Allocations 
 

We noted the investment accounts earnings were not allocated to the various funds per 
resolution 2016-03. We also noted that transfers of interest and fair market value required 
by GASB 31 were not properly budget and recorded. 
  
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the County Treasurer allocate the interest earned to the respective funds 
per resolution 2016-03 on a monthly basis. We also recommend the County budget each 
fiscal year for transfers of interest and fair market value between the funds as required by 
GASB 31.  The Treasurer should allocate and record the transfer in and out of interest 
and fair market value according to the guidelines of GASB31 on at least an annual basis.  
HintonBurdick will be happy to assist the County in establishing procedures to 
accomplish these adjustments.       

 
2016-002 Golf Course Internal Controls  

 
We noted that the golf course has been submitting the cash remittances to the County less 
frequently than set forth in the contract. We also noted that not all information and 
support is submitted to the County with each remittance. There appears to be no review 
of the remittance taking place once the golf course brings in the deposit and remittance. 
 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the County design and implement controls to review the weekly 
remittances and supporting documentation and ensure that they receive them weekly as 
stated in the contract. 
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2016-013 Austin Pool Internal Controls 
 

We noted the Austin pool doesn’t appear to have any formal internal controls established 
for cash receipting.  Also, we noted the pool is only making deposits once a week. 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the County Fiscal Officer review and walk through the cash receipting 
process at the Austin pool.  The Fiscal Officer should design and implement controls to 
ensure proper receipting and tracking of funds received as well as timely deposit of funds 
within three business days of receipt.     

 
Other Matters: 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
HintonBurdick, PLLC 
December 30, 2017 
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __3__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove the use of the Battle Mountain Recreation 
Center for the Class of 2018 Sober Senior Party on June 8, 2018 from 9:00 pm until 6:00 am on 
June 9, 2018, and all other matters properly

Public Comment:

Background: The Class of 2018 will be graduating on June 8, 2018. The parents of the 
Seniors throw an all night party for them every year and this year we would like to utilize 
the Recreation Center for the party.

Recommended Action: Approval of the use of the Battle Mountain Recreation Center for 
the Class of 2018 Sober Senior Party.
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __4__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion and possible action regarding approval/disapproval of the OSHA Annual Report and 
authorization for the Chair or Vice-chair to sign the OSHA 300A form, and all other matters 
properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: OSHA 300A form attached

Recommended Action: approval
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __5__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion and possible action regarding the annual Lander County Local Emergency Planning 
Committee (LEPC) Letter of Promulgation and authorization for the Chair or Vice-chair to sign, 
and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: Letter of Promulgation attached

Recommended Action: Approval
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Lander County Executive Director
50 State Route 305
Battle Mountain, NV 89820
(775) 635-2885
Fax- (775) 635-5332

Lander County Emergency Operations Plan

Letter of Promulgation

To the Citizens of Lander County,

Forces of nature or manmade accidents may create emergency conditions where our friends and 
neighbors must band together to respond and mitigate the effects of an unforseeable natural disaster, 
accident, hazardous material release, or act of terrorism. Planning and preparedness are necessary 
elements to protect the health and safety of our citizens, public and private property, and surrounding 
environment. Regardless of the size and complexity of the incident, Lander County will initiate quick 
response and decisive action to mitigate the effects of the event.

Depending upon the magnitude of the natural disaster, the complexity of the response will require 
extensive planning to ensure unity of effort with the various response activities. Processes and procedures 
must be established for a more decisive and coordinated response.

Materials containing hazardous consituents when properly controlled, are important in everyday life. 
Uncontrolled, they may cause injury, death, destruction, and lingering effects that may last for many 
years. To meet the risk, a concerted effort must be made to identify, locate, quantify, and possess 
knowledge of the hazardous materials within Lander County. The routes and modes of transporation of 
these chemicals must also be known in order to assess the overall possible danger posed by these 
materials and prepare for a focused response.

Lastly, our world has significantly changed over the past 35 years. Terrorism has become the weapon of 
choice by domestic and international enemies of freedom and liberty. Attacks may be in form of chemical, 
biological, or high explosive detonations. Even though Lander County is not a likely target, we must be 
prepared nonetheless.

The results of this local planning effort are set forth in this Lander County Emergency Operations Plan. The 
plan includes the study of the problem itself, the resources available to handle the problem and the 
emergency procedures that would be used in the case of a potential incident. The plan contains Records 
of Reviews/Changes, Table of Contents, and four sections which include the Basic Plan and Organizational 
Overview, twelve annexes specifying incident types, resource management and communications. 

Chairman, Lander County Commission Chairman, Local Emergency Planning 
Lander County, Nevada Committee Lander County, Nevada

_______________________________ ________________________________
Co-Chairman, Local Emergency Planning
Committee Lander County, Nevada

_________________________________
Effective date: January 25, 2018
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __6__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove the Public Service Announcement from the 
Lander County Emergency Planning Committee, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: Public Service Announcement attached.

Recommended Action: Approval of the LEPC public service announcement.
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __7__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding the creation of a committee to oversee issues regarding 
RS2477 Roads within Lander County, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: suggestions of committee members attached

Recommended Action:
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P.O. Box 21 Randolph, UT  84064  Phone:  307-679-3658 (Cell)  435-793-5555 (O/F)

krbrownwca@allwest.net

Your Address Line 2

Your Address Line 3

Your Address Line 4

Western Counties Alliance
Ken Brown-Executive Director

Suggested RS 2477 Road Committee Members

1. Commissioner 

2. County Cattlemen 

3.  County farm Bureau 

4. County Wool Growers 

5. County NRCS 

6. At large member 

7. Public Education 

8.  Recreation 

9.  Local business leader 

10.County Sherriff 

11.County Road Department
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __8__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding the All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Map and direction to 
submit a letter to the State of Nevada requesting crossing areas of state highways, and all other 
matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: attached

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __9__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding the construction of the Battle Mountain Levee Project, 
and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __10__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove Resolution 2018-01 which adds an 
alternate to the Austin Airport Advisory Board Committee, and all other matters properly related 
thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: Resolution 2018-01 attached.

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number _11___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding a request from the Lander County Assessor to move the 
Business License Program to the Planning Coordinator, and all other matters properly related 
thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: The Assessor's Office took on the Business License System several years 
ago when the Planning Secretary resigned and the Department was restructured. Up to 
that point, business licenses were issued through the Planning Department. Business 
Licenses should be under the direction of the Planning Department and the Planning 
Coordinator has agreed to take over the task. I am requesting the Commissioners 
approve moving the issuance of Business Licensing to the Planning Department, under 
the direction of the Planning Coordinator. 
NOTE: Ordinance will need to be changed/modified to reflect the change in Department, 
if approved.

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number _12___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove a modified contract between Lander 
County and Land Venture Partners, LLC., for the Airport Waterline Project, and all other matters 
properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: Both modified and original contracts are attached.

Recommended Action: Approval of the Modified Contract
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __13__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding a reduction in the Water & Sewer Rates for senior 
citizens and low income residents of Battle Mountain, Nevada, and all other matters properly 
related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: information attached from previous meetings

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __14__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding the purchase of Law Shield, a protective measure for 
Lander County employees that were affected by the unintentional release of personal 
information, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: attached

Recommended Action:
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Millions of people lose their 
identities every year.

Monitor more of what matters
We monitor your identity from every angle, not just your Social Security number, credit cards and 

bank accounts. If any change in your status occurs, you receive an email update immediately.

Counsel when you need it
Our identity specialists are focused on protecting you. They are available to provide you with a 

complete picture of identity theft, walk you through all the steps you can take to protect yourself 

and answer any questions. Plus, they are available 24 hours a day, every day, in the event of an 

identity theft emergency.  We’re always here to help, no matter what.

Restore your identity completely
IDShield is the only company with an exclusive partnership with Kroll, the worldwide leader in 

theft investigative services. If a compromise occurs, contact your Licensed Private Investigator 

who will immediately begin restoring your identity to pre-theft status.

 

“
Identity theft has been one of the top consumer complaints filed with the FTC for 16 years straight. Victims are 
spending an exorbitant amount of time and money dealing with it. The criminals are getting smarter. That’s why you 
need identity theft protection that’s more than �a website. Our Licensed Private Investigators will do whatever it takes 
for as long as it takes to restore your identity to its pre-theft status. You have our $5 million service guarantee.

My investigator gave me great advice and the next day 
cleared up my situation.” 

IDShield member – L.N. in Sioux City, NE

Don’t be one of them.
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COVERAGE UP TO 10 1priced per person 1

CONSULTATION

RESTORATION

MONITORING

Covers Up to 8 Minor Children

Covers Spouse/Domestic Partner

Unlimited Counseling with Investigator

Sex Offender Registry Reports

Licensed Private Investigators

Passport Number Monitoring

Social Security Fraud Detection

Data Breach Notifications

Medical Identity Theft Restoration

File Sharing Network Searches

Credit Inquiry Alerts

Monthly Score Tracker

Monthly ID Theft Updates

Identity Alert System

$5 Million Service Guarantee

Address Change Verification

Payday Loan Monitoring

Medical Identity Number Monitoring

Bank Account Number Monitoring

Emergency Assistance 24/7/365

Lost and Stolen Wallet Assistance

Complete Identity Restoration

Fictitious Identity Monitoring

Minor Identity Protection

Phone/Email/Driver License Monitoring

Credit Monitoring

Reduced Pre-Approved Card Offers

Financial Identity Theft Restoration

DOB/Social Security Number Monitoring

Court Records Monitoring

Black Market Website Surveillance

Credit/Debit/Retail Card Number Monitoring

Purchase of IDShield requires member to have a valid email 
address. This comparison is based on information that was 
publicly available in May 2017, and on plans at similar price points, 
without discounts.  This is a summary only.  Each company may 
have more plans available.  As with all plans, some exclusions 
apply.  See company contracts and materials for full details. 
Marketed by: Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc. dba LegalShield® 
and subsidiaries; Pre-Paid Legal CasualtySM, Inc.; Pre-Paid Legal 
Access, Inc.; In FL: LS, Inc.; In VA: Legal Service Plans of Virginia, 
Inc.; and PPL Legal Care of Canada Corporation 

SHEET_IDS_102607 54092  
©2017 LegalShield®, Ada, OK

Social Media Monitoring

IDSHIELD FAMILY

Protect yourself 
from getting less 
and paying more.

IDShield IDShield

LifeLock LifeLock
FAMILY INDIVIDUAL

ADVANTAGE PLAN ADVANTAGE PLAN(for you, your spouse/
domestic partner and 

up to 8 minors)

(for you)

IDShield Vault Password Manager

FOR MORE INFORMATION, CONTACT YOUR INDEPENDENT ASSOCIATE:

Gregg Lawrence 775-777-8184
Debra Schaefer
303-641-9739
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— RECOMMENDED SERVICES FOR — 

PRESENTED TO

PRESENTED BY

Proposal valid for 180 days

COVERED IN THIS DOCUMENT
• Why LegalShield Makes Sense for your Employees
• Group Legal Plan
• Why IDShield Makes Sense for your Employees
• Group Identity Theft Plan
• LegalShield & IDShield Mobile Apps
• Plan Pricing
• Plan Enrollment & Administration
• MemberPerks

business.legalshield.com

• LegalShield Fact Sheet
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OUR LEGAL PLANS are not just for 
lawsuits or for those involved in the 
criminal justice system, but for every-
day people with everyday situations.

According to a research study con-
ducted by Decision Analyst, Inc. and 
published in “The Legal Needs of 
American Families,” 66% of respon-
dents reported they had to take at 
least one day off work in past 12 
months to deal with one or more 
legal issues. That’s two out of every 
three workers. 

Our goal at LegalShield is to revo-
lutionize the way legal services are 
delivered in North America by pro-
viding access to quality law firms for 
individuals and families. 

Everyone deserves legal protection 
and with LegalShield your employees 
can access it.

Over 1.5 million North American 
families currently rely upon 
access to quality legal ser-
vices provided by LegalShield. 
With the power behind these 
numbers, we have developed 
relationships with select ded-
icated law firms nationwide 
and negotiated services with 
them at a fraction of what they 
traditionally cost—we call them 
Provider Law Firms.

The concept of a Provider Law 
Firm network is revolutionary in the 
legal services industry. LegalShield 
does not operate under the structure 
of a PPO (list of providers to choose 
from) like other legal service plans. 

By offering a LegalShield legal plan as a benefit to your employees, your company 
can help your workers worry less and live more. 

LegalShield gives your employees the ability to talk to an attorney on an unlimited 
number of personal legal matters without worrying about the hourly costs. For a flat 
monthly fee, they can access legal advice, no matter how traumatic or trivial the issue. 

LegalShield has an extensive network 
of lawyers capable of providing legal 
services across the continental United 
States, Hawaii, the District of Colum-
bia, and the Canadian provinces of 
Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba, 
and Ontario.

However, what makes LegalShield 
different is how our members engage 
their attorneys. LegalShield provides 
our members with immediate, direct, 
centralized toll-free access to their 

Provider Law Firm (one in each state 
and two in Florida). These Provider 
Law Firms are already committed to 
LegalShield’s members and waiting to 
deliver answers and peace of mind. No 
more random searching a long list of 
“in-network” lawyers hoping to get the 
right one, hoping someone calls you 

back and hoping they can re-
solve your issue and explain it 
in a straight-forward way. Our 
members immediately start 
getting answers with one-toll 
free number.

LegalShield, with the help of 
the Provider Law Firms, also 
maintains a database of thou-
sands of referral attorneys that 
meet the qualifications and 
high standards set forth by Le-

galShield. This network allows Provider 
Law Firms to locate referral attorneys 
within their state, across the United 
States and four provinces in Canada.

WHY LEGALSHIELD MAKES  
SENSE FOR YOUR EMPLOYEES 

Criminal

Civil Litigation

Employment

Collection

Real Estate

Landlord/Tenant

Family Law

Estate Planning

Consumer/Finance

05 0000 100000 150000 200000

Requests by Top 10 Areas of Law (2014)

% of all requests: 67.75%

160,1939.02%

148,1298.34%

142,6228.03%

141,3137.96%

134,8537.59%

117,1896.60%

112,8486.36%

96,6445.44%

76,3204.30%

72,8904.11%

Respondents indicated they were less  
distracted at work and had greater peace 
of mind when they had a legal protection 

plan in place. However, ONLY 13%  
OF AMERICAN WORKERS ACTUALLY  

HAD A LEGAL PLAN. 
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This centralized Provider Law Firm 
structure also allows for extensive 
real-time monitoring of Provider Law 
Firms by LegalShield Corporate to en-
sure service standards are being met. 
Provider Law Firms receive customer 
service training and deliver a high-lev-
el of quality and reliability, receiving 
consistently high customer satisfac-
tion ratings from members who have 
actively used the services. In addition, 
LegalShield plans 
provide 24-Hour 
access nationwide 
for covered emer-
gencies.

Because the mem-
ber has one primary 
point of contact for 
all their legal needs, 
the Corporate 
Office can closely 
monitor the level of 
service the member 
receives each time 
they contact their 
Provider Law Firm.

We are the only legal service company 
with specially designed software pro-
grams that allow our Provider Services 
department at the Corporate Office 
to monitor the delivery of service on a 
daily basis.

Services monitored include the num-
ber of: 

• Calls the law firm takes
• New requests for service
• Outstanding calls at the end of

each day
• Members requiring a referral to a

network attorney
• Referrals assigned

Our Provider Law Firm network is the 
result of 40 years of working with 
thousands of lawyers across North 
America. We hire highly qualified 
Provider Law Firms who can provide 
or coordinate all the members’ ser-
vices in a particular state or province. 
LegalShield researches and contracts 
with law firms that not only have a 
high standing and impeccable repu-
tation within the legal community, but 
also law firms that passionately share 
LegalShield’s desire to equalize the av-
erage North American family’s access 
to quality legal services.

We contract with Provider Law Firms 
only after many discussions and on-
site interviews. Each lawyer at the 
Provider Law Firm (or the Referral 
Attorney) must meet or exceed the 
following requirements before they are 
considered to provide services to our 
members. Attorneys must:

• Carry a minimum of $100,000
liability insurance

• Have practiced law in a firm for a
minimum of two years

• Be in good standing with their state
Bar Association. Any disciplinary
actions, even if unfounded, may dis-
qualify an attorney

In addition, LegalShield can provide 
an amendment, which is a provision 
that can be added onto the mem-
ber’s contract assuring the employer 
that the employee cannot use his or 
her LegalShield membership against 
the company. A member of a group 
with this contract amendment cannot 
utilize plan benefits for any employee/
employer-related matter. The amend-
ment applies only to using benefits 
against the member’s employer. 
Former employees cannot use their 
benefits against the employer after 
they have left the company.

ERISA: Do you have employees in 
multiple states and want them on the 
same plan? Because we have multiple 
plans and our plans face restrictions 
in some states, a single legal plan/
rate can be applied to employees in all 
states only if your company chooses to 
comply with the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). 
To comply with ERISA your company 
must do the following:

• Adopt a Board Resolution endorsing
the benefit plan

• Prepare a Written Endorsement of
the benefit plan

• Prepare a Summary Plan Descrip-
tion/Plan Document

• Make annual IRS filing, Form 5500
and Schedules

Our corporate office can provide 
assistance in preparing these ERISA 

documents. Discuss 
ERISA with your Le-
galShield represen-
tative to see if it’s 
the right solution 
for your compa-
ny. A minimum of 
100 individuals are 
required to establish 
an ERISA group.

As a market leader 
providing legal 
plans and services 
since 1972, Le-
galShield offers 
family and indi-

vidual plans, specialized professional 
and group plans, and business plans 
through a network of independent  
law firms under contract with our 
company. 

SERVICE LEVEL STANDARDS

LegalShield Provider Law Firms adhere to the following 
service standards for our members:

RETURN CALL FROM ATTORNEY: 8 BUSINESS HOURS 

DOCUMENT REVIEW: 3 BUSINESS DAYS

LETTER OR PHONE CALL: 3 BUSINESS DAYS

WILL PREPARATION: 10 BUSINESS DAYS 

REFERRALS: 3 BUSINESS DAYS
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PROPRIETARY NATIONWIDE NETWORK OF  
PROVIDER LAW FIRMS
Your on-call law firm is part of the LegalShield network 
of carefully selected, top-quality law firms. Each law firm 
is licensed in your state or province and dedicated to 
LegalShield members.

SUPERIOR SERVICE
Our Provider Law Firms are paid in advance on a per 
capita basis, ensuring they are motivated to focus on 
providing good service to you, not on billing.

QUALITY ASSURANCE
Our proprietary system provides daily, real-time, online 
monitoring of our Provider Law Firms, which enables 
continuous improvement of quality service. 

LEGALSHIELD + IDSHIELD 
Providing a comprehensive solution when ID theft issues 
turn into legal issues. 

UNIQUE SERVICE
Our members only have to make one call to be connect-
ed with a lawyer, ensuring they know exactly who to call 
when a legal need arises.

COMPREHENSIVE RESTORATION
With a Power of Attorney, Kroll will do everything nec-
essary to restore your identity until all resolvable issues 
have been addressed.

MONITORING WHAT MATTERS
We monitor your identity from every angle, not just your 
Social Security number, credit cards and bank accounts. 

SERVICE GUARANTEE
IDShield backs up its promise that it will do ‘whatever 
it takes for as long as it takes’ with a $5 million service 
guarantee.

DEFINITIVELY DIFFERENT
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OUR PROMISE TO OUR MEMBERS 
As one of the first companies in North 
America to provide legal expense 
plans to consumers, we now provide 
legal services to over 1.6 million 
families across the U.S. and Canada—
representing approximately 4.2 million 
people. With over 700 employees 
dedicated to serving your employees, 
our promise remains the same: to 
provide outstanding legal services 
by quality law firms at an affordable 
price.

WHY LEGALSHIELD
For less than $20 a month,  Legal-
Shield gives your employees the 

ability to talk to a lawyer on any 
personal legal matter without worry-
ing about high hourly costs. That is 
why, under the protection of Legal-
Shield, your employees and their 
families can live their lives worry free.

Some of the services our members will 
receive for legal matters include the 
following:
• Advice on an unlimited number of

legal topics
• Letters and phone calls on their

behalf
• 24/7 emergency assistance
• Legal document review
• Toll-Free phone consultations

At LegalShield, we have been offering legal plans 
to our members for over 40 years, creating a world 
where everyone can access legal protection—and 
everyone can afford it. Unexpected legal questions 
arise every day and with LegalShield on your 
employees' side, they will have access to a quality law 
firm 24/7, for covered situations. From real estate to 
speeding tickets to will preparation and beyond, we 
are here to help your employees — no matter how 
traumatic or how trivial their issue may seem.

Because our dedicated law firms are prepaid, their 
sole focus is on serving your employees, instead of 
billing them.

• Trial defense hours
• Forms service center
• Will preparation

Even better, members do not have to 
worry about finding out which attor-
ney to use—we will do that for them. 
Our experienced attorneys focus 
specifically on our members and 
provide 24/7 access for covered 
emergencies.

Learn more about the 
LegalShield Standard Plan** 

www.legalshield.com/info/standardplan 
**Available in MA, NV, NY.

EVERYONE DESERVES LEGAL 
PROTECTION—OUR GROUP 
LEGAL PLANS

Covered legal matters and services may vary by state. See plan contract for complete terms, coverage, amounts, conditions, and exclusions. Business issues are 
covered under some plans. See specific legal plan contract for details. Proposal valid for 180 days.

Learn more about the 
LegalShield Legal Plan* 

www.legalshield.com/info/legalplan 
*Available in all states except MA, NV, NY.

(To offer a single plan to employees in all states, please 

ask your LegalShield representative about ERISA.)
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FAMILY
• Adoption
• Alimony
• Child Custody
• Child Support
• Child Visitation Rights
• Conservatorship
• Divorce
• Domestic Violence Protection
• Guardianship
• Juvenile Court Proceedings
• Name Change
• Parental Responsibilities
• Prenuptial Agreements
• Separation
• School Administrative Hearing

HOME
• Building Code Disputes
• Contractor Disputes
• Deeds
• Evictions
• Foreclosure
• Neighbor Disputes/Easements
• Primary Residence Refinancing
• Purchase/Sale of House
• Real Estate Contracts/Financial

Disputes
• Security Deposits
• Smalls Claims Assistance
• Zoning Variances
• Residential Loan Document

Assistance

AUTO
• Driver’s License Restoration,

Revocation, Suspension
• Non-Commercial, Non-Criminal

Moving Traffic Violations
• Minor Traffic Ticket
• Motor Vehicular Homicide Defense
• Property damage claims

ESTATE ISSUES
• Codicils
• Power of Attorney
• Trusts
• Living Will
• Wills

FINANCIAL
• Affidavits
• Bankruptcy Consultation
• Consumer Credit/Protection
• Contracts/Financial Disputes
• Debt Collection
• Power of Attorney
• Estate Administration/Closing
• IRS Audit Protection
• IRS Collection Defense
• Rental Agreements
• Medical Disputes
• Medicare Disputes
• Personal Property Disputes
• Promissory Notes
• Social Security Disputes
• Veterans Benefits Disputes

Your employees' LegalShield provider law firm will 
be there to offer advice or assistance on a variety of 
legal issues. Below is a brief sampling* of the areas 
that the LegalShield Legal Plan covers.

25% OFF ADDITIONAL 
LEGAL SERVICES  

If you are in need of additional legal services, 
you may continue to use your provider law 
firm for legal situations that extend beyond 
plan coverage. The additional services are 
25% off the law firm’s standard hourly rates. 
Your provider law firm will let you know when 
the 25% discount applies and will go over 
these fees with you.

GROUP LEGAL PLAN— 
STANDARD PLAN

*Covered legal matters and services may vary by state. See plan contract for complete terms, coverage, amounts, conditions, and exclusions. Business issues are covered 
under some plans. See specific legal plan contract for details. Proposal valid for 180 days.

Learn more about the 
LegalShield Legal Plan** 
legalshield.com/info/legalplan

Learn more about the 
LegalShield Standard Plan***

legalshield.com/info/standardplan

**Available in all states except MA, NV, NY. 

***Available in MA, NV, NY.

STANDARD PLAN 
COVERS:

FAMILY LEGAL PLAN
• Member
• Member’s spouse
• Never-married dependent

children under age 21 living at
home

• Dependent children under age
18 for whom the member is
legal guardian

• Never married, dependent,
children who are full-time
college students up to age 23

• Physically or mentally
challenged children living
at home
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14% of identity theft
victims lost

$10005 of Americans are unable  
to pay for an unexpected 

expense of 

ONLY $4006 

46%

47%

1. CNN, 2014
2. The Chapman University Survey of American Fears, 2015
3. FTC Consumer Sentinel Network Data Book for Jan–Dec, 2015
4. Javelin 2016 Identity Protection Services Scorecard
5. Bureau of Justice Statistics, Victims of Identity Theft, 2014
6. Federal Reserve Economic well-being of U.S. households Report, 2015

increase in 

IDENTITY THEFT 
COMPLAINTS 

2014–20153

Provide the PROTECTION YOUR EMPLOYEES not only NEED but WANT.  

Having an identity theft plan can help  
STOP CRIMINALS BEFORE SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE IS DONE.

EVERY TWO SECONDS someone becomes a 
VICTIM OF IDENTITY THEFT.1

WHY IDShield?

or more

Higher than
economic
collapse and
just below
bio-warfare2

$15.1 Billion Stolen From

13.1 Million
         Americans in 20154

#7 Reported Fear
by Americans

SHEET_Proposal_NP_IDS_071817262



WHY IDShield?

85% OF U.S. RESIDENTS took actions to prevent  
identity theft (such as shredding important documents). 
Still, companies they trust PUT THEM AT RISK.5

1. www.idtheftcenter.org/images/breach/DataBreachReports_2015.pdf
2. www.idtheftcenter.org/Data-Breaches/data-breaches.html
3. www.informationisbeautiful.net/visualizations/worlds-biggest-data-breaches-hacks/
4. FTC’s Consumer Sentinel Network Data Book, 2015
5. Bureau of Justice Statistics, Victims of Identity Theft, 2014
Paper shredder icon created by Maximilian Becker

1

2

3

of identity theft activity 

IS DISCOVERABLE BY 
CREDIT REPORT MONITORING4

ONLY

15%

tracked data breaches in 2015
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IDShield is the only identity theft protection plan armed with a team of licensed private 
investigators on call 24/7/365. 

Our experts have credentials that matter including:

• Licensed Private Investigators (LPI)

• Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE)

• Fair Credit Reporting Act Certified (FCRA)

• Certified Identity Theft Risk Management Specialist (CITRMS)

• Certified Information Privacy Professional (CIPP)

WE HAVE UNMATCHED EXPERIENCE WITH ALL TYPES OF IDENTITY THEFT, 
NOT JUST CREDIT FRAUD. CHECK OUT SOME COMMON TYPES BELOW.

WHY IDShield?

MEDICAL IDENTITY THEFT

DISABILITY BENEFITS FRAUD

PAYDAY LOAN FRAUD

CRIMINAL IDENTITY THEFT

With nearly 15,000 identities restored, your employees can rest 
assured knowing THEY HAVE A PERSONAL TEAM OF LICENSED 

PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS ON THEIR SIDE. Not a call center.
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WHY IDShield?

 From uncovering and restoring pre-existing identity theft to 
preventing future thefts, IDShield provides a $5 Million Service 

Guarantee. Here’s what some of our Members have to say.

“When I spoke with my investigator, she was very caring and understand-
ing about my situation and helped me tremendously. I feel like a huge 
weight has been lifted off my shoulders.”

- K.C.
IDShield Member

“ It is so wonderful to know I have someone on my side. When the other 
company sent me two pages front and back of things I have to do in or-
der to be covered I was overwhelmed at best. What a blessing when my 
IDShield investigator told me all I have to do is change my passwords and 
contact the IRS. She took care of all the rest! Thanks again!”

- C.F.
IDShield Member

“The investigator’s quick response on my identity theft curtailed a lot 
of additional fraud on my profile. I am so thankful that I have IDShield. It 
would have been a nightmare to handle this situation myself.”

- K.M.
IDShield Member
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A COMPREHENSIVE AFFORDABLE IDENTITY THEFT SOLUTION FOR YOUR EMPLOYEES

IDShield is a product of LegalShield, and provides access to identity theft protection and restoration services through an exclusive 
relationship with Kroll. Neither LegalShield nor its officers, employees, or sales associates directly or indirectly provide identity 
theft protection, restoration services, or advice. 

The following are excluded from the Services: Legal Remedy—Any Stolen Identity Event where the member is unwilling or unable 
to prosecute or otherwise bring a civil or criminal claim against any person culpable or reasonably believed to be culpable for 
the fraud or its consequences. Dishonest Acts—Any dishonest, criminal, malicious or fraudulent acts, if the member(s) that suffered the fraud personally 
participated in, directed or had knowledge of such acts. Financial Loss—Any direct or indirect financial losses attributable to the Stolen Identity Event, 
including but not limited to, money stolen from a wallet, unauthorized purchases of retail goods or services online, by phone, mail or directly. Preexisting 
Stolen Identity Event Limitations -If the victim either had knowledge of, or reasonably should have had knowledge of, the misuse of his/her identity, credit, 
or other personal information based on information provided, or reasonably available, to the individual prior to enrollment in the program (each a “Prior 
Misuse”), such Prior Misuse or the consequences caused by it are not covered by the restoration services. However, individuals who have merely experienced 
the loss or unauthorized exposure of personal identifiers, including credit or debit card data, such as a data breach event, with no indication of actual misuse 
or identity theft resulting from that event, are not subject to the Prior Misuse exclusion hereunder. Business—The theft or unauthorized or illegal use of any 
business name, DBA or any other method of identifying business (as distinguished from personal) activity. Third Parties Not Subject to U.S. or Canadian 
Law—Restoration services do not remediate issues with third parties not subject to United States or Canadian law that have been impacted by an individual’s 
Stolen Identity Event, such as financial institutions, government agencies, and other entities. 

THE IDSHIELD MEMBERSHIP INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING SERVICES:

MONITORED INFORMATION 
• Credit/Debit/Retail Cards

• Date of Birth

• Drivers Licenses

• Email Address

• Home Address

• Medical ID

• Name

• Passport Numbers

• Phone Numbers

• Social Security Numbers

PRIVACY AND SECURITY 
MONITORING
• Court Record

Monitoring

• Child Monitoring

• Credit Monitoring

• Criminal Record Monitoring

• Internet Monitoring

• Pay Day Loan Monitoring

• Social Media Monitoring

• And More

COMPREHENSIVE SOURCE 
MONITORING
• Global Black

Market Websites

• Internet Relay Chat
(IRC)

• Local, State and Federal
Databases

• Online Chat Rooms

• Peer-to-Peer Sharing Networks

• Social Feeds

UNLIMITED CONSULTATION
• Assistance in

Analyzing and
Interpreting Credit
Reports

• Consultation on
Common
Trends and Scams

• Data Breach Safeguards

• Identity Theft Consultation

• Lost/Stolen Wallet Assistance

COMPREHENSIVE IDENTITY 
RESTORATION
• $5 Million Service

Guarantee

• Full Service Restoration by
Licensed Private Investigators

• Pre-existing Identity Theft
Restoration

GENERAL
• 24/7 Emergency Assistance

• Access to Licensed
Private Investigators

• Live Member Support

• Mobile App

• Monthly Credit Score Tracker

• Password Manager

• Real-Time Alerts

IDSHIELD PLAN OVERVIEW

WHO IS COVERED:

The Participant, Participant’s spouse, never-married dependent children under the age of 26
and living at home or full time in college, dependent children under the age of 18 for whom

the Participant is legal guardian and/or physically or mentally challenged children living at home.
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LEGALSHIELD 
Connect with your LegalShield provider law 
firm for trusted legal guidance and enjoy 
other valuable benefits:

• If you get a speeding ticket, “Snap” it in the
App to send it directly to your LegalShield
law firm without hassle or delay.

• 24/7 Emergency access for covered emer-
gencies

• Know your legal rights and how to protect
them by reviewing your plan information
and how it works

• Save money on the things you’re already
doing with MEMBERPerks.

• Auto accident tips that help keep you calm and focused
on doing the right things at the scene.

IDSHIELD 
Monitoring, consultation 
and restoration—they 
all make IDShield great:

• Get notified immediately when
monitoring triggers an alert

• No more guessing about your
credit score when you need to
know (for applicable plans)

• One-Touch access to your IDShield Advisor
• After hours? No problem. 24/7 Emergency Access
• Ease your mind with convenient case updates and call

history during the restoration process

With our suite of apps and your LegalShield and IDShield 
memberships, help is conveniently at your fingertips.

SHAKE by LegalShield 
Shake by LegalShield makes it easy to create, 
sign and send legally binding agreements. 
Enjoy the simplicity of a handshake, security 
of a legal contract, and the assurance from 

your LegalShield provider law firm.

• Freelance with confidence, protect trade
secrets (with an NDA) and always know
the scope of work, and be paid for it.

• Don’t risk misunderstandings and costly
disagreements. Buy, sell, rent, lend, barter,
or trade with a clear understanding of
what’s expected from both sides.

• Don’t wait on faxes and email, sign any-
time, anywhere—and the entire process is
tracked with the app.

• Don’t worry if the agreement is right for what you need,
use your LegalShield membership to consult with a law-
yer. It’s easy.

ASK by LegalShield
When you need quick informa-
tion about a legal situation or 
problem you’re experiencing, 
Ask by LegalShield can be your 

first stop. Many of the most commonly asked 
legal questions and their answers are now on 
your smart phone, and it’s FREE (no account 
necessary)! 

LEGAL & IDENTITY
PROTECTION AT
YOUR FINGERTIPS

DOWNLOAD  
TODAY!
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 Rate quoted will not change based on actual enrollment

PLAN TYPE  MONTHLY RATE

STANDARD FAMILY  LEGAL PLAN 
(MA, NV, NY ONLY)

Standard Family Legal Plan $15.95

IDSHIELD (ALL STATES)

Individual ID Shield $8.95 

Family IDShield $18.95 

COMBINATIONS

Standard Family Legal Plan PLUS Individual IDShield $24.90

Standard Family Legal Plan PLUS Family IDShield $30.90

WHO’S COVERED:

• Family Legal Plan: covers the member; the member’s spouse; never-married dependent children under age 21 and
living at home; dependent children under age 18 for whom the member is legal guardian; nevermarried, dependent
children who are full-time college students up to age 23; and physically or mentally challenged children living at home.

• IDShield Family Plan: covers member, spouse/partner + up to 8 dependent children up to the age of 26. (Includes
consultation/restoration only, for dependent children age 18 to 26.)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

• LegalShield provides promotional and enrollment materials at no cost to Group. If Group chooses electronic 
enrollment, we set the site up for free. We can set up custom information website at no cost to Group. We try to 
minimize, if not eliminate, any additional cost to Group for providing our benefit to its employees. To receive the 
group discount rate, account must have a minimum enrollment of five members. Groups who choose to use ERISA 
must have a minimum of 100 employees.

• Covered legal matters and services may vary by state. Go to www.legalshield.com/info/legalplan or www.legalshield.
com/info/standardplan for complete terms, coverage, amounts, conditions, and exclusions. Business issues are
covered under some plans. See specific legal plan contract for details. Proposal valid for 180 days.

PRODUCT PRICING 
GROUP DISCOUNT 
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HOW DOES THE ENROLLMENT 
PROCESS WORK? 
Prior to enrollment LegalShield Mem-
ber Services will schedule a meeting 
with your company to discuss imple-
mentation. During this meeting, we will 
discuss how to initiate and manage 
enrollment, and how ongoing adminis-
tration of the memberships will work. 
Once both parties agree on these 
items and appropriate development is 
completed, enrollment can proceed. 

LegalShield has several enrollment 
options for group accounts. 

1. Paper applications can be com-
pleted by employees and submit-
ted to LegalShield for processing.

2.

A secure, password-protected
group enrollment website can be
created for employees to com-
plete an online application that is
processed by LegalShield.

3.

Electronic enrollment files can
be submitted through a secure
file transfer by the group using a
standardized file format provided
by LegalShield.

LegalShield has designed our benefit plans to provide peace of mind to your 
employees and their families without adding complex paperwork. LegalShield and 
IDShield plans are simple for employers to administer and for employees to 
understand. 

Our plans are simple to implement because we have no time-consuming 
administrative duties for administrators. We make it easy for you to provide an 
exceptional benefit to your employees with minimal to no cost to you. We work with 
your enrollment, billing, and payment requirements and provide enrollment materials 
at no cost.

LegalShield processes enrollments 
within 24-48 hours of being received. 
Once the enrollment is processed, 
employees will receive a digital 
member kit by email within 72 hours . 

HOW WILL THE PLAN BE  
MARKETED TO OUR EMPLOYEES? 
To implement our employee benefits, 
we recommend the following 
effective three-part strategy. 

• First, marketing to employees prior
to an onsite meeting, which would
include email blasts, and effective
placement and distribution of post-
ers and brochures to promote the
event.

• Second, the onsite meeting itself,
which would include a presentation,
Q&A session and additional materi-
als for employees to sign up or take
home for later review. These onsite
meetings usually generate the
highest number of enrollees.

• Third, ongoing communications to
encourage/remind ‘late adopters’
to sign up. LegalShield can provide
email templates, payroll stuffers,
breakroom posters and brochures to
assist your company in promoting
this benefit. In addition, LegalShield
can provide a website customized
for your company to further assist
employees in taking advantage of
LegalShield.

HOW ARE DEDUCTIBLES  
AND CLAIMS HANDLED BY  
YOUR PLANS?
There are no deductibles or claims 
with LegalShield plans. 

HOW WILL OUR ACCOUNT  
BE SERVICED? 
Your LegalShield representative will 
be present at enrollment and make 
regular visits as requested by the 
group. These visits will be at no cost 
to the employer.

WHAT IS THE CANCELLATION  
POLICY? 
In order to cancel, a member must 
provide written notice. No other 
paperwork is required.

ARE THE PLANS PORTABLE?
If a member is no longer eligible to 
continue their membership through 
your group, the member may 
choose to continue as an individual 
at the same group rate. 

PLAN ENROLLMENT  
& ADMINISTRATION— 
WE MAKE IT EASY

SAMPLE ENROLLMENT 
WEBSITE 

legalshield.com/info/
companyanew
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The member will have the option of 
monthly automatic draft from a 
checking account or credit card 
charge. In addition, if employee is re-
located to another state, their 
membership can move with them. 
Plan benefits and/or rates may vary in 
some states. Members are often given 
the option to keep the plan they have 
at  current rate at  time of  relocation 

WHO DOES MEMBER CALL WHEN 
THEY HAVE A PROBLEM? 
Our Member Services Department has 
a toll-free number available 7 a.m.–7 
p.m. CST, Monday through Friday. 
We have a toll-free Customer Service 
number for our members to ensure 
quality service. Assistance is available 
in English and Spanish. We also have 
support available via email and Chat.

Members may call Member Services 
when they: 

• Have questions about how to use
benefits

• Have not received their contract in
the mail

• Have a change of address or phone
number

• Need to add or remove a person
from their membership

• Need a new membership card or
contract

• Get married or divorced

In addition, all Members Services lines 
are recorded and calls are randomly 
reviewed to ensure service consistency. 

DOES LEGALSHIELD OFFER ANY 
ONLINE SUPPORT?
Yes! We are always updating our online 
features to empower our members in 

handling their issues and getting the 
most out of their plan. Members can 
go to our Members Only Websites 
www.LegalShield.com or IDShield.com 
to access FAQs and information.

WHAT ARE BILLING OPTIONS?
• Monthly Invoice: A monthly paper

invoice can be mailed to the billing 
address on file for group.

• Self-Billing: Group can remit a pay-
roll deduction report to LegalShield 
in place of the monthly billing 
invoice.

WHAT ARE METHODS OF BILLING 
TRANSMISSION?
• Mail: Billing invoices/Self-Billing

Report can be mailed with payment 
to LegalShield.

• Email: Billing invoices/Self-Billing
Report can be emailed to Le-
galShield. 

• Secure FTP (Self-Billing Only):
If self-billing report contains SSN, it 
must be sent through secure FTP.

WHAT ARE PAYMENT OPTIONS? 
• Check: Preferred method of pay-

ment is paper check.
• ACH Direct Deposit: We offer direct

deposit for groups that are unable to 
remit a paper check.

WHAT IS LEGALSHIELD’S PRIVACY 
POLICY?
Keeping customer information pri-
vate is a priority for LegalShield, its 
subsidiaries, and affiliates. To enable 
us to provide membership plans, it is 
necessary to collect certain informa-
tion from members. However, we are 
committed to maintaining the privacy 
of this information in accordance with 

the law. All individuals with access to 
personal information about customers 
are required to follow this policy. We 
collect non-public personal informa-
tion from the following sources:

• Information we receive from individ-
uals on applications or other forms
(such as name, address, Social Se-
curity number and payment instruc-
tions.

• Information individuals may provide
during visits to our website; and

• Information about individuals’
transactions with us, our affiliates or
others.

We do not disclose any non-pub-
lic personal information about our 
customers or former customers to a 
non-affiliated entity except as de-
scribed below and otherwise permit-
ted by law. We may disclose all of the 
information we collect, as described 
above, to companies that assist us in 
the servicing or administration of the 
products requested or authorized. 
When information is shared with 
companies that perform services on 
our behalf, we protect against the 
subsequent disclosure of that informa-
tion with a confidentiality agreement. 
In no event do we disclose personal 
information to companies that will use 
that information to contact individuals 
about their own products or services.

We restrict access to non-public 
personal information to those persons 
who need such information to provide 
products or services. We maintain 
physical, electronic and procedural 
safeguards that comply with federal 
regulation to guard non-public person-
al information.
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A LegalShield membership is simply amazing. And, in addition to the privileges that 
your employee members already have, we have added these MEMBERPERKS with 
hundreds of merchants and thousands of discounts. Members can access savings at 
both national and local companies on everyday purchases such as tickets, electronics, 
apparel, travel and more. Members have the opportunity to save, on average, over 
$2,000 per year. MEMBERPERKS can save your employees enough to pay for their 
membership for years to come!

SAVE WITH THESE 
INCREDIBLE
MEMBERPERKS 

Apparel

Automotive

Beauty &  
Fragrance

Books, Movies  
& Music

Cell Phones

Electronics

Finance

Flowers & Gifts

Food

Health &  
Wellness

Home & Garden

Home Services

Insurance &  
Protection  
Services

Jewelry & 
Watches

Office & 
Business

Pets

Real Estate 
& Moving  
Services

Sports &  
Outdoors

Tickets &  
Entertainments

Toys, Kids 
& Babies

Travel
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ABOUT LEGALSHIELD
Founded in 1972 in Ada, Oklahoma, 
LegalShield is a leading provider of 
legal plans and identity theft solutions 
to families and small businesses across 
the U.S. and Canada. Before changing 
its name to LegalShield in 2011, the 
company was known as Pre-Paid Legal 
Services, Inc. Today LegalShield is 
owned by MidOcean Partners, a New 
York–based private equity  firm

LegalShield markets its products 
through two main channels: 
Business-to-Busiess and Networking. 
Benefit brokers provide the products 
to corporate employees through 
payroll deduction. Independent sales 
associates share the products with 
individuals and small business 
owners. 

FACTS ABOUT LEGALSHIELD
• With 1.6 million families enrolled,

LegalShield’s legal plans currently
protect 4.2 million people across the
U.S. and four Canadian provinces.

• LegalShield and IDShield serve more
than 141,000 businesses.

• LegalShield’s provider attorneys
have been with their law firms for an
average of 20 years.

• Each year, LegalShield law firm

LegalShield’s purpose is to create a world where everyone 
can take advantage of competent, affordable legal 
assistance. Our mission is to provide outstanding legal 
coverage by quality law firms or a low monthly fee, as 
well as unparalleled identity protection.

receive more than two million calls
from members.

KEY LEGALSHIELD PRODUCTS 
Legal plans:
LegalShield’s legal plans cover every-
day legal issues for members and their 
spouse and dependents, such as:

• Family matters
• Estate planning
• Financial and business issues
• Consumer/credit protection
• Taxes
• Real estate
• Auto/driving issues

Identity theft plans: 
LegalShield’s identity theft plans help 
members minimize the likelihood of 
theft and resolve issues related to 
identity theft. Services are provided by 
Kroll, the world’s leading consulting 
company in identity theft prevention 
and restoration. Services include: 
credit/privacy monitoring, consultation 
and identity restoration services.

EXECUTIVE TEAM
Jeff Bell – Chief Executive Officer 
James Rosseau – EVP, Chief Comm-
ercial Officer
Jack Goldenberg – EVP, Chief Tech-
nology Officer
Kathy Pinson – EVP, Chief Operating 
Officer 
Steve Williamson – EVP, Chief Financial 
Officer
Darnell Self – EVP, Network & Business 
Development
Patrick Hodges – SVP, President of 
Network Marketing & Sales
Glenn Petersen – SVP, President 
LegalShield Business Solutions
John Long – SVP, Chief People Officer 
Keri Norris – SVP, Legal & Regulatory 
Affairs and General Counsel
Claire Terrell – SVP, Marketing
Dave Coffey – SVP, Chief Digital Officer 
Melissa Wilder – SVP, Business 
Solutions Field Sales
Emily Rose – VP, Broker & Partnership 
Sales

Corporate office: 
One Pre-Paid Way 
Ada, Oklahoma 74820 
(580) 436-1234 
www.LegalShield.com

MAKING TOP-QUALITY 
LEGAL & IDENTITY THEFT 
PROTECTION SERVICES  
AVAILABLE FOR ALL

More than 
34,000 companies 

offer LegalShield 
plans to their 
employees.

LegalShield legal plans protect more than 4.2 million lives. 

LegalShield identity theft plans currently protect over 1 million lives. 

• The LegalShield provider law firm net-
work employs 1,100 attorneys, plus
more than 4,700 referral attorneys.
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CREDIT REPORTS
Assistance interpreting and analyzing a credit report secured by the Participant 
and guidance to reduce pre-approved credit offers. If identity theft occurs, a 3B 
credit report will be provided to the Participant at the beginning and end of the 
identity theft restoration process.

DATA BREACH SAFEGUARDS
Advice and assistance on steps needed in the event the Participant is a victim or 
a potential victim of a data breach.

LOST/STOLEN WALLET ASSISTANCE
Guidance on the steps needed in the event the Participant’s wallet is lost or 
stolen.

PRIVACY AND SECURITY BEST PRACTICES
Unlimited consultation on best practices for use and protection of SSN’s, 
Personally Identifiable Information (PII), financial transactions, online activities, 
consumer privacy and child identity theft.

PHONE/MAIL SOLICITATION
Advice and assistance to reduce unsolicited offers of credit and insurance, 
removal of phone number from telemarketers’ call lists and reduction of email 
advertisements (CAN-SPAM) and marketing mail and catalogs.

ADVICE AND CONSULTATION

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

IDSHIELD PLAN 
COVERAGE DEFINITIONS
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SEX OFFENDER SAFEGUARDS
Advice and sex offender database searches for the Participant’s home address.

CREDIT INQUIRY ALERTS
Participants will be notified via email when a creditor requests their Experian 
credit file.

CREDIT SCORE TRACKER
The Participant’s credit score is tracked monthly and automatically updated and 
displayed on the IDShield mobile app and Member dashboard.

DATA BREACH NOTIFICATIONS
Participants will receive email notifications of large and high publicity data 
breaches.

PRIVACY ALERTS
Real-time alerts are sent directly to the IDShield mobile app and the 
Participant’s email.

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

TELEPHONE CONSULTATION
Unlimited telephone consultations on any personal identity theft matter, unless 
specifically excluded by the plan. The IDShield Licensed Private Investigator 
will provide advice and representation on any matter covered by the plan. If the 
matter is not covered, the Licensed Private Investigator will provide consultation 
on the best course of action.

COVERED

ALERTS AND NOTIFICATIONS
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MONITORED INFORMATION
The following Personally Identifiable Information is constantly monitored:

•Bank Accounts (up to 10)
•Credit/Debit/Retail Cards (up to 10 each)
•Date of Birth
•Driver’s License
•Email Addresses (up to 10)
•Home Address
•Medical ID Numbers (up to 10)
•Name
•Passport Number
•Phone Numbers (up to 10)
•Social Security Number

COVERED

PRIVACY AND SECURITY MONITORING

CHILD MONITORING
Monitors up to 8 children under the age of 18, for potential fraudulent activity 
associated with the Participant’s child’s SSN. The service monitors public 
records in all 50 states, including real estate data, public records/court 
proceedings, bankruptcies, and liens. Parents/guardians are provided a baseline 
scan, subsequent alerts and notifications if exposing data is found.

COURT RECORD MONITORING
This service searches for online court records that match the member’s name 
and date of birth from county courts, Department of Corrections (DOC), 
Administration of the Courts (AOC), and other legal agencies - approx. 350 
million criminal records searched. Court records are sourced from county, 
state, and federal data sources. County records are sourced from the 250 most 
populous counties along with arrest records, court records, correctional records, 
and State Department records.

CREDIT MONITORING
The Participant and Participant’s spouse credit information is monitored through 
Experian. If the event of identity theft a 3B credit report will be secured.

ADDRESS CHANGE VERIFICATION
Monitors if a change of address has been requested through the United States 
Postal Service.

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED
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INTERNET MONITORING
Monitors global black market websites, IRC (internet relay chat) channels, 
chat rooms, peer-to-peer sharing networks, and social feeds for a Participant’s 
Personally Identifiable Information (PII).

PAY DAY LOAN MONITORING
Monitors for short-term payday or similar cash advance loans.

SOCIAL MEDIA MONITORING
Monitors the social media platforms Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn and 
Instagram as well as content feeds for privacy and reputational risks. Monitors 
home address information, email address, date of birth, and Social Security 
Number for a Participant’s Personally Identifiable Information. Vulgar, harmful 
or threatening and or sexual language, drug and alcohol references and 
discriminatory language is also monitored for content that has the potential to 
create reputational risks.

IDENTITY THEFT RESTORATION PREPARATION
Participants are immediately assigned to a Licensed Private Investigator who 
will work directly with the Participant for the entire resolution process, creating 
a 1:1 relationship. 
As part of the restoration process the Licensed Private Investigator will:

•Organize details of open identity theft issues
•Explain the Participant’s rights, process and responsibilities involved
•Assist in completing the necessary paperwork
•Provide a Fraud Packet which includes Limited Power of Attorney
authorization
•Issue a Fraud Alert to all three credit bureaus

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED

IDENTITY THEFT RESTORATION
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IDENTITY THEFT RESTORATION PROCESS
Licensed Private Investigators will:

•Provide step-by-step guidance throughout the restoration process
•Issue a Fraud Alert upon receiving the signed Limited Power of Attorney to
the Social Security Administration (SSA), Federal Trade Commission (FTC)
and U.S. Postal Service (USPS)
•Search for other instances of identity theft
•Review credit history 1:1 with the Participant and verify if fraud includes
items such as: public records (liens, judgments, bankruptcies), credit
accounts (new and/or derogatory), addresses, and prior employment
•Work directly with affected financial institutions and credit card companies
and issue Fraud Alerts to those impacted
•Restore the Participant’s identity to its pre-theft status with a $5 Million
Service Guarantee.

Some identity theft incidents are more complex than others and may require 
additional action to resolve, such as:

•Determining if creditors extended additional credit
•Contacting creditors and collection agencies to dispute all fraudulent
accounts
•Searching criminal record databases and Department of Motor Vehicle
records
•Performing a Social Security trace and Death Index
•Assisting with law enforcement personnel
•Providing ongoing restoration updates

IDENTITY THEFT RESTORATION CLOSING PROCESS 
The closing process includes:

•Verbal confirmation from both parties that the issue is fully resolved
•Providing a final review 120 days post resolution with a trimerged credit
bureau report
•Consultation to re-confirm identity has been restored to its pre-theft status
•Written confirmation that the issue is fully resolved or reopening the case if
identity is not restored to its pre-theft status

LICENSED PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS 
Licensed Private Investigators have an average of 7 years’ experience and come 
from fields such as banking, collections, insurance, law enforcement, background 
investigations, credit reporting, and more. In addition to being licensed PIs, they 
also have credentials that allow them to fully research and resolve identity theft 
incidents including:

•Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE)
•Fair Credit Reporting Act Certified (FCRA)
•Certified Identity Theft Risk Management Specialist (CITRMS)
•Certified Information Privacy Professional (CIPP)

COVERED

COVERED

COVERED
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LIMITED POWER OF ATTORNEY 
Participants can authorize their assigned Licensed Private Investigator to have 
Limited Power of Attorney over them to fully resolve their identity theft incident 
on their behalf.

COVERED

SERVICE GUARANTEE 
A $5 Million Service Guarantee is provided to ensure the Participant’s identity is 
restored fully to its pre-theft status.

24/7 EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE 
The Participant receives toll-free telephone access to Licensed Private 
Investigators on a 24-hour per day basis for emergencies. Emergency access is 
not available for general consultation on best practices.

COVERED

COVERED

ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

MOBILE APP 
Participants can access their credit score, case history, receive and review alerts 
and call directly for assistance through the IDShield mobile app. The mobile app 
is updated every 15 minutes.

PASSWORD MANAGER 
IDShield Vault allows Participants to manage and generate passwords. With a 
browser plugin installed, IDShield Vault will also autofill known passwords when 
browsing on the web and sync across devices providing secure auto backup.

COVERED

COVERED

GENERAL EXCLUSIONS: The following are excluded from the Services: Legal Remedy—Any Stolen Identity Event where the member is unwilling or unable 
to prosecute or otherwise bring a civil or criminal claim against any person culpable or reasonably believed to be culpable for the fraud or its consequences. 
Dishonest Acts—Any dishonest, criminal, malicious or fraudulent acts, if the member(s) that suffered the fraud personally participated in, directed or had 
knowledge of such acts. Financial Loss—Any direct or indirect financial losses attributable to the Stolen Identity Event, including but not limited to, money 
stolen from a wallet, unauthorized purchases of retail goods or services online, by phone, mail or directly. MARKETED BY: Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc. dba 
LegalShield® and subsidiaries; Pre-Paid Legal Casualty, Inc.; Pre-Paid Legal Access, Inc.; In FL: LS, Inc.; In VA: Legal Service Plans of Virginia; and PPL Legal 
Care of Canada Corporation
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number __15__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion only regarding the Lander County Planning Commission and its roles and 
responsibilities, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number _16___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action to select a date and time to hold a special commission meeting that 
will include all department heads, boards Categories I, II, III, and IV, and an invitation to all 
Elected Officials to set goals for the upcoming budget year, and all other matters properly related 
thereto.

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action: Set a date and time for a special budget meeting with 
department heads and Elected Officials.
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number _17___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding the scheduled Lander County Commission meeting 
scheduled for February 8, 2018 and the option of changing the date to February 7, 2018, and all 
other matters properly related thereto. 

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING

Agenda Item Number _18___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding an additional position within the Lander County 
Treasurer's office, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING

Agenda Item Number __19__

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding property damage to personal vehicle in the Lander 
County Sheriff's Office Parking lot, and all other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment:

Background: Correspondence and quotes attached.

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING

Agenda Item Number _20___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Discussion for possible action regarding a water application from the U.S. Water and Lands, 
LLC (87492) to the State Engineer for 300,000 acre feet of unappropriated Humboldt River 
Water Rights and to submit a letter of protest, and all other matters properly related thereto. 

Public Comment:

Background: Attached

Recommended Action:
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LANDER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/25/2018

Agenda Item Number _21___

THE REQUESTED ACTION OF THE LANDER COUNTY COMMISSION IS:
Correspondence/reports/potential upcoming agenda items.

Public Comment:

Background:

Recommended Action:
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	Agenda
	Commissioners reports
	Payment of Bills- 1-25-2018
	Payroll Change Request 1-25-2018
	Discussion and possiblea ction to approve/disapprove FY 2015-2016 Plan of Corrective Action to Nevada Department of Taxation, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion and possible action to approve/disapprove FY 2016-2017 Plan of Corrective Action to the Nevada Department of Taxation as presented by Hinton & Burdick, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove the use of the Battle Mountain Recreation Center for the Class of 2018 Sober Senior Party on June 8, 2018 from 9:00 pm until 6:00 am on June 9, 2018, and all other matters properly
	Discussion and possible action regarding approval/disapproval of the OSHA Annual Report and authorization for the Chair or Co-chair to sign the OSHA 300A form, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion and possible action regarding the annual Lander County Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) Letter of Promulgation and authorization for the chair to sign, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove the Public Service Announcement from the Lander County Emergency Planning Committee, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action regarding the creation of a committee to oversee issues regarding RS2477 Roads, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action regarding the All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Map and direction to submit a letter to the State of Nevada requesting crossing areas of state highways, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action regarding the construction of the Battle Mountain Levee Project, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove Resolution 2018-01 which adds an alternate to the Austin Airport Advisory Board Committee, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action regarding a request from the Lander County Assessor to move the Business License Program to the Planning Coordinator, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action to approve/disapprove a modified contract between Lander County and Land Venture Partners, LLC., for the Airport Waterline Project, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action regarding a reduction in the Water & Sewer Rates for senior citizens and low income residents of Battle Mountain, Nevada, and all other matters properly related thereto.
	Discussion for possible action regarding the breach of personal information and the corrective action that has been taken, and all other matters properly related thereto.
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